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CORPORATE

INFORMATION

HisE N

Vocational Training Council

Established in 1982, the
Vocational Training Council (VTC)
is the largest vocational and
professional education and training
provider in Hong Kong. Every
year, our comprehensive range

Members of the VTC Group

of pre-employment and in-service
programmes equips a quarter
of a million students with
the valuable credentials and
qualifications they need to reach
their potential.

Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEI)
Institute of Professional Education And Knowledge (PEAK)
School for Higher and Professional Education (SHAPE)

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (IVE)

Hong Kong Design Institute (HKDI)
Hotel and Tourism Institute (HTI)
Chinese Culinary Institute (CCl)
International Culinary Institute (ICl)

Maritime Services Training Institute (MSTI)

Youth College
Pro-Act by VTC

Integrated Vocational Development Centre (IVDC)

Shine Skills Centre
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Vision
To be the leading provider of vocational

and professional education and
training in the region

Mission

e To provide a valued choice to
school leavers and working adults
to acquire values, knowledge and
skills for lifelong learning and
enhanced employability

e To provide valued support to
industries for their manpower
development

Core Values

e To serve with integrity

e To be client-focused

e To strive for excellence

e To be entrepreneurial

e To forge partnerships with
stakeholders
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CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE

mBER

Good corporate governance is the
cornerstone of a well-managed
organisation. The VTC prides itself
on its high standard of corporate
governance.

Our corporate structure has
clear lines of accountability and
responsibility. Authority is delegated
within clearly defined parameters
ensuring efficiency in achieving our
mission. The VTC’s management
and committees operate on three
levels:

(@) The Council, together with
its committees and boards,
is responsible for overall
management;

(o) The Executive Director,
supported by the management
caucus and various committees,
is responsible for day-to-day
management; and

(¢) The Vocational Education
and Training (VET) Advisory
Committee and VET Academic
Board, with its committees and
boards, provide advice and
oversee the management of
academic matters.

As the highest authority in the VTC,
the Council comprises 22 members
including senior Government
officials and non-governmental
representatives from the industrial,
commercial, service, labour and
educational sectors. All of them are
appointed by the Chief Executive of
the HKSAR. The Executive Director
also sits on the Council as an ex-
officio member.
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The Council is assisted by 21
Training Boards and five General
Committees whose membership
consists of stakeholders in nearly
all major economic sectors in
Hong Kong. Together, they advise
the Government on labour market
conditions in their respective
sectors and ensure that vocational
and professional education and
training is keeping pace with
projected workforce requirements
and changing talent pools. They
also advise the VTC on curriculum
development, course planning and
quality assurance.

The VTC’s day-to-day management
comes under the purview of the
Executive Director, an ex-officio
member of the Council serving
on its functional committees. The
Executive Director reports to the
Council via its Chairman.

The Executive Director is supported
by the caucus team, who guides
and manages the overall operation
of the VTC'’s services. The Executive
Director also chairs the Quality
Assurance Steering Committee
and Strategic Plan Implementation
Steering Group.

Chaired by a prominent industry
leader, the VET Advisory Committee
consists of members from industry,
education and the public sector.
Its function is to advise the
Council on the broad direction and
strategy of the VTC’s academic
development, and its provision of
quality vocational and professional
education and training to meet
projected talent requirements.
Chaired by the Executive Director,
the VET Academic Board formulates
major academic management
policies.
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ll OUR PLAN IS READY. IT IS HOPED
THAT ALL THESE EFFORTS WILL
FURTHER STRENGTHEN THE
POSITION OF VOCATIONAL AND
PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION AND
TRAINING IN HONG KONG AND
ENHANCE ITS REPUTATION.

RMEZER ENAXNBHEEBEZZETHS

?ﬁ*ﬁg’ 1%/%%&5)30 ”

. -

CHAIRMAN'S

ES

F

([




14

CHAIRMAN'S

ERRFS

The past year at the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) has been
characterised by vision and action.
Significant efforts have been
made to support the manpower
development of Hong Kong and
increase our promotion of vocational
and professional education and
training (VPET) in the community,
alongside skills excellence.

The VTC’s vision is to become a
leading VPET provider in the region
with impact on local and global
development. With this vision,
we formulated our third Eight-
year Strategic Plan, covering the
period 2015/16 to 2022/23.
We have identified a number of
areas for development including
VPET promotion, re-structuring our
programme portfolio, developing
local, mainland and international
strategies, and accelerating campus
and research development. With
this in place, we are confident
that the Strategic Plan will better
equip the VTC to meet its future
challenges.

Globalisation remains the major
prevailing trend in the world's
economy, posing both challenges
and opportunities to our city and its
people. Our twin advantages of having
the Mainland as our hinterland and a
well-established international outlook
provide a significant competitive edge.
But with other economies catching
up fast, it is clear that we have to
sharpen this edge to stay ahead.

Conscious of the need to address
these challenges through changes
to the city's education landscape,
the HKSAR Government has made a
strong commitment to promoting and
rebranding vocational education and
training.

In his 2014 Policy Address, the
HKSAR Chief Executive announced
that the Government would re-
establish the positioning of vocational
education in the city’s education
system and help guide the younger
generation in choosing their careers.
Echoing the Government’s call
to action, we have been working
closely with the Government and key
industries to raise the status and
recognition of VPET in Hong Kong.
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Today, youth unemployment remains
a policy challenge in many parts
of the world, as is an apparent
slowing-down in upward social
mobility. Hong Kong is no exception.
By contrast, Germany, Switzerland
and Austria which have strong dual
VPET systems are in the favourable
situation of being able to maintain
their youth unemployment rates at
relatively low levels.

Dual-track VPET systems offer
an excellent approach to skills
development, as they provide
continuous education and training
relays for career paths. In 2014,
taking reference from such systems
being implemented in Germany and
Switzerland, we introduced the ‘Earn
and Learn’ Pilot Scheme at Higher
Diploma and Diploma levels in
collaboration with the Government
and industry.

With the aim of keeping the local
workforce dynamic, professional
and market responsive, it is our
wish to extend this Scheme to
different programme levels. We
shall also explore the possibility
of establishing a new vocational

route for secondary students under
the existing education system. A
highly permeable and flexible VPET
system not only allows graduates
to switch between pathways in their
subsequent development, but can
also help Hong Kong develop and
retain a well-trained and dedicated
workforce in a long run.

Bringing vocational skills under the
local and international spotlight can
help raise the profile of different
types of career. During the year, we
organised two high-profile youth
skills competitions, the WorldSkills
Hong Kong Competition cum Carnival
and the Guangzhou / Hong Kong /
Macao / Chengdu Youth Skills
Competition cum Carnival.

By recognising and rewarding
talented people, these competitions
have helped strengthen levels of
expertise in apprenticeships, skills
and further education. They have
also proved successful in driving
home the importance of VPET in
the socio-economic development of
Hong Kong.
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Besides that, we also accelerated
our internationalisation efforts
by actively fostering international
and regional co-operation with like-
minded partners.

During the year, we signed several
new agreements with institutions
from around the world to herald new
partnerships. Through these, we are
able to provide our students and
staff members with global learning
and training opportunities. We will
continue to expand these links and
explore more overseas attachment
opportunities for our students,
allowing them to gain international
exposure and broaden their global
perspective.

The VTC continues to consolidate
its relationships with local, regional
and mainland partners, aiming to
create further opportunities for
academic and other collaboration.

A number of new partnerships were
formed during the year. These
collaborations support VTC’s vision
to be a leading VPET provider in the
region by expanding its services to
various cities and provinces in the
Mainland.

In addition to expanding local,
regional and global networks, we
constantly upgrade our 30-plus
campuses and their facilities so as
to maximise students’ potential,
hence preparing them well for the
requirements of the global economy.

A few years ago, we embarked on
the ambitious initiative of building a
mega campus housing Hong Kong
Design Institute and Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education
(Lee Wai Lee), putting in place a
world-class facility to support the
Government’s policies in developing
cultural and creative industries.
This mega campus concept not
only provides efficient utilisation of
space, but is also a good means
of showcasing the importance and
value of VPET in Hong Kong.

As a dynamic and progressive
VPET provider, the VTC is currently
experiencing growth in both student
numbers and student residents
on campus. To meet this growing
demand, it is important for us
to look strategically into campus
development. During the year, a
number of capital projects have
been undertaken including a new
environmentally-friendly campus
for the Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong
(THEI) in Chai Wan, and a new
student dormitory at IVE (Tsing Yi).
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The construction of a new campus
for the International Culinary
Institute (ICl) in Pokfulam is
also under way. ICl's purpose-
built campus with advanced
facilities, together with the Chinese
Culinary Institute and Hotel and
Tourism Institute in the Southern
District of Hong Kong Island will
form a campus-like venue called
‘Hospitality Pokfulam’. Alliances
and international networking are
key success factors in today’s
knowledge-based economy. We
hope that this new landmark can
become a vibrant hive of hospitality
activity that further advances the
culinary and hospitality industry
of all participating countries and
regions.

To support the provision of quality
VPET services for the coming
years, we will draw up a strategic
development plan for our campuses
to foster synergy and provide more
state-of-the-art facilities, which are
pivotal to enhancing the image and
quality of VPET.

During the year, we have also
explored new ways to enhance the
standard of our VPET and support
Government’s efforts to promote
technological transformation, in
particular through practical social
and industrial research.

In the most recent round of
the Research Grants Council’s
Competitive Research Funding
Schemes for the Local Self-financing
Degree Sector, our degree-awarding
THEiI was awarded grants for over
ten research projects. This was
definitely encouraging news for us.

Our plan is ready. It is hoped that all
these efforts will further strengthen
the position of VPET in Hong Kong
and enhance its reputation.

In closing, | should like to express
my sincere thanks to our Council
members for their valuable guidance
over the years, as well as our many
partners in the Government, industry
and various sectors of society. The
progress made by the VTC over the
past year owes much to their strong
support.

We look forward to continuing to
work hand in hand with all these
parties to unleash the full power of
VPET in the years to come.
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Chairman
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ll WE LOOK FORWARD TO HELPING
HONG KONG FACE THE CHALLENGES
AHEAD AND CONTRIBUTING TO THE
CITY'S GROWTH.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S

REVIEW
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Over the past 12 months we have
seen increased awareness of
the importance of vocational and
professional education and training
(VPET), giving us encouragement that
the endeavours of the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) in developing
and promoting VPET are on the
right track. A number of milestone
developments in promoting VPET
have also taken place.

At the same time, the close working
relationship we have been able
to maintain between our Council,
management team, staff, alumni
and students has provided great
strength and encouragement in the
continuing pursuit of our vision and
mission.

Growing Awareness of VPET

Hong Kong's birth rates have decreased
over the past decade and the number
of secondary school graduates has also
declined year by year. At the VTC, we
have always attached great importance
to the quality and relevance of our
education.

| am delighted that the VTC’s
programmes continue to be well
received despite the decline
in student population. This is
an affirmation not only of our
commitment to excellence, but also
of the rising popularity of VPET in
the local community.

Another sign of the growing
importance of VPET is the new
subsidy scheme initiated by the
Government. In his 2014 Policy
Address, HKSAR Chief Executive
launched the Study Subsidy Scheme
for Designated Professions/Sectors
(SSSDP) with the aim of nurturing
talent to meet Hong Kong's social
and economic needs.

The Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong
(THEI), one of our member institutions
offering vocationally-oriented degree
programmes, has been included
in SSSDP, and in fact accounts for
the highest number of subsidised
programmes in the Scheme. It
demonstrates our strength in devising
programmes that are well aligned with
industrial and economic development
in Hong Kong.
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Third Eight-year
Strategic Plan

Much has changed in Hong Kong’s
educational landscape in the past
few years. Our VPET has equipped
students with 21st century
competencies and prepared them
for a successful career in the new
environment. Taking into account
changes in the social and economic
environment in Hong Kong, we drew
up a new, forward-looking planning
framework in 2014 — the Third Eight-
year Strategic Plan — covering the
period from 2015/16 to 2022/23.

The Third Strategic Plan recognises
the core values and broad
mission of the VTC, building on its
predecessors by unleashing the
full potential of VPET and building a
holistic system for our students. It
also aligns with the Government’s
latest strategies for promoting VPET.

In another move to support the
initiatives raised in the Policy
Address, we launched the ‘Earn
and Learn’ Pilot Scheme in 2014.
During the year, we also signed
Memoranda of Understanding with
partners from various industries
to introduce the Scheme and train
new blood for these sectors. Since
its launch, the Pilot Scheme has
been extended to more industries

experiencing keen manpower
demand, including the electrical
and mechanical, printing, watch
and clock, automobile servicing and
retail sectors.

Holistic and Experiential
Learning Approach

In today’s interconnected world,
students are expected to acquire
different sets of knowledge, skills
and perspectives from those of
previous generations in order to
stay competitive. They must be able
to compete but also co-operate with
their local and international peers.
To this end, we strive to prepare
our students for these new global
realities by equipping them with the
critical competencies to succeed
in this global knowledge-based
economy.

We believe that everyone has the
passion, strength and potential
to succeed if given the right
opportunities — a spark within them
just waiting to be discovered. During
the year, we provided our students
with a wide range of local, regional
and global platforms through which
they had the chance to show their
full potential and learn from others
in different parts of the world.
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Widening World Views

We also made great efforts to
promote internationalism on our
campuses during the year. In
addition to recruiting international
students from different countries and
regions, we provided opportunities
for our local students to participate
in overseas exchange programmes.
During the year, more than 3,000
VTC students took part in such
programmes.

Meanwhile, we formed new
partnerships and renewed
agreements with various overseas
counterparts to maximise the
impact of our education, including
Technical and Further Education

(TAFE) Queensland; the Institute of
Technical Education, the At-Sunrice
Global Chef Academy and the
School of Business Management of
Nanyang Polytechnic in Singapore;
The School of Media Studies of The
New School in the United States;
Design School Kolding in Denmark;
and Zurich University of the Arts in
Switzerland.

In addition, a variety of cultural
exchange and social activities
such as the first-ever ‘International
Fortnight” was staged on campus
to enrich students’ campus life and
promote the convergence of diverse
cultures at the VTC.
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Strengthening Local,
Regional and Mainland
Partnerships

One of the VTC’s strengths is a
well-established network of local,
regional and Mainland partners.
During the year, we continued
to partner various non-profit
organisations and companies in
the private sector to help groom
tomorrow’s leaders. Through various
joint initiatives such as the ‘Careers
China Project’, ‘YIC Youth Education
Programme’ and ‘Graduate
Enhancement Training Scheme
for IT’, we were also able to offer
VTC students valuable placement
opportunities to hone their skills
and gain industry experience.

Furthermore, we strengthened our
co-operation with Mainland training
institutes and local authorities in
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the Pearl River Region, enabling us
to offer Hong Kong students a wider
range of VPET and skills upgrading
programmes and at the same
time contribute to the manpower
and economic development of
our nation.

We also extended coverage of
the ‘One Examination, Multiple
Certification” System to the elderly
care and printing industries.
This scheme allows in-service
practitioners to gain qualifications
recognised by the Mainland, Hong
Kong and international professional
organisations, and has proven
very effective since we launched
it in 2013 for the beauty care and
hairdressing industries. In the
year ahead, we shall explore the
possibility of extending the scheme
to other industries to maximise
its impact.
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Developing Our Campuses

Aiming to foster an engaging
teaching and learning environment
that can nurture talented
professionals, we continue to invest
substantial resources in upgrading
and enhancing the infrastructure
and training facilities of our member
institutions.

Among the capital projects now
well in hand are the International
Culinary Institute in Pokfulam,
targeted for completion in
2017/18; a new campus for THEi
in Chai Wan, due to be operational
by 2017; and a brand-new 12-storey
student dormitory at the Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education
(IVE) Tsing Yi, which will come into
use by end of 2015.

We are also making good use
of new technologies to enhance
teaching and learning, in particular
by bringing real-world experiences
into the classroom through virtual
reality and augmented reality
platforms. A good example is the
newly-established Retail Lab on
our IVE (Haking Wong) campus,
which is equipped with state-of-the-
art retail facilities and simulators
to provide students with a virtual
learning environment where they
can practise their skills.

Through these new hardware and
software facilities, we are able to
offer our students an improved
and dynamic learning environment.
We shall continue to add new
sites and facilities to support the
development of VPET.
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Applied Research

Our pursuit of excellence in
vocational and professional
education and training during the
past year was paralleled by our
development in applied research.
We made a determined effort to
drive interdisciplinary collaboration
and consolidate our research work.

At our annual practical social and
industrial research symposium,
renowned scholars and VTC
academics shared their vision and
insights into practical technological
research and VPET trends. We
have also unitised research as an
effective instrument in building
students’ capabilities. A number of
multi-disciplinary research projects
were implemented including the
award-winning Smart Schoolbag.

Growth with Our People

Through the various programmes
| have described, we provide not
only our students but also our staff
with ample opportunities to hone

their skills and capabilities. Besides
organising various staff capability
building programmes, we encourage
staff members to participate in
research activities and make
good use of experience-sharing
opportunities and international
collaboration in order to keep
abreast with the fast-changing
global environment and educational
scene.

| should like to express my warm
appreciation to all members of the
VTC team for their hard work and
commitment during the past year.

Looking Ahead

The year ahead will be another busy
one for the VTC, as we continue to
fulfil our responsibilities of nurturing
our younger generation and leading
the development of VPET in Hong
Kong. We look forward to helping
Hong Kong face the challenges
ahead and contributing to the city’s
growth.

FE B 5%

EF BMEBRKEEBETSHK
BERMRE - MANEREAMRE
BMAOESEEREE BESESN
I

FEVICERMTE R TEXE BH
FETE AR - A% EE FIVIC 21
AEREBERIEMEMBEI A
BEERBE HDEZRENBIEER
e ZMMELASHERSEWR
EILEBELEE SN  —REBEERM
BB IBF R - HA VICH /Y
EREEPRERE -

BEET

VICFTEU N ER M B EIER - T2
BBE . TAEBITRERHEE I
RABBNE S - HMIRH— R
RIZABBTHEE NHEETLHE
MTEE - ILELRIRMNEINE
TERIHE - AEER: BB Z2 a2k
RIEBNMHAE RN -

HREYUVICExR 2K EREBRE
—FAT A B RRAE ©

BRE KRR

BEEEFT R HEBEIIH
BRRINIRL - VICEBLER
FEARELEOT —F - HEH
EL EBHESDRANKE K2
R o

Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP
Executive Director
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HIGHLIGHTS

XENH

Year 2014/15 was an eventful one for the Vocational Training Council (VTC)
with numerous highlights and memorable moments.

2014/15 F - BEFSRE (VIC) RITLIHEDEKRE  BH -

APRIL
4 H

1 The VTC signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) with
the Airport Authority Hong Kong
to strengthen comprehensive
assessment and exchanges, in
addition to providing substantial
placement opportunities for students.
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2 The VTC organised a one-stop
Programme Selection Information
Day featuring briefings and parent
talks to provide practical tips on
programme selection and career
planning. More than 3,800 people
participated.
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3 A ten-day ‘Emerging Design
Talents 2014: New Voices’
exhibition was staged at Hong
Kong Design Institute (HKDI) and
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education(IVE) (Lee Wai Lee),
showcasing the creations and
fruitful learning of students and
graduates.

BEBMBRETER (HKDl) KB EHR
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VTC E

Memorandum of Understanding Signing Ceremony

o

4 The VTC and the Institute of
Technical Education of Singapore
signed their fourth MoU to advance
bilateral collaboration on vocational
and professional education
and training (VPET), witnessed
by representatives from both
Governments.
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5 The WorldSkills Hong Kong
Competition cum Carnival at Kai
Tak Cruise Terminal offered the
public a first-ever chance to enjoy
the skills competitions and see for
themselves the fun and values of
vocational education.
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6 Aiming to attract and groom young people to join
the retail industry, the VTC launched an ‘Earn and
Learn’ Pilot Scheme for Retail Industry for Secondary 6
school leavers with support from the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association and the Government.
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AUGUST
8 A

7 WorldSkills International
President Mr Simon BARTLEY visited
Hong Kong and toured the campuses
and education facilities of VTC to
understand the local VPET scene.

S % BE A & X JEMr Simon
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9 The Guangzhou/Hong Kong/
Macao/Chengdu Youth Skills
Competition cum Carnival 2014
gathered the top young competitors
in the region to hone their skills in
Hong Kong.
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SEPTEMBER
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8 The VTC received a generous
donation from Rotary International
District 3450 to establish the
‘Rotary Hong Kong Vocational
Scholarship’.
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10 The VTC signed its first MoU with
Technical and Further Education
(TAFE) Queensland, signifying the
commitment and collaboration of
the two parties to enhance VPET,
manpower development and higher
education in their regions.
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11 To attract aspiring young
people to join industries with high
manpower demand, the VTC signed
Memoranda of Understanding
with the Federation of Hong Kong
Watch Trades and Industries and
the Service Managers Association
respectively to launch ‘Earn and
Learn’ Pilot Schemes for the
watch and clock and automobile
industries.
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12 The VTC launched ‘International
Fortnight’, the first Council-wide
programme to feature a series
of activities across campuses
promoting exchange and experience
sharing among different cultures
and traditions.
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13 HKDI and IVE (Lee Wai Lee)
collaborated with design institutions
and museums from Sweden,
Germany and Switzerland to
organise four international design
exhibitions at the campus.

HKDI &2 IVE (Z=25)) Eifm 80 - {EE] AN
I TR REREYESIE B
R PIUE AR B RR TR E

14 The VTC showcased various
innovative technological products
by students and teachers of its
member institutions at InnoCarnival
2014. Secretary for Commerce and
Economic Development Mr Gregory
SO, the officiating guest, visited
the VTC booth to see students’
innovative projects and products.
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DECEMBER
12 A

15 Chairman of the Education
Commission Dr Moses CHENG
officiated at the VTC Graduation
Ceremony 2014. More than 23,000
students from six of the VTC
member institutions were conferred
with awards ranging from Higher
Diplomas to Certificates.
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16 A five-member delegation
led by Sweden’s Minister for
Housing and Urban Development
Mr Mehmet KAPLAN visited HKDI
and the exhibition ‘Re Rag Rug -
Contemporary Rug Design by Studio
Brieditis and Evans, Sweden’.

mHEELRBMTERT S K
Mr Mehmet KAPLANR 8 7L AR E
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JANUARY
1 H

17 A 17-member delegation led by
Singapore’s Minister for Education
Mr HENG Swee Keat visited
Technological and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong (THEIi) and
met with VTC Chairman Dr Clement
CHEN, Executive Director Dr Carrie
YAU and THEi President Prof David
LIM to learn about Hong Kong’s
experience in providing vocationally-
oriented degree programmes.
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18 The VTC participated in the
Education and Careers Expo to
provide one-stop information on
study, training and professional
development programmes available
for young people and in-service
workers.
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19 The Retail Lab was officially
opened as a milestone development
of the ‘Earn and Learn’ Pilot Scheme
tailored for the retail industry. Located
at IVE (Haking Wong), the Lab is
the first retail workshop equipped
with state-of-the-art simulation
facilities. The opening ceremony was
performed by Financial Secretary
Mr John TSANG.
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20 The VTC participated in
Worlddidac Asia showcasing
students’ excellence to thousands
of visitors from the education field
around the world. VTC Chairman
Dr Clement CHEN was one of
40 respected speakers from
16 countries who spoke at the
concurrent Asia Education Leaders
Forum and exchanged views with
global education professionals on
the development of VPET.
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21 Over 300 guests from the
Government and industry joined
the 2014 Outstanding Apprentice/
Trainee Awards Presentation
Ceremony cum Spring Reception,
celebrating the Lunar New Year
by witnessing the outstanding
achievements of the VTC
apprentices.
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22 THEi signed an MoU with the
School of Business Management of
Nanyang Polytechnic in Singapore,
advancing collaboration in articulating
student study and exchanges, staff
exchanges and research co-operation.
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BRINGING SKILLS
TO LIFE TO ALL
TO THE WORLD

B E AL B B 57
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Dynamic Skill Platforms

During the year, we significantly
stepped up our efforts to promote
vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) as
well as skills development locally,
regionally and internationally. Two
youth skills competitions held in
2014, namely the WorldSkills Hong
Kong Competition (WHKC) cum
Carnival and the Guangzhou/Hong
Kong/Macao/Chengdu (GHMC)

Youth Skills Competition cum
Carnival, have successfully driven
home the importance of VPET in
the socio-economic development
of Hong Kong. Through a wide
spectrum of public events and
activities, the general public have
been able to experience the depth
of skills learning.

BRYE HEEKEE

KEE > BPELRM  BAEUE
EREEEENHEEREESHE
LR REE R - £2014F  BEFF
RERBEEEZFE  URKEBRRE
EERHERBEEETENRY
B MM EARETRRBRESESHE
EREBHEREBEERTMEEZN
EEAC KR TREHENES -
RMEREZELZREHELAR
SH - BEReEPER - IRY
e 2B MR

37



38

WorldSkills

Hong Kong Competition

cum Carnival

BATEREAEE
REE

Held on 27 and 28 June 2014
in Kai Tak Cruise Terminal, the
biennial event, WHKC provided a
platform for young people to excel
in their vocational skills. There
were 25 trades in the competition,
with 11 of them mounting displays,
namely beauty therapy, bricklaying,
hairdressing, joinery, mobile
robotics, painting and decoration,
plumbing and heating, restaurant
services, visual merchandising/

[
-

window display, wall and floor
tiling, and web design.

Taking the theme of ‘Discover
Skills’, the combined
competition and carnival
featured for the first time
a diversity of skills-related
infotainment elements, such
as skills demonstrations,
‘Have-A-Go’ skills try-outs,
seminars hosted by industry
leaders and careers advice
service. These both offered
engaging activities for the
public and enhanced the
appeal of different skills
to visitors.

Visitors including primary and
secondary school students,
teachers, career masters,
counsellors, industry experts and
overseas VPET practitioners were
all fascinated by the skills displayed
and the fun of participating in
professional skills.
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Whilst the WHKC cum Carnival
was a flagship local event, the
GHMC Youth Skills Competition
cum Carnival was a highlight event
for regional VPET practitioners.
With Hong Kong being the host
city for the 8th GHMC Youth Skills
Competition, the VTC took the lead
in organising the competition with
the three other participating cities,
namely Guangzhou, Macao and
Chengdu.
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Building on the successful
experience gained from the WHKC
cum Carnival, the event combined
competitions with a wide range
of ‘Skills Connect DIY’ activities,
allowing visitors to immerse
themselves in skills experience.

The two events together attracted
35,000 visitors to the Kai Tak
Cruise Terminal and provided the
Hong Kong team with valuable

EREFREABBRFERAML
MBEMR AR = ¢ MAREIRE B F e
BREERFE ARRABEES
RERNPERS - BHEBEMR
BN~ BB R - RE I M R R
T BRERENELENRET -
I VIC ESREAE R - R =B

DEEBBTFTREABERTFE
MBI BTABRERTHE
BB MEARZHEERRBE
FHELER] FZHEE  ZB2E
ALEREE - SlBan -

W IE H RE A = MBI 5| % # 35,000
ZE R EBHIEE . AT
IR FHEH 0I5B MBREL R
REEXRE  IRE—XRBENEE
£33l - 2015F 8 A& 1TAtH RiFaE
AE BISUEFRERBBHLE -
—RITEBRMERIKHEEE R
tmEE REEREREIT o

GHMC Youth Skills
Competition cum
Carnival
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BERTFE

preparation for the WorldSkills Sao
Paulo 2015 competition in Brazil.
For this event in August 2015, Hong
Kong will send its biggest-ever team
of 18 competitors, supported by
experts and partners.
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DEVELOPMENT

LEADING THE WAY IN
VOCATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL
EDUCATION AND TRAINING
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EXPANDING

h FE B IR R

The 21st century is an era of
globalisation which requires
countries to nurture pools of skilled
and well-qualified talent with a new
global mindset to drive innovation
and economic growth. Responding
to this global trend, the Vocational
Training Council (VTC) has been
actively embracing a high degree
of internationalisation and is keen
to develop globally competent
and responsible citizens who
can compete in and contribute to
society at local and global levels.

We aspire to expand our global
footprint through new collaborations
and internationalised learning
activities both locally and
outside Hong Kong, so as to
encourage diverse perspectives
and intellectual exchange and
support the development of global
graduates. To achieve this goal,
the VTC has devoted significant
efforts and resources to driving
internationalisation in the year
under review.
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We admitted the first batch of
overseas students in 2012/13.
In 2014/15, around 50 non-
local students were admitted to
VTC’s Degree and Higher Diploma
programmes. We also received
incoming exchange students
from the Mainland and overseas
countries including Belgium, France,
Japan, Singapore and the United
Kingdom.
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As part of its commitment to
internationalisation, the VTC offers
a range of opportunities to all
students to enhance their skills and
experience. These activities include
student exchanges, internship
placements and cross-border and
international events, opening up
new vistas for students and staff
through extensive exposure to
global interactions.

During the year, the VTC participated
in a number of cross-border
and international conferences,
forums and exhibitions such as
the International Congress on
Vocational Training in Switzerland,
the World Federation of Colleges
and Polytechnics World Congress in
Beijing, the Technical and Further
Education (TAFE) Directors Australia
National Conference in Australia
and the Shanghai-Hong Kong-Taiwan
Vocational Education Forum in
Shanghai. These events afforded
our students and teachers enriching
opportunities to expand their
knowledge and networks through
international platforms.
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Exchange activities likewise help
students enrich their educational
experience by exploring new
perspectives. During the year, some
3,000 students participated in
overseas programmes, travelling
to Australia, Belgium, Cambodia,
Germany, Indonesia, Japan, Korea,
Malaysia, Spain, Singapore, Taiwan,
Thailand and the United Kingdom.
Outbound industry attachment
places were secured in a number
of countries such as Singapore and
France, enabling students to gain
invaluable work experience from
their overseas host companies or
organisations and increase their
employability.
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The Visiting Fellows/Scholars
Scheme also offered opportunities
for students and staff to learn from
experts from around the world.
During the year, professionals from
Australia, Canada, the Mainland,
France, Italy, Japan, Switzerland
and Taiwan came to Hong Kong
and shared their expertise and
insights in various fields ranging
from curriculum design for students
with special needs to food and wine
pairing, healthcare, physical training
and rehabilitation medicine, as well
as dual-track education systems.
Our students and staff can now
take this into their learning and
teaching.

Besides this, a new Council-wide
programme was introduced in
2014/15 to engage staff, local
and non-local students. Carrying
the theme ‘Embracing Diversified
Cultures’, our first-ever ‘International
Fortnight’ featured more than ten
meaningful activities to promote
exchange and experience sharing
among staff and students from
different cultures, including
talent shows by the international
students; food tastings and cooking
demonstrations of various cuisines;
photography competition; and movie
appreciation and cultural seminars.
To promote mutual learning between
local and international students, 28
International Student Ambassadors
were also appointed to help
promote VTC’s international culture
as well as to provide support to
newly-admitted non-local students.
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In addition, a series of joint
exhibitions was held at Hong Kong
Design Institute (HKDI), which
showcased creative projects and
works from Sweden, Switzerland
and Japan, as well as award-
winning designs from the Red Dot
Design Museum in Germany. These
activities not only helped promote
innovation but also facilitated
cultural exchange and widened our
students’ vision. Meanwhile, the
Hotel and Tourism Institute (HTI),
the Chinese Culinary Institute
(CCl) and the International Culinary
Institute (ICI), conducted over
ten culinary demonstrations and
exchanges, offering culinary and
catering students valuable learning
opportunities from master chefs.

In the course of the year, we also
partnered with Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MIT) to
organise an MIT China Educational
Technology Initiative Summer
Workshop. Over 80 VTC students
joined the two-week programme
and benefited from this valuable
learning opportunity to gain new
knowledge and interact with top
students from MIT.

We are proud of the strong
international links we have forged
over the past years. To support the
quality and reach of our education
and maximise its impact, we will
continue to forge sustainable
partnerships with like-minded
international institutions.

Among the Memoranda of
Understanding (MoUs) concluded in
2014/15 was the first agreement
between VTC and TAFE Queensland
in October 2014. Under the
MoU, the two parties will help
promote the internationalisation of
vocational education in Hong Kong
and Australia and open up new
avenues of collaboration.
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Memorandum of Understanding Signing Ceremony

In 2014 we also saw the fourth
renewal of our MoU with the
Institute of Technical Education of
Singapore, a long-standing partner
of the VTC. First signed in 1998,
this MoU promotes bilateral co-
operation in the field of technical
education and training. Another
new MoU was signed with Ngee
Ann Polytechnic of Singapore for co-
operation on academic exchanges.

Other key agreements included
MoUs between the Technological
and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong (THEi) and Singapore’s
At-Sunrice Global Chef Academy
to advance bilateral exchanges of
students and teachers as a means
of promoting internationalisation;
and the School of Business
Management of Nanyang Polytechnic
on student study articulation and
exchanges, staff exchanges and
research co-operation.

The HKDI also forged several
new partnerships with overseas
institutions, including The School of
Media Studies of The New School
in the United States; the Design
School Kolding in Denmark; and
the Zurich University of the Arts
in Switzerland. These agreements
were aimed at establishing
collaborative synergy in areas of
creative ideas and expertise, both
through student exchanges to
enhance international exposure
and cultural experience, and staff
exchanges to build competency and
capability.

Our Hotel, Service and Tourism
Studies Discipline signed a three-
year MoU with the Tourism Schools
Salzburg in Austria in 2014 to set
out a framework for professional
collaboration in cultural and
educational exchanges between the
two parties.
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ENHANCING

The VTC is committed to offering
quality vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) for its
students and equipping them with
valuable knowledge and skills. Our
programmes cover a wide spectrum
of professional disciplines and form
a seamless progression pathway
from Certificate, Sub-degree and
Degree to Master Degree levels.

Since its establishment in 2012,
our member institution THEi has
been offering Degree programmes
with a strong vocational orientation
to add to the diversity of the
education landscape in Hong Kong.
During the year, THEi continued
to increase its range of VPET
programmes in professional areas
such as horticulture and landscape
management, public relations and
management, building services
engineering, and food science and
safety. All these programmes have
secured accreditation by the Hong
Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational
Quialifications (HKCAAVQ).

Evidence that THEi’'s programmes
serve Hong Kong well is seen
in the fact that it has six of the
13 programmes selected for the
Government’s Study Subsidy Scheme
for Designated Professions/Sectors
in 2015/16, and another will be
added in 2016/17.
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In addition to offering new Degree
programmes through THEIi, we are
extending learning experience and
qualification opportunities through
collaborations with local, Mainland
and overseas universities.

Top-up Degrees are offered to
meet the aspirations of Higher
Diploma (HD) graduates and other
Sub-degree holders for higher
qualifications. During the year, five
new Top-up Degree programmes

offered by the School for Higher
and Professional Education in
collaboration with overseas
universities were introduced, namely
Degrees in Architecture, Business
(with Law), Computing, Multimedia
Computing, and Design for
Exhibition and Museums. Moreover,
Master Degree programmes are
offered in partnership with the
University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom.
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We constantly review and evolve our
curriculum to ensure its educational
and practical effectiveness for
the students we serve, as well
as its ability to meet the needs
of modern society. To respond to
the pressing manpower needs of
relevant industries, a number of
new programmes were introduced
in areas such as culinary arts in
2014/15. Articulation pathways
between culinary Diploma, Higher
Diploma and Degree programmes
of THEi were also established.
Development of a wide range
of modules and programmes at
Certificate, Diploma, Higher Diploma
and Professional Diploma level in
international cuisine, wine, and food
and wine pairing is under way.
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In tandem, a number of other
programmes at different levels were
rolled out in response to market
needs like Transmedia, Plumbing
Engineering, Retailing, Elderly Care,
Social Services, Hairdressing and
Beauty Care.

During the year, a total of 58,190
students enrolled in the VTC’s pre-
employment programmes, and
over 23,000 students graduated
from the full-time pre-employment
programmes offered by our member
institutions. Around 46% of
graduates pursued further full-time
studies, and no less than 89% of
the graduates who opted to join the
workforce had secured employment
within six months after graduation.
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To attract young people to join
industries with keen manpower
demand, the ‘Earn and Learn’ Pilot
Scheme targeting Secondary 3 to
Secondary 6 school leavers was
introduced in July 2014 through the
tripartite efforts of the Government,
industry and the VTC.

Referencing the successful
experience of vocational education
in Germany and Switzerland, we
also took forward the concept of
integrating classroom learning
and workplace training to help
produce young professionals well
conversant in knowledge and
practical skills, so as to meet local
market and industrial needs. Our
Pilot Scheme provides a clear and
seamless pathway towards higher
qualifications in which participants
learn through on-the-job training
and theoretical programmes. They
also earn a guaranteed level of
income, supported by subsidies
from the industry concerned and
the Government.

Since the introduction of the pilot
scheme, it has been extended
to cover different industries
with keen manpower demand,
including electrical and mechanical
engineering, printing, retail, watch
and clock, automobile and testing
and certification.

The VTC also administers
apprenticeship and traineeship
schemes that offer school leavers
valuable choices to receive
systematic workplace training and
equip them with the competence
and know-how needed for their
professional development. For
instance, over 400 trainees were
registered in our pilot Traineeship
Scheme for the hairdressing and
beauty care industries during the
year under review. The Scheme
has now been further extended to
the retail and elderly care services
industries.
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In the 2014 Policy Address, the
Chief Executive of the HKSAR
proposed to strengthen career
guidance and life planning education
for secondary students, paving the
way for a significant step forward
in helping students learn about
their strengths, interests, skills
and the available education and
career options in their early years
of secondary education. In line
with the Government’s strategy, the
VTC has strengthened its efforts to
promote VPET in the community and
raise awareness and recognition
of VPET among students, parents,
teachers and schools through
outreach programmes.

During the year, over 400 talks
were arranged in some 260
secondary schools. A series of
activities was also organised to
enhance understanding of VPET
among secondary school principals
and teachers, including a career
masters’ reception, principals’
forums and visits.

In support of the Government’s
initiative to diversify the curricula
of senior secondary students, the
VTC has been offering a variety of
Applied Learning (ApL) programmes.
In 2014/15, the VTC offered nine
ApL courses for some 2,400
Secondary 5 students, providing
them with opportunities to explore
their career aspirations and
orientation for lifelong learning in
specific areas of study.
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To ensure equal access to VPET,
the VTC continued to offer different
programmes catering to ethnic and
disadvantaged minority groups,
non-Chinese speaking students
and young people with special
educational needs (SEN).

Since 2004/05, we have run
various vocational development
programmes targeting non-engaged
youth aged 14 to 24. In the past
year, more than 600 eligible youths
participated in these programmes.
We also collaborated with the Social

Welfare Department to offer about
800 training places in tailor-made
VPET programmes for residents of
the Tuen Mun Children and Juvenile
Home, as well as teaming up with
the Correctional Services and Social
Welfare Departments to provide
vocational training courses.

During the year, some 670 full-
time and 600 part-time places
were offered by the Shine Skills
Centre. Separately, about 880 SEN
students were enrolled into pre-
employment programmes such as
Degree, HD, Diploma of Foundation
Studies and Diploma of Vocational
Education offered by other VTC
member institutions. Adapted ApL
courses were also offered to about
110 senior secondary students with
intellectual disabilities.

About 20 dedicated full-time and
part-time VPET programmes are
offered for non-Chinese speaking
students to cater for their specific
needs. About 900 students were
enrolled into these programmes in
2014/15. Meanwhile, non-Chinese
speaking students enrolled in
other VPET programmes enjoyed
designated support services to help
them cope with study and adapt to
campus life.
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The VTC has assumed a strategic
role throughout in support of
the Government as regards the
development and implementation of
the Qualifications Framework (QF),
with a view to offering competency-
based VPET to Hong Kong people,
especially the young generation.

Aligning with the seven-level QF
platform, the VTC is committed to
mapping out learning articulation
and progression pathways to help
learners of different backgrounds
upgrade their levels, ranging from
pre-employment young people
to in-service practitioners. In
2014/15, a total of eight brand
new industry-specific programmes
were launched. These are based on
the Specifications of Competency
Standards and offered at various
QF levels, covering a variety of
industries including the automotive,
jewellery and retail sectors.

At the same time, the VTC has
strengthened its role in providing
competency assessment services
for different industries. Besides
administering a variety of trade
tests and vocational assessments
for various sectors, we have so
far given support to ten industries
by taking up a role as their single
Assessment Agency for conducting
the Recognition of Prior Learning
mechanism under the QF.

We take pride in the robust quality
assurance (QA) system, based on
a ‘fitness for purpose’ approach,
which helps ensure that our VPET
programmes and services are
meeting the evolving needs of local
industries and students. Meanwhile,
we proactively seek recognition
of our programmes from relevant
accreditation bodies as part of our
external QA procedure.

Over the year, the HTI, CCl and ICI
all successfully obtained Initial
Evaluation status at QF Level 4
from the HKCAAVQ. The HD in
Culinary Arts programmes offered
by ICI and CCIl have also been
granted local accreditation status.
Meanwhile, the Programme Area
Accreditation status of the HTI,
CCl, ICI, Maritime Services Training
Institute (MSTI) and Pro-Act Training
and Development Centres has been
successfully renewed for another
five years.

Five new Degree programmes
and two Professional Diploma
programmes have been accredited
by the HKCAAVQ and will be
launched in 2015/16.
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Research drives innovation and
develops new knowledge, thereby
improving people’s lives. To this
end, the VTC devotes considerable
efforts and resources to practical
social and industrial research
alongside the pursuit of educational
excellence.

To maximise our research impact,
we are keen to promote inter-
disciplinary research and focus
on areas where we have proven
strengths, namely VPET; social
innovation for an ageing population;
and environment and sustainability.
In 2014, we established a
research support unit to facilitate
collaboration between different

operational units and consolidate
our research efforts, particularly
in the area of practical social and
industrial research (PSIR).

During the year, we successfully
secured funding from external
sources for conducting PSIR. To
strengthen our staff research
capabilities, a series of research
skills training workshops and site
visits was arranged. The annual
PSIR Symposium also provided a
platform for researchers and VPET
practitioners to share knowledge
and gain insights into practical
technological research and VPET
trends from the scholars.
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Research Outcomes

In addition to arranging capability-
building activities, we conducted
several multi-disciplinary research
projects, including a smart
schoolbag and a smart healthcare
monitoring system. The smart
schoolbag was introduced in a bid
to help kindergarten and primary
school pupils develop the habit of
packing their schoolbags properly
every day. The smart healthcare
monitoring system, equipped with a
social robot, was developed by the
VTC’s Engineering Discipline and will
be showcased in the InnoCarnival
2015 organised by the Innovation
and Technology Commission.

Environment and sustainability,
along with the city’'s ageing
population, are also among our
current areas of strategic focus.

During the year, the THEI-HK Asphalt
Materials Centre was established
with funding from Hong Kong
Asphalt Green Limited to conduct
research into the development and
testing of construction materials.
THEI's research team and students
also applied sustainable fashion
concepts in transforming footwear
design. To address the needs of
the increasing number of senior
travellers, the VTC launched a cross-
disciplinary ‘Model Hotel Suite for
the Silver Hair Market’ project in
collaboration with the HTI and our
Design, Information Technology, and
Hotel, Service and Tourism Studies
Disciplines. Its aim is to explore
trends in the senior tourism market
in order to set out the framework for
an age-friendly hotel suite design.

METHE BERES

BMERAE N 28 THREZHE
BEMNARIER  BREERERS
Dok

MEEDERERE RS - TEE
BENNHEE/ NBELEERKETXR
WHEPHMRGTEIE - MAVICT
RERMAENRESERERER
RELELE R A - EERERIFHR
REXPAIFEHE T2 2015+
R o

IRIEHENFERRE LA AODEL
MAVICIHZEMER&EE - FA
VICERZERES GRIR) BRARIB
B - B 37 THEI-HKA B2 5841 L 25 o
D ENETEBREM R E
OB BB FE o b ¢ THEI Al A 7 82
BT ERENAIFEERESSE
WERBDR  EABERBERT L -
Bl & F K B i A = AN 4 hn i A5 2R
BFTESK - VICHIHTIEE R 51 « B &l
B FB S © RS Rk = &8
B1E WR—EBESRRE— [E
E—HRBIEER] - LI B ERE
FRATIRETISHNEE - UER
NEREFEMNBIEERSRFT AR -

SERVING
INDUSTRY
WITH EXPERTISE

EXEHR BRBXR

Cross-border Certification

The VTC provides vocational
assessment for various service
industries by making reference to
the Specifications of Competency
Standards drawn up by industries
under the QF. In 2013, the VTC built
upon its multipartite collaborations
to develop the ‘One Examination,
Multiple Certification” (OEMC)
System, with beauty care and
hairdressing industries as the pilot
industries.

During the year, over 220
candidates passed the examination
and were awarded certificates
recognised by Hong Kong, the
Mainland and overseas countries,
making them more competitive and
employable in the market. In early
2015, the System was extended
to the elderly care and printing
industries. In the year ahead, the
VTC will explore the possibility
of extending OEMC to other
industries such as procurement and
automobile.

In-service Training and
Consultation Services

In addition to promoting cross-
border certification, the VTC delivers
a wide range of in-service training
programmes to assist learners
in upgrading their academic
qualifications and professional
skills, thereby enhancing their
competitiveness.

The Institute of Professional
Education And Knowledge (PEAK)
provides quality training services for
in-service personnel, particularly in the
professional areas of such industries
as banking, finance, insurance and
information technology. Professional
consultancy services and tailor-
made corporate training courses are
also offered to private corporations,
public organisations and Government
departments in Hong Kong. The VTC
Tao Miao Institute, operated by PEAK,
offers professional education and
training programmes for practitioners
of the catering industry.
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UPGRADING
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The VTC continues to invest in
the development of its campuses
to ensure that they offer the best
possible learning and teaching
environment for students and staff,
equipping them with state-of-the-art
facilities to provide a high-quality
environment for nurturing skills and
talent.

A number of capital projects have
been undertaken including the
construction of a new campus for
the ICI in Pokfulam to groom talent
in the international culinary arts.
A new campus is also being built
for the THEI in Chai Wan, equipped
with modern facilities and designed
under a sustainable development
concept.

STATICN ﬁ__'.q-

The new THEi campus will be
completed by 2017. Its dynamic
and eco-friendly design has already
been received the Green Building
Award 2014 (New Buildings
Category - Building Projects under
Design). It has also been granted
a provisional Platinum Rating
under the Building Environmental
Assessment Method (BEAM Plus),
the highest environmental rating
possible.

A 12-storey student dormitory
at the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (IVE) Tsing
Yi will be completed by the end of
2015. Facilities such as common
rooms and activity rooms are being
incorporated into the building. This
will greatly enhance the campus life
experience for our students.
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In order to give students real-world
experience and make learning more
fun, we have integrated virtual
reality (VR) and other innovative
technologies into our campuses. A
new Retail Lab equipped with the
latest VR teaching and learning
system was set up at IVE (Haking
Wong) in February 2015. As well as
providing simulations of an actual
retail shop, the Lab is pioneering
applications of advanced technology
being used in the retail industry, e.g.
‘Smart Tray’. It offers an authentic
learning environment for the four
core sectors of Hong Kong’s retail
industry, namely supermarkets,
watches and jewellery, fashion and
accessories, and beauty care.

In addition, a Cloud Technology
Centre and Interactive Media Studio
have been set up on the campuses
of IVE (Chai Wan) and IVE (Sha Tin)
respectively. With facilities such as
these, students will be able to see
the relevance of what they learn and
at the same time hone their skills
practice.

Duality Building Award 2014 W
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During the year, the educational
training facilities and simulation
systems of the MSTI were also
upgraded with the aim of providing
the best possible support and
learning experience for students.

The VTC’s commitment to building
modern, world-class educational
facilities for its students has been
well recognised by the building
industry. During the year, The mega
campus of the HKDI and IVE (Lee
Wai Lee) won the Quality Excellence
Award and the Grand Award at
the Quality Building Awards 2014.
These biennial awards, supported
by all major players of the Hong
Kong building industry, give
public recognition to buildings of
outstanding quality, both public
and private, that demonstrate
outstanding teamwork.

RMEBERERESHEMEHTHE
HelARE  ZE2LESEENIER
HESRR SEREE®HK U
RIVE(ERFH) B [ ZEEBE | ©
2015 2R A HA T &HW
ERERSTHEYBELG - BB
BRTRBEERENES  BXE
HEEERBAEANMLERE @
HREHAMEE  NIEHABZERE
WA EERS SR BRET
% BRE - R MM ikE
EmEERES o

AN - IVE (4278 ) FIVE (AP ) 9 7Bl
R T EmBHER LR EEEER
Wi BT st R R E B

REEEGRIRT - WS FTEme
B o

FAHBPIMEA T MSTIRHE 5
BRI REAE G ARER
HELIERSLE  7TEEELE -

wcﬁﬁitLﬁﬂ/ﬁﬁmﬂ
M%) j%kaA/|qu°$
WIMM&NH?EﬁDKM&ﬁ
fEMEERENE2014] FEEF[E
BEBAE] R [EEREERE] W
THPREE - BIEME —ERFESD
TBREERAXNLE  §EXRE
BEHHMATLEREEEE  UNEH
FIE R EME B et E
BA~5 -

59



OouU

COLLABORATORS

.r.TWﬂ. ...
S

T o L B S

e 3

BUILDING TRUSTED

PARTNERSHIPS

=

{

£ 5

(=]

(=




62

EXPANDING LOCAL

LINKAGE
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Since its foundation, the
Vocational Training Council (VTC)
has been working closely with
the Government, business and
industry to ensure the workforce of
tomorrow has the skills to make a
difference. Through the provision of
relevant and high-quality vocational
and professional education and
training (VPET) programmes and the
transfer of knowledge to business

and industry, the VTC has made
a positive contribution to the
prosperity of Hong Kong.

In appreciation of the VTC’s
contributions, the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and
Medium Business presented the
SME Best Partner Award to the VTC
for the fifth consecutive year.
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Throughout the year, the VTC
continued to partner various non-
profit associations and companies
in the private sector to groom
tomorrow’s leaders.

One of these joint efforts is
the 'Careers China Project' in
collaboration with the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. Since 2004,
this job placement programme
has offered students valuable
opportunities to gain working

experience in various sectors in the
Mainland. The 'YIC Youth Education
Programme' organised by the Hong
Kong Young Industrialists Council
is another excellent example of
attachment opportunities offered
by VTC’s industry partners, through
which students are able to explore
their areas of interest and gain
practical experience in the working
environment.
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Staunch Industry Support

We also offer opportunities for
HD graduates in the Information
Technology (IT) Discipline of
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (IVE) to broaden their
work experience and skills through
the ‘Graduate Enhancement Training
Scheme for IT’. Supported by the
British Chamber of Commerce
in Hong Kong, the programme
provides selected IT graduates with
opportunities to join multinational
corporations such as Atos, British
Telecom, Cathay Pacific, CLP, The
Hong Kong Jockey Club, HSBC and
the Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer.

RABREXH

HMEIEEEEEN I - H1T
(BB EEARBEIEE]
MEBEEHE Z0 (IVE) EMEHT
BRNSANEEEABMAIIE
AR FIILE R AL - BB EEAE
A B B B A A 40 Atos ~ B E (S -
BRMZE - REEH BEESD
EL - URBUNEMBHRBERAE

= 35
B

=

Donations and
Sponsorships

During the past two years, we have
successfully raised over HK$60
million in donations through dollar-
for-dollar matching under the
Government’s Sixth Matching
Grant Scheme. This is the first
time the VTC has been included in
this scheme, bringing in additional
resources for the VTC Student
Development Foundation. The VTC is
immensely grateful to its supporters
who have been generously
supporting its academic and student
development or infrastructural
enhancement over the years.

Several new donations have been
received from some organisations
and charitable foundations during
the year. These include HSBC, which
is sponsoring a student development
programme, and Rotary International
District 3450, which is setting up
progression scholarships to support
the articulation of VTC students
through the vocational education
pathway. In addition, the Linda Yip
Charitable Foundation generously
supported this year’s Hong Kong
Design Institute (HKDI) Graduation
Show and has offered a total of six
scholarships for design students to
pursue further studies in School for
Higher and Professional Education
(SHAPE) Top-up Degree programmes.
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The CMA Industrial Development
Foundation of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong has also made a
welcome donation to set up its
first admission scholarship at the
VTC, so as to encourage HKDSE
holders to study Higher Diploma
(HD) programmes related to the
testing and certification industry.
And for the fourth consecutive
year, Hong Kong International
Theme Parks has supported 25
scholarships for students studying
hospitality, engineering or landscape
architecture at IVE and Technological
and Higher Education of Hong Kong,
in addition to providing invaluable
internship opportunities at Hong
Kong Disneyland.

e
B

On the international front, the
Alistair Harvey Foundation has
offered ten scholarships for
students in the Applied Science,
Engineering and IT Disciplines
to pursue degree studies at
universities in the United Kingdom.
Meanwhile the Esprit Cares Trust
and Shun Hing Education and
Charity Fund have each provided
travelling scholarships for IVE
and HKDI students to participate
in academic exchanges with
overseas institutes, while The
Muses Foundation for Culture and
Education Limited has supported
selected HKDI students to study in
Denmark and Switzerland.
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Honouring Industry
Achievers

Honorary Fellowship is the VTC’s
highest honour and is conferred on
outstanding individuals who have
made significant contributions to
the development of VPET or to the
community of Hong Kong; and have
a special affinity with the work and
values of the VTC.

In 2014/15, we celebrated the
creation of seven Honorary Fellows
at the 2014 VTC Graduation
Ceremony. They were:

- Mrs Katherine NGAN NG Yu-ying, JP
Vice President, May Cheong Toy
Products Factory Ltd

- Dr David PILSBURY
Deputy Vice-Chancellor,
International Development of
Coventry University,
United Kingdom

‘TLE |
GRADUATION

2 CEREMONY 20014

+ Ir Paul POON Wai-yin

Managing Director,
CLP Power Hong Kong Ltd

- Mr Graeme J READING

Founder, Café Deco Group

+ Ir Raymond SYNN Cheung

Director and General Manager,
Krueger Engineering (Asia) Ltd

- Ms Belinda YEUNG Bik-yiu

Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer,
Regal Hotels International

+ Mr YEUNG Koon-yat, BBS, MH

Founder and Master Chef of
Forum Restaurant and ‘Ah Yat
Abalone’
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FORTIFYING MAINLAND
CONNECTIONS
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The VTC aspires to become
a leading VPET provider in
the region. With this in mind,
we continued to build strong
relationships with the Central
Government, business and
academic institutions, boosting
our offerings as well as
generating opportunities for
collaboration and knowledge-
sharing during the year.
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Collaborative Agreements
and Training Programmes

Building on the success of its dual-
award HD in Electrical Engineering
(Electrical Services) programme
with Shenzhen Polytechnic, the
VTC continues to explore new
collaborations according to this
model.

In addition, we also joined hand
with Shenzhen Polytechnic to launch
the “Wan Ren Ji Hua” project,
a pilot exchange programme
supported by the Ministry of
Education to facilitate staff and
students’ exchange between the
two institutions.
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We also work closely with the
Guangdong Occupational Skill
Testing Authority to conduct
National Occupational Qualification
(NOQ) tests for students
in AutoCAD and Electrical
Maintenance. In 2014/15, over
100 students were awarded Level 4
Certificates and the aggregate
number of students to have taken
NOQ tests since 2003 has now
reached 4,800.

In addition, the VTC has been
making efforts to strengthen
its partnership with vocational
education institutions in Ningbo. In
August 2014, VTC representatives
participated in the Ningbo-Hong
Kong Education Cooperation Forum,
during which several Memoranda
of Understanding were signed
between the VTC and its Ningbo
counterparts.
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A summer industry attachment
programme for VTC students
was launched during the year
in collaboration with the Ningbo
Municipal Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau. VTC
students were given opportunities
to join the programme. Through
working in renowned companies in
Ningbo, they were able to learn from
different workplace cultures and
business practices.

Qingyuan in Guangdong Province
is another area where the VTC has
developed collaborative ties. The
city is home to the provincial level
vocational education training base
now under development, and a trip
to the base was led by the VTC
Chairman and Executive Director
in November 2014, during which
an agreement was signed with the
Qingyuan Municipal Government.
This new partnership could lead to
more collaboration opportunities
with VPET institutions in Qingyuan.
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Delegation Visits

In 2014/15, over 100 delegations
of Mainland officials and teachers
participated in VTC exchange
activities. In addition to hosting
exchange sessions, we signed a
Framework Agreement with the
Department of Education of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region in July
2014 to explore the feasibility of

jointly establishing a vocational
education centre under the Nanning
College for Vocational Technology.
This initiative creates an expanded
platform for staff and student
exchanges, workplace internships
and collaborative projects with
Mainland institutes.
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NURTURING ALL-ROUND
SKILLS AND

TALENTS
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To extend students’ learning
beyond the classroom and further
develop their potential, a series
of cross-campus projects has
been organised.

In 2014/15, some 12,000
Diploma of Foundation Studies
and Higher Diploma (HD) students
joined different projects according
to their personal interests and
developmental needs.
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Whole-person Development

‘Speak for Success’ programme
enhances students’ communication,
presentation and public speaking
skills. Over 1,100 students
participated in a series of inspiring
training programmes during the
year.

With sponsorship from The Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Charitable Trust,
the challenge-based programme
‘Road to Marathon’ offers students
an opportunity to challenge their
personal limits and hone their
resilience and perseverance
through long-distance running.
During the year, some 500
students received sponsorship
to participate in 28 long-distance
races. Among these, five students
who performed outstandingly were
offered sponsorship to participate
in the Gold Coast Airport Marathon
in Australia in July 2014; over 200
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (IVE) and Hong Kong
Design Institute (HKDI) students
participated in the Standard
Chartered Hong Kong Marathon
2015; and 18 members participated
in the New Taipei City Wan Jin Shi
Marathon in March 2015.
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Extensive Job Attachment
Opportunities

In addition to their whole-person
development programmes, students
of the VTC are afforded plenty of
opportunities to gain real-world
experience and practical skills in
the workplace. As a mandatory
component in the curricula of all HD
programmes, industry attachment
allows students to experience work
responsibilities and develop job
skills directly relevant to their future
employment. In 2014/15, about
9,000 students undertook industry
attachments during their studies.

Career Advisory and
Support Services

Through organising multi-faceted
programmes, the VTC is devoted to
giving full support to its students in
planning their future careers.

The structured whole person
development programme which is
incorporated into the curriculum
inculcates positive attitudes and
values with students and enhances
their soft skills, while the ‘Career
Booster’ programme targets
graduating students and helps
sharpen their interview skills for
further employment and studies.
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Student Achievements
and Awards

Business

ACCA Hong Kong Business
Competition 2014

e Champion
GOT Ho-lun, LAM Tsz-fung,
LO Long-ching and MA Chi-man
Department of Business
Administration, IVE (Kwun Tong)

e Best Presenter
LAM Tszfung
Department of Business
Administration, IVE (Kwun Tong)

Social Entrepreneur for Tomorrow
Award

e Champion
CHENG Ming-yan, HUI Ho-yin,
HO Tsz-kiu and TO Kin-wa
Department of Business
Administration, IVE (Kwai Chung)

Culinary

2014 MLA Pencil Box Culinary
Challenge

e Champion
LEE Zhi-cheng
Diploma in European Cuisine, ICI

e 1st Runner-up
Jaycee NG Yuen-yung
Diploma in European Cuisine, ICI

The 4th International Culinary
College Competition

e Best Dessert
Vicky YIP Pui-ki
Diploma in Bakery, Pastry and
Confectionery, HTI
Hugo WAN Tsz-yu
Diploma in European Cuisine, ICI
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Design
A&D Trophy Awards 2014

e Best of Category (Product
Design)
KWOK Yuen-kiu
Department of Product and
Interior Design, HKDI

The 7th International Design Awards:

Home Interior Products - Kitchen
Appliances

e Silver Award (Student Group)
CHAN Kung-chun
Department of Product and
Interior Design, HKDI

e

-
-

S— —— -

Hong Kong Fur Design Competition
2015

e Champion (Full Fur Category)
JIM Wing-yan
Department of Fashion and
Image Design, HKDI

The 8th Hong Kong Lighting Design
Competition

e Champion (Student Group)
LI Cui-en
Department of Product and
Interior Design, HKDI
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The 15th Footwear Design F 15 BB BEHANRELLE
Competition Hong Kong
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Information Technology Guangzhou / Hong Kong / Macao /  ZEF A

Chengdu Youth Skills Competition

Hong Kong ICT Awards 2015 2014 2015 BB EM R EA R &

* Gold Award (Children’s Shoes ERRK S (g A 2K 4G | A =4
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CHOI Hung-shing Invention (College and Post- Chloe CHAN [R5z78 ~ =2t - HER - BER

BEERTAE ) &R
Department of Fashion and 014 BB EERFT A RE graduate) Department of Applied Science, IVE (22 851) &AL B AR

Image Design, HKDI

Hong Kong Young Design Talent
Award 2014

e CreateSmart Young Design
Talent Special Award
Angus TSUI Yat-sing and
TSE Siu-shan
Department of Fashion and
Image Design, HKDI
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CHAN Ka-wing, WONG Ka-lok,
CHIU Sau-hing and TAM Hoi-kit
Department of Information
Technology, IVE (Lee Wai Lee)

Bronze Award, Best Student
Invention (College and Post-
graduate)

CHOW Wing-mei, FONG Ka-sin,
LAM Wing-yi and Rebekah LEE
Department of Information

IVE (Chai Wan)
Bachelor’'s Degree (Hons) in
Beauty and Health, SHAPE

Gold (Intelligent Home
Appliances Installation)

WONG Siu-hei, LEE Chun-him
and KWOK Wing-ki

Department of Engineering, IVE
(Tsing Yi)
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* Gold Award (Student Category) o EHEERE Asia Hair Masters Association o LHE(FERHER)
e My Favourite Microfilm Award T - 4th Hairstyling Award e Remarkable Youth Award W?’EF
Jimmy LEE Ping-chan, R T S0 s g LAM Chun-ho IVE (48) e R K
CHAN Chun-ying, Li Ka-lam, THEVE SRt 2 * Champion (Young Talent Group) Department of Business SHAPEQ%E@@K%@%E TE(7
WONG Wai-yee and BT RER SR LAU Kaho - Administration, IVE (Tsing Yi) 32
TONG Sin-tung Youth College (Hair Design)
Faculty of Design and © RBEERIEER e ¢R(EHFREFERLE
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Jessica ZHENG Bi-rong o (BEIS

Facglty of Design gnd M=

Environment, THEi IVE(BX)IFEEX

Programme of Introducing and
Demonstrating Earthquake
Engineering Research in Schools

e Most Creative Structural
(Engineering) Design

e Quake-Resistant Certificate
LAM Kin-yee, LEUNG Wai-yeung,
LI Wai-lok and YEUNG Chun-yin
Faculty of Science and
Technology, THEI
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Sports
USFHK Taekwondo Competition

e Champion (Featherweight
Category)
LO Wai-in
Department of Hotel, Service
and Tourism Studies,
IVE (Chai Wan)

e Champion (Lightweight Category)
WONG Ho-yin
Department of Hotel, Service
and Tourism Studies,
IVE (Chai Wan)

54th USFHK Annual Athletic Meet

e Champion (Men'’s Triple Jump)
WONG Chun-wing
Department of Hotel, Service
and Tourism Studies,

IVE (Chai Wan)

e Champion (Men’s 4 x 400m

Relay)

LEE Tsz-chun

Department of Business
Administration, IVE (Sha Tin)
LEE Chin-ting

Department of Engineering,
IVE (Lee Wai Lee) °
CHOI Ho-sing
Department of Business
Administration,

IVE (Haking Wong)

£2F
BERAEREHERBELE

BE (X TFEEPER)

ey

IVE (598)BJE - RIS MIREEE R
e (ZTFEERER)

LT

IVE (598)BJE - RIS MIREE R

BRAERBHEFE4ERAF

LEUNG King-hung EES

Department of Hotel, Service °
and Tourism Studies,
IVE (Haking Wong)

Hang Seng All Schools °
Championships 2015

e Champion (Men’s Table Tennis

BE(BF=MR)
=Ii&A
IVE (427&) 85 - BRIS R IREEE R

BB (BF4H4 x 400 KEHE)
=7
IVE(PH) IBEERR

Doubles) TR )

LEE Waiyuk IVE (R A)) TR
Department of Hotel, Service gg\}”i . .

and Tourism Studies, I\J/}EE(E?ERR) THEER

IVE (Chai Wan) REM B
NG Wingi L;‘E (BRH)BE - RS &k
Department of Business e

Administration, IVE (Tuen Mun) BB R 2015

BE(BFHEIEIREITE)
REE

IVE (&) BJE - BRIG R RiEEE R
RAE

IVE(FEF]) THERR

Dr Ng Tat-lun Memorial
Outstanding Students
Award Scheme

The VTC seeks to recognise
the outstanding achievement of
students and encourage them to
pursue excellence. During the year,
nine top students were presented
with the Dr Ng Tat-lun Memorial
Outstanding Students Awards in
recognition of their exceptional
performance in academic,
leadership, personal traits, extra-
curricular activities and community
services. They were:

Applied Science

e LI Ying-ching
Department of Applied Science,
IVE (Chai Wan)

e LO Ka-ki
Department of Applied Science,
IVE (Chai Wan)

e LO Lai-ka
Department of Applied Science,
IVE (Chai Wan)

vVTC

Business Administration

e CHEUNG Ho-man
Department of Business
Administration, IVE (Chai Wan)

e KWAN Man-ying
Department of Business
Administration, IVE (Tsing Yi)

Engineering

e LI Wai-lok
Department of Construction,
IVE (Tsing Yi)

e SIN Ting-kwan
Diploma of Foundation Studies
Programme - Engineering,
IVE (Chai Wan)

Information Technology

e CHAN Ka-wing
Department of Information
Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)

e CHAN Kai-wa
Department of Information
Technology, IVE (Tsing Yi)
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Student Statistics
B i mitER

Number of students of the VTC member institutions in 2014/15:

2014/15 F[E VIC #IEK B 24 A8 :

Member Institutions
BEHE
Technological and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong
EEREHENEER
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education, Hong Kong Design Institute,
School of Business and Information
Systems
EREXYBERR  BERAERTERR
ITREMERR
Youth College
BF2KR
Pro-Act Training and Development Centres
SHEIFRPO
Automobile JTEE £
Electrical S #42£
Electronics & 3
Fashion Textiles B 4h 4% 2
Gas TEEREIZ
Jewellery TRE 3
Mechanical ##3
Precision Engineering {57 T2 %
Printing E[JJfl|Z£
Welding (&4 %
Chinese Culinary Institute
hEFESR
Hotel and Tourism Institute
B E R ez 2 B
International Culinary Institute
B PR B 2R B
Maritime Services Training Institute
BEIIRERR
Institute of Professional Education And
Knowledge
B I EIS R
School for Higher and Professional
Education
EEEHEER
Integrated Vocational Development Centre
EMASRERPO
Shine Skills Centres
REEEERRF O
Total #H

AN

Type of Programmes REEME

Pre-employment B3 A(]

1,380

36,620

9,850

380

1,720

490

80

2,930

4,070

670

58,190

In-service Training 7EREIZ 3

150

88,880

3,830

9,510

1,050
3,410
560
2,020
340
210
680
350
110
780

1,040

4,150

970

3,680

85,350

1,900

3,100

600

203,160

Snapshots of Shining Students

28 &

LAU Ka-ho

Graduate of Diploma of Vocational
Education (DVE) in Hairdressing,
Youth College

LAU Ka-Ho is a talented student
who won the WorldSkills Hong
Kong 2014 Hairdressing Trade
Competition. He participated in
the ‘Asia Hair Masters Association
— 4th Hairstyling Award’ the same
year in Taiwan, competing with
representatives from six Asian
countries, and was champion of
the Young Talent Group. In August
2015, he will represent Hong Kong
in the 43rd WorldSkills Competition
held in Sao Paulo, Brazil.

Angus TSUI Yat-sing
Graduate of Higher Diploma in
Fashion Design, HKDI

Angus TSUI has won awards in
various design competitions, local
and international, including the
Design Student of The Year Award
2013 and the CreateSmart Young
Design Talent Special Award in the
Hong Kong Young Design Talent
Award 2014. He also received a
HKSAR Government Scholarship
and a Li Po Chun Charitable Trust
Fund Overseas Postgraduate
Study and Professional Training
Scholarship in 2013 for academic
excellence. After graduating from

Kays KWONG

Graduate of Diploma in Elementary Chinese Cuisine, CCI

2=
BEEERBEURRRE (BERE)
X4

BFIE2MN2014EBE FREEAE -
BEBREMKBEZEEENER
Ez— BAELeaE2MI M
ERBMRpE - FHEEERR
AT EHRENEEMBERAETF
Re - EIHGZ2248] RAML -
FEBTERS - 2015F8 A @ b5
REEBLEBEAERESF43)E
HREFREARE o

HKDI, Angus furthered his studies
at Nottingham Trent University, UK,
where he earned a bachelor degree
in Fashion Design. In 2014, he
established his own ANGUS TSUI
brand.

R B

CCIRTEBREREE

HKDI B2
EE4E

HRrF TN L REEER & AR
& b B R 4% - B 1F [Design
Student of The Year Award
2013 M [BABFRABE
2014—BIEEEBTFRF &
BRIEE | - 20134  LIABRE
¥KE - EERBRFRBTRE
ERFEBRREESETES 8
riE R BEIET| 2 S o HEHKDI
2XR REARIAEBTEE
R NBEE RS BUSHER
FHE 4 EA7 - 2014 F F Al A
Afmh® ANGUS TSUI »

Jil4

stERSURRE

- -

Pt e e i i 1|
7 T T

Lol

Kays KWONG is passionate about Chinese cuisine and
graduated from the CCI in 2013 with very commendable
results. During her studies at CCI, she received many
awards including the Chan Tung Memorial Award, Rudy
Choy Educational Fund Award and Disney Scholarship. In
2014, Kays was first runner-up in the Dim Sum Talented
Chef Competition 2014 organised by The Peninsula Hong
Kong, and hence gained an apprenticeship to work in The
Peninsula’s Dim Sum Department.

EIFAEM O ERZ - 2013 FLAE
EREEENPEFESER - £8
MBS ZERIE - 2EREL
S EKEBREEEES BT
B#EES -2014F  BHANME
BEEBIER [ 5 F RO PRE
B BEGE WEBEERAR
DERE  ERAB EHEEEKE -
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STRENGTHENING
BONDS WITH

ALUMNI

RERERRNE

The VTC constantly endeavours to
strengthen bonds with its alumni.
Through integrated communication
channels, social platforms and
alumni portal, we continued
during the year to enhance our
alumni network and facilitate
the involvement of alumni in its
development.

One of our aims is to foster the
culture of giving back to the VTC
among alumni. In the past year,

many alumni with distinguished
career achievement have returned
to their alma mater to support
the current students through
different volunteer activities
such as experience-sharing and
mentoring, as well as providing
career guidance, internship and
employment opportunities. We also
launched a flagship ‘Young Alumni
Protégé’ programme to enlist the
support of outstanding alumni and
provide career guidance for their
younger counterparts.

VIC — BRAE R MO % T fF o 8
A RS A S EREEE it
R & R - RERTAE
% BB RERREED -

BMALEES RIEERKEEVIC
B S{E - R R ELEIE - TR
TEEBEBRHIRKERER &
BEELERARB I FRE2PEK - A
MEHDF - AIREE - A REH
EXEE EERER#KEeE
179 58 4 H 7 A& 51 2 [ Young Alumni
Protégé | * B R K BEREE
REILS - IRIEBRE -

DEVELOPING

A CULTURE
OF EXCELLENCE

HEHE @XM

Striving to nurture a skilled and
quality workforce in support of the
sustainable development of Hong
Kong, the VTC has continued its
efforts to enhance staff capability
while rewarding excellence.

Capability Building

Throughout the year, the VTC
provided a broad range of
development activities and events
for staff at all levels, such as
familiarisation visits, knowledge
exchange programmes, international
collaborations and local and
overseas attachments. Thousands
of staff members have also been
involved in the implementation
of staff development plans of
various formats for strategic local

and regional development, or
participated in exchange initiatives
to broaden their intellectual horizons
and strengthen their international
capabilities.

Staff Statistics

During the past year, recognition
was given to 29 staff members for
their 30 years of dedicated service
to the VTC. A further 96 and 225
staff were commended for having
completed 25 and 20 years of
service respectively.

As at 31 March 2015, there were
5,890 full time staff in the VTC,
comprising 3,740 teaching and
administrative staff and 2,150
technical and supporting staff.

VIC BIFiERKEM - TERAET
HBEEAE REBTae HEHED
BB EHERE -

BEEBEEIEH

FRVIC A TR E T8
ZHEMNERTE pEHEER .
R~ B HBIE - At Ko
BEEE - MIBABUATEHET
HEL2EIRATLANBERES A
VTC FA 7N F0 98 K [ 9 2R BE 2% & )
—9Dh BIXRBREIREL
BRRSR  RBAS® HBERES
REB{LBZ o

EIZEHF

EF - BMBEBERIREET 29 4
fEVIC B REZEIOFHEL ©
#4896 LB THR# 25 F - 225 L
BT RS 20 F - FERE -

HE2006F3 A31 B VICHE
580X FWET - EFEIE3,740%
HERITHRAB 2,150 & 1T &
HENAR o
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Teaching Excellence
Award

Our Teaching Excellence Award
was established to give recognition
to outstanding teachers while
promoting the sharing of best
practices in teaching. The recipients
for 2014 were:

Award for Face-to-face Teaching

e Ms Jenny CHAN Kay
Instructor, HTI

e Dr Dani WANG Danping
Assistant Professor, School
of General Education and
Languages, THEI

e Mr Teddy WONG Chun-ki
Lecturer, Student Development
Office, Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (IVE) (Sha
Tin)

e Mr KAM Kai-yin
Instructor, Integrated Vocational
Development Centre (Ma On
Shan)

Award for Pastoral Care

e Ms Angela WONG Sze-ki
Lecturer, Department of
Business Administration, IVE
(Kwai Chung)

e Mr Eddy HUI Shun
Associate Professor, Faculty of
Design and Environment, THEi

e Ms Joanne KWOK Chi-wing
Teaching Associate, Language
Centre, IVE (Kwun Tong)

e Ms Carmen WONG Pui-yan
Lecturer, Department of Applied
Science, IVE (Sha Tin)

Award for Work Placement

e Mr Racky CHAN Kit-man
Senior Lecturer, Department
of Communication Design and
Digital Media, Hong Kong Design
Institute (HKDI)

e Ms Jessica HO Yuk-ching
Lecturer, Department of
Communication Design and
Digital Media, HKDI

e Ms Cherine WONG Cheuk-yan
Lecturer, Department of
Communication Design and
Digital Media, HKDI
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PROMOTING GOOD
CORPORATE
CITIZENSHIP

RFELEERE

The VTC places much emphasis
on corporate social responsibility
and environmental protection. In
2014/15, we proactively fulfilled
our social responsibilities by
carrying out a number of activities
to promote giving back to the
community and a caring culture.

Giving Back to
the Community

We encourage our staff and
students to participate in voluntary
and community activities to
cultivate a strong sense of social
responsibility. During the year, over
14,600 VTC students and staff
participated in a city-wide Volunteer
Movement project organised by the
Social Welfare Department.

In addition, our students actively
participated in various community
events such as the Hong Kong
Special Olympics, Hong Kong
Flower Show and the ‘Walkathon for
Brightness’ organised by the Hong
Kong Blind Sports Federation. Some
THEI students also took part in the
‘Bridge to China’ Project, helping
the needy by constructing bridges
and buildings in rural China.

The VTC also supported the
Hong Kong Association of Senior
Citizens in co-organising its second
Grandparents’ Day. This event is

intended to honour grandparents,
encourage families to connect
across the generations, and
advocate filial piety.

In recognition of our commitment
to corporate social responsibility,
we were awarded the ‘10 Years
Plus Caring Organisation’ mark
during the year. Our Peer Counselor
Association registered under the
VTC Alumni Services was also
named Champion of the Open Group
in the 2014 Volunteer Movement
Video Contest, aimed at showcasing
the spirit of volunteerism and
inspiring more people to become
volunteers.
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Green Initiatives Boost
Environmental Awareness

The VTC attaches great importance
to sustainable development
and environmental protection. A
green building feasibility study
commenced during the year to
benchmark some existing VTC
campuses against environmental
and sustainable guidelines set
out in the ISO 50001 Energy
Management System certification
and Building Environmental
Assessment Method (BEAM Plus),
a renowned tool for evaluating

=

the environmental performance
of buildings in Hong Kong. This
will enable the VTC to upgrade its
campuses in a sustainable way,
taking into account their structural
limitations and available VTC
resources.
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Resource Conservation
and Waste Recycling

At the same time, the VTC is
committed to reducing its energy
consumption, increasing efficiency
and minimising waste. In pursuit of
these goals, we actively encourage
and facilitate all members of
VTC to participate in different
energy conservation campaigns
and environmental protection
programmes.

In order to promote a ‘use less,
waste less’ culture in pre-primary
education, our Child Education
Centre for Teaching and Learning
of IVE's Department of Childcare,
Elderly and Community Services
collaborated with the Environmental
Protection Department to launch
the pilot school campaign
‘Prevention First before Reuse
and Recycling’ in December 2014,
aiming to introduce a systematic

environmental protection package to
nursery schools and kindergartens.
As part of this initiative, 50
participating schools were supplied
with education packages on waste
reduction, as well as a tailor-
made interactive recycling bin
to assist teachers in promoting
environmental education in their
schools in a creative way.

Recognising these efforts in
environmental protection and
supports for waste recycling,
the VTC has won the ‘Friends of
Ecopark’ award for the past four
years and been honoured with a
Gold Award, Excellence Award and
Cleanliness Award in the schools
category of the Yan Oi Tong Plastic
Recycling Partnership Scheme
2014/15. IVE (Tsing Yi) and IVE
(Tuen Mun) were named 1st and
2nd runners-up respectively in the
Biggest Unit Saver Award (School)
category of the Power Smart Energy
Saving Contest 2014.
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

= ERR B

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year 2014-15 presenting the operating
results and financial position of the Council and its
subsidiaries (the Group) for the year. Total income of
HK$4,705.6M (2013-14: HK$4,455.2M) and total
expenditure of HK$4,301.2M (2013-14: HK$4,133.8M)
were reported.

Operating Results

Out of the total income of HK$4,705.6M, HK$2,770.4M
was government subventions, HK$1,694.6M was tuition
fees and training charges, HK$240.6M was interest
income and other income. As compared with 2013-14, the
increase in income was mainly attributed to the increase
in government subventions largely for pay adjustments,
increase in tuition fees income and donation income.

Total expenditure of HK$4,301.2M incurred in the year
included staff expenses of HK$3,165.0M and other
operating expenses of HK$1,136.2M. The increase in
expenditure was mainly due to the increase in operating
expenses for degree programmes, increase in staff
expenses resulting from pay adjustments, increase in
student development activities, scholarship to students and
trainee allowance under Earn and Learn Pilot Schemes.

The financial result of the subsidiaries showed total income
of HK$831.8M and total expenditure of HK$771.5M. The
Group as a whole achieved savings of HK$404.4M, reported
as surplus for the year 2014-15, of which HK$253.3M was
transferred to the Council’s Reserves for implementation of
new initiatives and other developments.
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Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2014-15, a total of HK$426.2M was incurred
on building programmes and capital items. These projects
included the construction of Technological and Higher
Education Institute of Hong Kong campus in Chai Wan,
student dormitory in Tsing Yi, and International Culinary
Institute in Pokfulam, as well as other alterations, additions
and improvement projects.

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015 are set out in the
following pages.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
HE 2015 F3 A31 HIEFENGSEZEHNWER

INCOME

Government Subventions

Tuition Fees and Training Charges
Interest Income

Donations

Other Income

Total Income
EXPENDITURE

Staff Expenses

Full-time Staff Expenses
Part-time Staff Expenses
Temporary Staff Expenses
Other Staff Expenses

Other Operating Expenses
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books

Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses

Hire of Services and Professional Fees
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities

Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses
Staff Development and Visits

Other Expenses

Total Expenditure
Surplus before taxation
Taxation

SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

TRANSFER TO:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

LON

R
SENRIZER
FLEHA
1B
HAdA
DN

X

ETRX

PHETIHRY
BB THY
FeRE B ThiS
HMETHX

HittEERx

EREYSm  REMEE
&Rt M ERRERX
BEXRBEH

2L/ BEMB MRS
JIREEE/ —REEEMAX
BTk AR

HAFEs

X HARER
BREUAT B R
BiE

REERBBRREHKERE

BERE
(Eka
BERGREMES

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,770,407 2,672,760
1,694,634 1,578,661
70,905 58,066
39,052 25,478
130,614 120,261
4,705,612 4,455,226
2,757,419 2,726,552
112,520 110,107
269,673 222,367
25,405 23,768
3,165,017 3,082,794
283,466 271,158
541,066 510,015
59,705 53,025
87,091 60,573
33,056 5,2
18,347 16,837
113,473 104,083
1,136,204 1,051,003
4,301,221 4,133,797
404,391 321,429

- 1

404,391 321,428
253,276 214,428
151,115 107,000
404,391 321,428

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore, the
Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Assets

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets
Deposits

Bank Deposits with Maturity over One Year

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Other
Receivables

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable within One Year
Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 10 August 2015

72015 68 A 10 H
REBXIIREEES LR EER

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
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2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,425,259 2,264,050
1,738 1,313
- 9,093
5,137 5,424
- 200,000
2,432,134 2,479,880
926 1,217

9,132
132,019 77,044
4,711,307 3,850,496
706,417 791,200
5,559,801 4,719,957
1,149,205 1,040,689
386,652 469,810
2,745 2,631
306,306 283,925
1,844,908 1,797,055
3,714,893 2,922,902
6,147,027 5,402,782
10,449 7,050
427,148 179,673
1,437,953 1,348,973
1,875,550 1,535,696
4,271,477 3,867,086
264,499 266,006
4,006,978 3,601,080
4,271,477 3,867,086
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THE COUNCIL
BEINRDESS

As at 31 March 2015
HZE2015F 3 A31H

Chairman
Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Deputy Chairmen

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP
Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Members

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Ir Daniel CHENG Man-chung, MH, JP

Mr Locky CHU Kwan-lam, MH

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Mr Ronald LAM Siu-por

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui

Mr Bruce POH Geok-huat

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Mr Larry TCHOU Ming-kong

Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Commissioner for Labour (or his representative)
Mr Donald TONG Chi-keung, JP

Director-General of Trade and Industry (or his representative)
Mr Kenneth MAK Ching-yu, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

*E
PREE{1E L, SBS, JP
EESE

fE5FE L, BBS, JP
B A A, BBS, JP

Z£8

PR IE 22445, BBS

BREE Lt

B3 B8 T 2R, MH, JP

KRIMITE , MH

IR+

BPIF (B TF2Rm, JP

AR e

Z2REN S E , MH

hAaeZ T

EERELA

e MBIt

REsZI %4 |, BBS, JP

BEELE

KRERE

BERAE A

HE REMER (HERRK)
B, JP

BTEER(HERR)
A, JP

THEEFEER (HERRK)
BIEFEAE, P

BEJImPNTHSE
TEBXREFL, GBS, JP

COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEINFRREZERETEES

An Overview of Committees and Boards (as at 31 March 2015)

ZETRIIKREESHE (BE2015F3H31H)

VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL B ¥R B EEE

Standing Committee E& £

=&

Administration Committee THZ E &

Audit Committee BiZZE
Estates Committee EXEIEELE
Finance Committee 81 1§Z&

==
5 &

Training Boards

dREE S

Accountancy Training Board
etglazae

Automobile Training Board

AEENREES

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board
RITReRFIRES S

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board
EREEIREZEG

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board
TARTRERBEXIREES

Chinese Cuisine Training Institute Training Board
PEFESGIIREE S

Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board
KETRXIIREES

Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board
BrEREMEIREES

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board
BIESE  RERERIREXIIREES
Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board
HAQRMEENREER

Insurance Training Board

RERFEIRZESR

Maritime Services Training Board
BERBEIREE S

Mass Communications Training Board
AREREXIREZE S

Metals Training Board

e3 IS0

Plastics Training Board

BEEGEER

Printing and Publishing Training Board

ENffl % MR IR E B &

Real Estate Services Training Board
EiERGEIREE S

Retail Trade Training Board
TEFIREES

Security Services Training Board
RERBHEIREES

Textile and Clothing Training Board
PR R FNREES S

Transport Logistics Training Board
VREERIREES

General Committees
—REEE

Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing
BRIRERAEBREES

Committee on Information Technology Training and Development

AR IREREZE S

Committee on Management and Supervisory Training
EERETIREE S

Committee on Technologist Training

RANFIRE B &

Committee on Vocational Training for People with Disabilities

ERATREIREZR S
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
REINGRREZIRETEZES

Standing Committee
BHBEEY

Chairman
Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Members

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP

Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Mr Locky CHU Kwan-lam, MH

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP

Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming

Mr Stanley LAU Chin-ho, SBS, MH, JP

Dr Joseph LEE, GBS, JP

Dr Carrie WILLIS, SBS, JP

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kenneth WONG Lai-yin
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEINFRREZERETESS

Administration Committee
THZEES

Chairman
Mr Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP
Members

Ms Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Ir Daniel CHENG Man-chung, MH, JP

Mr LEUNG Kai-lik, MH

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Dr William YIP Wing-tat
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COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
REINGRREZIRETEZES

Audit Committee
EREET

Chairman
Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Ms Winnie NG Wing-mui
Mr Larry TCHOU Ming-kong
Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming

Mr Kennedy LIU Tat-yin

Estates Committee
EXEIBEEET

Chairman
Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP
Members

Prof Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS

Dr Jacob KAM Chak-pui

Mr Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP

Mr Eric YIM Chi-ming

Mr Martin N HADAWAY, JP

Director of Architectural Services (or his representative)
Mr Anthony LEUNG Koon-kee, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr WONG Fun-bor
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FE
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KRR A4 |, BBS, JP
BUERAE A
BEESEAE, P
EEREZER (HERR)
REESE, JP
BEJIMENTHE
T2 REEL, GBS, JP

BIXE
BERIEE

COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES
BEINFRREZERETESS

Finance Committee
HHEEET

Chairman
Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, BBS, JP
Members

Mr Conrad WONG Tin-cheung, BBS, JP

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP

Ms Samanta PONG Sum-yee

Mr Tony TAI Chark-tong

Deputy Secretary for Education (or his representative)
Mr Brian LO Sai-hung, JP

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council
Dr Carrie YAU, GBS, JP

Elected Staff Member

Mr Kenneth YAM Chi-kin
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Accountancy Training Board
gt XIREESG

Chairman
Mr Terence CHEUNG Kwong-tat
Members

Dr Eva CHAN Yee-wah

Mr Francis CHENG Man-piu

Mr CHIANG Sham-lam

Prof Stella CHO LUNG Pui-lan

Mr CHOW Chun-keung

Dr Alice CHUI Pui-ling

Mr Dennis CHUNG Chuen-on

Dr Sammy FUNG Lai-kin

Dr John FUNG Yat-chu

Mr Nelson LAM Chi-yuen

Mr Alex LIU Mang-hung

Ms Rhoda LIU Mei-ling

Mr Roy LO Wa-kei

Ms Cathy NG

Ms Brenda NG Wai-po

Mr Richard TSE Kin-pang

Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung

Representative of the Director of Accounting Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EZEGN—REET

Automobile Training Board
AEXEIKREZEE

Chairman
Mr LEUNG Tat-ming
Members

Mr CHAN Hon-hung

Mr lan CHAN Wai-hung

Mr Frank CHEUNG Chun-hung

Mr Frank FUNG Kwok-chu

Mr KWOK Kai-shing

Mr LAM Tin-fu

Mr Marcus LAM Yat-nam

Mr Ted LAU Kai-sing

Mr LIU Keung

Ir Madison TANG Wing-hong

Mr YIM King-lun

Representative of the Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Commissioner for Transport

Representative of the Director of Environmental Protection

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Banking and Finance Industry Training Board

RIThEMEINIREZES

Chairman FE

Mr David KWOK Sek-chi HHERE

Members £8

Mr Jeffrey CHAN BRI B A

Prof CHAN Ka-lok PR LEZIX

Mr Steve CHIU HNERE

Mr Ivan LAM Wai-hang MERLE

Mr LEE Huat-oon Mr LEE Huat-oon

Ms Candy LEUNG Suk-ching 2R E 2+

Mr Anthony NG Tze-wai RFBEEE

Mr Patrick POON Mo-yiu ERERE

Mr Anthony Ward RUSHTON Mr Anthony Ward RUSHTON

Ms Jennifer SHUM Wan-ling LRI At

Mr Thomas TSUI Chun-man RIRSCE A

Ms Amy WONG Lai-wah =EENL

Representative of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong ERCRERBRARAR
Monetary Authority

Representative of the Chairman of the Securities and BANHEERERZSESIFRE
Futures Commission

Representative of the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong EHET B RIEEFRARATTRESLE

Exchanges and Clearing Limited
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

BEIRBATHERE

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Beauty Care and Hairdressing Training Board

ERERIREEE

Chairman
Mr PANG Kam-chiu
Vice-Chairlady

Ms Juliana YANG Hui-chun

Members

Ms Sindy CHAN Mei-heung

Ms Jessica CHAN Yuen-ying

Ms Liza CHEUNG

Ms Frances CHIU Siu-ling

Mr Jacky CHOI Ho-sang

Ms Candy CHU Chi-ping

Ms Mandy CHU Chor-man

Ms Doris FU Ka-yin

Ms Ann HAU Kam-sheung

Ms Amy HUI Wai-fung

Ms April LAU Yuk-tong

Ms Sara LAW Siu-wa

Mr Ray NG Koon-ting

Ms Carmen PANG Yuk-ling

Ms Elsa PUN Pui-fun

Mr William TANG Wai

Mr Thomas WONG Kwok-wah

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Consumer Council

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Building and Civil Engineering Training Board

IAIEREBREZRIREZES

Chairman

Mr Eddie LAM Kin-wing (since 1 May 2014)

Members

Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan

Ir Kenneth CHAN Sheung-yan

Mr Anthony CHAN Yiu-tung

Ir Dr CHENG Yung-ming

Ir Adam CHQY Siu-chung

Ir CHUNG Koon-man

Mr IP Kai-yin

Sr Raymond KAM Ka-fai

Prof LO Siu-ming

Ir MAK Shu-hei

Mr Peter NG Yau-yee

Ir Derrick PANG Yat-bond

Mr Kyran SZE

Mr Hermes WONG Kin-sun

Mr WONG Ping

Ir Andy YIU Chi-sang (since 1 May 2014)

Representative of the Secretary for Development

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Director of Housing

Representative of the Director of Buildings

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Chinese Cuisine Training Institute Training Board
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Chairman
Mr Stanley HUI Hon-chung, JP
Vice-Chairmen

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, BBS, JP
Mr YEUNG Wai-sing, MH

Members

Mr Freddy CHEUNG Shing-fat
Mr Eric CHIU
Mr Peter CHIU
Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip
Mr KWOK Wang-hing
Mr LEE Man-sing
Mr LEUNG Fai-hung
Mr James LI Kwok-yee
Mr Anthony LOCK Kwok-on
Dr SU Jing
Mr TAM Siu-sing
Mr James TUNG Pui-chuen
Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen
Mr Kenneth YONG Teng-wei (up to 22 November 2014)
Representative of the Secretary for Labour and Welfare
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Electrical and Mechanical Services Training Board
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Chairman
Ir Raymond SYNN Cheung

Members

Ir Weller CHAN Kwok-wai (since 1 May 2014)

Mr CHAN Yun-fu

Ir Dr CHUNG Wai-nang

Mr KWAN Sun-chuen

Ir Dr Joseph LAl Hung-kit

Mr LAl Wah-hing

Mr Anthony LAU Siu-hung

Mr Fernando LEUNG Chung-fai

Mr MAK Chi-chui

Ir Dr Philip PONG Wing-tat

Ir Raymond TAM Siu-lun

Ir TO Wang-kam

Ir James TO Wing-ming

Ir TO Yip-lam

Ir Gilbert TSANG Hing-cheung

Mr YIU Chow-leung

Mr YU Hing-wai

Representative of the Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board

EFEKRERXIREZET

Chairman

Mr Johnny YEUNG Chi-hung, MH
Vice-Chairman

Mr Christopher TSE Hung-keung
Members

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong

Mr CHEUNG Hok-yin

Mr Kenny CHEUNG

Dr Measure HUNG Kim-fung

Mr KWAN Man-lung

Ir Ricky KIWONG Wai-chuen

Dr LAM Hiu-fung

Ir Wicky LAW Man-hoi

Mr Sylvian LEE Chi-hung

Mr LEUNG Ding-kau

Dr LO Tai-chin

Mr MA Fung-on

Prof Philip MOK Kwok-tai

Ir Johnny POON Chung-yin

Mr William TSE Wing-nam

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry

Representative of the Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services

Representative of the Director-General of Communications

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Hotel, Catering and Tourism Training Board

BIEE - RBERIRERINKREZE G

Chairman

Mr Larry TCHOU Ming-kong

Vice-Chairman

Mr Michael LI Hon-shing, BBS, JP

Members

Mr Urs Viktor BESMER

Mr Mark HEYWOOD (up to 31 July 2014)

Mr Stephen CHAN Choy-wing

Mr Kenneth FAN (up to 19 April 2014)

Ms Cecilia HO

Mr Kevin KAM

Mr Lawrence KOO Kin-yip

Ms Rebecca KWAN

Ms Lavinia LAU

Mr Paul LEUNG Yiu-lam

Mr Wallace LI Chin-hung (since 1 August 2014)

Prof Bob MCKERCHER

Mr Anthony PANG

Mr James TUNG Pui-chuen

Mr Cramond WONG Yiu-cheung

Mr Wilson WU Wai-tsuen

Mr Joseph YUNG

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Commissioner for Tourism

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Import/Export/Wholesale Trades Training Board

HAORMEXRNRES S

Chairman

Mr Benson PAU Kit-kwan
Vice-Chairman

Dr Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP
Members

Mr Joe CHAU Kwok-ming

Mr Raymond CHOY Wai-shek, MH, JP

Dr Dominic CHU

Ms Florence FUNG Ka-pik

Ms Carrie LAU Ka-wai

Mr Wilson LEE

Mr Stephen LIANG (up to 24 August 2014)

Mr LO Kai-sing

Mr Vincent MA

Prof NGAI Wai-ting

Mr PAK Kwok-ming

Mr Byron WONG Tsz-wan

Mr Desmond YAU

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Insurance Training Board
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Chairlady FE

Mrs Agnes KOON WOO Kam-oi EtieE Lt
Members Z£8

Ms Charity AU B 2 I 22+

Mr Patrick CHAN Chi-kong PBRETIARAE

Mr CHEUNG Yiu-kwong SRIB ST

Mr LAM Fuk-ming MiEEREE

Mr Dominic LAM Wai-kuen, MH MERESE, MH

Mr Thomas LEE Mun-nang ZmEES A

Mr Andy MA BEELAE

Mr Jimmy POON Wing-fai BB L

Dr Gollum SHAU Kwok-lam hEIMIE

Mr Clement SHUM Chun-yau SHRER A

Mrs Michelle TEASEL Mrs Michelle TEASEL
Mr Lewis TSE Kwok-po HHEE LA

Mr WONG Yuk-loi =EEREA

Mr Allan YU Kin-nam RiEEELE
Representative of the Commissioner of Insurance RERFEEREESREK
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour BITRERRE

Representative of the Managing Director of BHIMEAEEEEERANITESEAE
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
Representative of the Executive Director of BEIERBATHSNKE

the Vocational Training Council
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Maritime Services Training Board
BERGEIREZES

Chairman
Mr Arthur BOWRING
Members

Ms Yvette CHAN Yuk-lin

Mr FAN Keung

Capt LI Chi-wai

Mrs LUK FUNG Yim-to

Mr Nelson NG Siu-yuen

Dr Kelvin PANG Ka-liong

Capt Ben WONG Kam-fai

Mr David WONG Yui-cheong

Capt WU Kwok-hau

Capt YIP Kwok-lee

Representative of the Director of Marine

Representative of the Commissioner of Police

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Mass Communications Training Board
AREBEEEIGREZES

Chairlady
Ms Bianca MA Kin-san
Members

Mr Rico CHAN Kai-to

Ms Maria CHEUNG Yat-sum

Ms Bonnie CHIU Lai-yu

Mr CHIU Wai-piu

Mr DAI Chi-kit

Dr FU King-wa

Mr Keith KAM Woon-ting

Mr Ross LAI

Dr Sam LAM Wun-sum

Mr Terence LEE Chi-hang

Mr LEUNG Kam-hung

Mr POON Siu-kuen

Mr Edgar SO Kai-chi

Ms Simone TAM Jing-kiu

Mr Terence TUNG Siu-ho

Prof David WONG Chun-tung

Mr WONG Wing-hang

Mr YEUNG Kin-hing

Mr Patrick YU Kin-wah

Mr YUEN Chi-wai

Representative of the Director of Broadcasting

Representative of the Director of Information Services

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Metals Training Board
ETBEIREZEG

Chairman
Dr Dennis NG Wang-pun, BBS, MH
Members

Dr Sunny CHAI Ngai-chiu

Ir Dr CHAN Luen-chow

Mr Peter CHAN Wing-yun
Ms Grace CHO (since 1 May 2014)
Mr Vincent KONG Hon-po
Mr Jimi KWOK Ngok-wing
Mr Daniel LAI Poon-shing
Dr Henry LAU Ying-kei

Ir Thomas LEE Kwok-keung
Mr LEE Yuen-fat

Mr Moses LEUNG Fai-man
Ms Irene LEUNG Wing-yan
Mr Ben NG Ka-yan

Mr SIN Kam-leung

Mr YU Man-pui

Mr YU Tak-ming

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry
Representative of the Executive Director of

the Vocational Training Council

*E
R 7R L, BBS, MH
£8

ERHBIELT
PREGME L - TI2AD
PREEAR A

EAM T+ (20145 A1 Hi#E)
TER LA

SRR

BB

D eI T
258 T 2R
BIRBRAE

PRE

REKA T

RRLEEE

IR A

RXIFRE

RIEALE
THEBESEBRAER
BEJIMEPATHERR

| 117



118 |

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Plastics Training Board
BREXINGREZES

Chairman
Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tat-choi
Members

Ms CHAN Man-chi
Mrs Augusta CHEUNG, BH
Dr CHIN Kwai-sang
Mr CHONG Chiu-ping
Mr CHOW Hon-kong
Dr CHUNG Sai-wing
Prof David LAM Chuen-chun
Mr Leton LEE Yuk-pui
Mr LEUNG Tin-fu
Mr Derek LOUIE Chi-hang
Mr Andy NG Ka-ho
Mr Warren SUN Yung-liang
Mr Eric SUN Yung-tson
Ms WU Mi-tak
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Printing and Publishing Training Board
R KR EREINREZES

Chairman

Mr YAN Tak-chung
Vice-Chairman
Dr LEE Ka-kui
Members

Mr Edmund CHAN Ka-yeung
Mr Eric CHAN Tad-kin
Mr FUNG Man-ching
Ms Rebecca KWONG Kwan-lai
Mr Peter LAU Man-pong
Mr Clemence LEUNG
Mr LEUNG Siu-yin
Mr Herman LO Kwok-ming
Ms Muriel MA Chun-mui
Mr MAK Wai-kei
Dr Allen SHI Lop-tak, MH, JP
Mr SIT Sai-yu
Mr Conrad SO Wah-sum
Ms Isa WONG
Dr Sharon WONG Yin-yue
Ms Tracy ZHAO (up to 30 March 2014)
Ms Shirman TAM Wai-man (up to 6 November 2014)
Representative of the Director of Government Logistics
Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Real Estate Services Training Board

BHMERBGRINREZE S

Chairman

Ir Alkin KWONG Ching-wai, JP
Vice-Chairman

Dr Joseph LAU Kwong-yiu

Members

Mr CHAN Kai-tsun (up to 6 June 2014)

Mr Henry CHAN Sai-lun

Dr Lobo FUNG Kwok-hung

Prof Eddie HUI Chi-man

Mr Anthony KWOK Chong

Mr Eric LEE Chun-ming

Mr LEUNG Kam-leung

Sr Francis NG Hang-kwong

Mr Simon SHAM Sik-shing

Mr SHARE Tai-ki

Sr SUNG Shu-hung

Sr Augustine WONG Ho-ming, JP

Dr Daisy YEUNG Kam-lan

Mr YU Ka-ki

Representative of the Chief Executive Officer of
the Estate Agents Authority

Representative of the Director of Housing

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Retail Trade Training Board
ZEXIKRZET

Chairlady

Dr Stella KWAN Mun-yee
Vice-Chairman

Mr WAI Yau-on

Members

Ms Ada CHAN

Ms Winnie CHOW Wai-yee

Mr Winston CHOW Wun-sing

Mr lan CHQY Jing-man

Mr Dennis LAU Hak-bun

Mr TANG Cheung-sing

Ms TSE Man-fung

Mr Ronald WAN Chi-cheung

Ms Alice WONG Nga-lai

Ms Ruth YU Lai-yiu

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Security Services Training Board
RERBFRIREESG

Chairlady

Ms Jane Curzon LO
Members

Mr Gary BUKOWICKI
Ms Janna CHENG On-ki
Mr Daniel CHUI Yiu-hung
Mr Percy KONG Tat-fun
Mr Eddie LAM Koon-fu
Mr Bruce LEE Yuyim
Mr Vincent LO Wing-keung (up to 5 November 2014)
Mr John NG Sheung-lok
Ms Enid NG So-fun
Mr Simon SHAM Sik-shing
Ms Dennis TANG Ming-tan
Representative of the Commissioner of Police
Representative of the Director of Housing
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Textile and Clothing Training Board
MEBRNKREINIREZES

Chairman

Mr Richard LOK Kee-loong

Members

Mr CHAN Wing-lok

Hon Felix CHUNG Kwok-pan

Prof HU Jin-lian

Mr Will LAM

Mr Tony LAU Kim-on

Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung

Mr Roger LEE Kuo-chuan

Mr LEE Yiu-kwan

Mr Michael LEUNG Lai-yin (since 1 May 2014)

Dr Roger NG Keng-po

Mr Arkin NG ping-kin

Mr Spike NGAI Chi-man

Mr TAM Chin-ming

Mr Wallace WONG

Mr William WONG

Mr WONG Kwok-sing

Mr Andrew YU Yau-kuen

Representative of the Director-General of Trade and Industry

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES
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Transport Logistics Training Board
MRAEEXINIREZEE

Chairman
Ir Dr David HO Chi-shing, JP
Members

Mr Eddie CHO Chi-cheong

Mr Terry CHU Lik-fei

Mr Emil LAI Cheung-kwong

Mr Victor LAl Kong-ying

Ms Theresa LAI (since 1 May 2014)

Mr Paul LI Ping-hung

Dr David LI Yan-zhi

Dr Leon LI Yuk-on

Ms Alice LUl Yuen-nga

Mr Ryan TANG Chi-yan

Mr Thomas WONG Tak-kwong

Mr Simon YAP Thian-chai

Mr YEUNG Lin-pik

Mr Thomas YIP

Ms Alice YIP Wai-chong

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Apprenticeship and Trade Testing

Bl Rk BREE S

Chairman
Mr WONG Kit-loong
Vice-Chairman

Mr SO Hon-choi

Members

Mr Jimmy CHAN Yiu-hung

Mr James CHIM Pun-ngon

Ir Dr CHUNG Wai-nang

Ms Rachel LEE Wei

Mr LEUNG Ping-him

Mr Wrinky LEUNG Wing-kei

Mr MAK Wai-hung

Ms Mary SHIH Lai-na

Mr Joe TSUI Yan-cho

Mr Henry YIP Cheuk-tak

Representative of the Secretary for Education

Representative of the Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services

Representative of the Commissioner for Labour

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Committee on Information Technology Training and Development

BERKilGREREZE S

Chairman
Ir Sunny LEE Wai-kwong, JP
Members

Mr CHENG Chung-ngam

Mr Raymond CHENG Siu-hong

Ms Barbara CHIU Cheuk-mun

Mr CHOY Chat-kwan

Dr James FOK Ting-yeung

Mr Dennis LEE Chun-keung

Mr Gordon LO Siu-chung

Prof Helen MENG Mei-ling

Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit

Mr TAI Chark-tong

Prof TAM Kar-yan

Mr Richard TANG Mun-hung

Mr Victor WANG Hok-pun

Mr Nelson YEUNG Wai-miu

Representative of the Government Chief Information Officer

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

R EEGN—REST

Committee on Management and Supervisory Training

ERNRESIGREES

Chairman

Dr Kevin LAU Kin-wah, JP

Members

Mr Jimmy CHIU Chi-ming

Dr Stephen KO Chi-chung

Mr Fred KWAN Yau-fat

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

Ms Connie LAM Tsui-wa

Mr LAU Kar-wah

Mr Gary LAU Sun-tao

Mr Tony LEE Chang-pui

Mr Peter LIU Sin-shing

Dr Wingco LO Kam-wing

Mr Francis MOK Gar-lon

Mr Peter MOK Wah-fun

Mr David TING Tit-cheung, MH

Representative of the Civil Service Training and
Development Institute, Civil Service Bureau

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council

St

gfEER L, P

Zz8
SR E

= A E LT
BAthE TE
Bbk 82 e
MBELZ L
BIZERE
BB
FIRIE L
BEXTE
E&&RBt
RHRBTE
RER) L

TEPSE, MH
NGEEEBRBAKES

BEIRBATHERE



128 |

TRAINING BOARDS AND GENERAL COMMITTEES

REEGN—REST

Committee on Technologist Training
REMNREEE

Chairman
Dr Edwin KWONG Kwok-wah

Members

Dr Lawrence CHEUNG Chi-chong (since 1 May 2014)

Mr Hugh CHOW

Prof KI Wing-hung

Mr LEUNG Kam-man

Ir Simon LIU Sing-pang

Mr Dennis NG Kwok-on

Dr Stephen NG Wai-kwan

Ir Dr Philip PONG Wing-tat

Ir Dr George SZE Lee-wah

Mr Ken TSUI Wai-hung

Ir WAI Yip-kin

Mr Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing

Dr Jack YEUNG Chung-kit

Ir Dr YIU Hing-leung

Representative of the Vocational Training Council

Representative of the Commissioner for Innovation
and Technology

Representative of the Secretary for Development

Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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Committee on Vocational Training for People with Disabilities

BEANTHRZIREZESS

Chairman

Mr CHEUNG Kin-fai, MH
Vice-Chairman

Dr James Joseph LAM, JP

Members

Ms Christina CHAN
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
Mr Michael LIANG Chi-tsou
Ms Nicole LI Po-man
Dr Nicola MOK Wai-kuen
Mr KUO Chun-chuen
Mr Alan TAM Ming-tak
Ms WU Siu-ling (since 1 August 2014)
Mr Wilfred WONG Kam-pui
Mr Nelson YIP Siu-hong, MH
Representative of the Secretary for Education
Representative of the Secretary for Labour and Welfare
Representative of the Commissioner for Labour
Representative of the Director of Social Welfare
Representative of the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE OF

THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL

R R EERE

As at 31 March 2015
HZ=2015F3 A31H

Council
BEg

Council Committees
BEEgETIEED

Executive Director
HITERE

Deputy Executive Director (A)
BlHITERE (A

Deputy Executive Director (B)
BlHITERE (B)

Deputy Executive Director (C)
BlIHITERE ()

Deputy Executive Director (D)
Bl#ITEE (D)

Principal, Principals, Principal, Director, Senior
HTI / CCl / ICI Youth College School of Vocational Assistant
F -y = pEpE Business and Training for Executive

/ BE Information People with Director,
Systems Disabilities Headquarters

THENEE Office (Academic

T RE 2 Services)

Legend:

CCl: Chinese Culinary Institute FZERFEREAT
HTI: Hotel and Tourism Institute ;B /& K& bk 57 2P
ICI: International Culinary Institute Bl BT E2f:
IVE: Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education &85 %%

Director, Principal,
External Hong Kong
Relations Design
Office Institute and
fhERE IVE
= (Lee Wai Lee)

2= B
V==

Principals,
IVE

Director, Director, Senior General Project Senior
Quality Institutional Assistant Manager, Manager, Assistant
Assurance Advancement Executive Qualifications Office of the Executive
and Office Director, Framework Director of Director,
Accreditation Higher and Secretariat Apprenticeship Headquarters
Office Professional BERE BEERE (Industry
ELEY) Education Partnership)

Office

Principal, President, Head, Director,
School for Technological Centre for International
Higher and and Higher Learning and Development
Professional Education Teaching Office
Education Institute of HEh) Gl

Hong Kong

Notes:

________________ o
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
. . . . 1
Senior Assistant Executive Director '
1
(Corporate Governance) |
1
BREIEBHITHRE (BBEH) :
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
Head, Head, Head, Head, Head, Head,
Central Estates, Health Finance and Human Information Internal Audit
Services and Safety Supplies Resources Technology Unit
Division Division Division Division Services AEED
R R _— e ANBER Division )

1) Pro-Act Training and Development Centres and Vocational Development Programme Office are under the purview of the Youth College.

2) Maritime Services Training Institute is under the purview of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tuen Mun).

)
3) Integrated Vocational Development Centres are under the purview of the Headquarters (Industry Partnership).
)

4) The Institute of Professional Education and Knowledge is under the purview of the Higher and Professional Education Office.

1) FEEIIEERP O RBEERASMEREATFE

2) BEIIREFRELEXHERL (BF) &
3) EMEXBRERPOABHER ((TXEE) B
4) BIBEEERMEENEXHEREE -
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

Consolidated Financial Statements

Following the prevailing accounting principles in Hong Kong, the
Council has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year 2014-15 presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Council and its subsidiaries (the Group) of the year.
A total income of HK$4,705.6M (2013-14: HK$4,455.2M) and
total expenditure of HK$4,301.2M (2013-14: HK$4,133.8M) were
reported.

Operating Results

As compared with 2013-14, the increase in the Group’s income was
mainly attributed to the increase in Government subventions largely
for pay adjustments, increase in tuition fees income and donation
income.

The increase in expenditure was mainly due to the increase in
operating expenses for degree programmes, increase in staff
expenses resulting from pay adjustments, increase in student
development activities, scholarship to students and trainee
allowance under Earn and Learn Pilot Schemes.

The operating results of the major activities in 2014-15 are set out
in the paragraphs below.

Consolidated Income (2014-15)
2014-15FEHFA WA

5%

36%

® Government Subventions

2GR

® Tuition Fees and Training Charges
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Other Income

HAUWA

2 Vocational Training Council BB

ZEIRIHRER
BEE(EBAREFTRADERS 2014-15 FEHKE MK
]k RMFABEIRD (GREBIE) REWBEQ
(BREAHERE) WEBRBMB AR o A F EAHEAE 8%
BHBWAEBYATRS60EB T (201314 FE AB ¥ 44
25,5208 ) ' BEXAIABBE43E 1208 T (2013-
14AFEABEE411/83,3808T) °

SERR

82201314 FEMLL - AEBHRAE NEZRBEBA
WS REE I BERBE THMAR - BINNEENIE
AUA

AEERANARX LA TERBENZEENEER
SN0 FHENAE EARRETE RESN[E 28
ARG LB EIRE S EAREM -

THERIE 201416 FEFTETHENEERR -

Consolidated Expenditure (2014-15)
2014-15F EHFE WA
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13%

® Staff Expenses
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® Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses
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® Consumables, Equipment and Library Books
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Activities Financed by Government Recurrent Subventions

Total income for the year 2014-15 amounted to HK$3,404.8M,
of which HK$2,417.9M was recurrent subventions from the
Government, HK$817.9M from tuition fees and training charges,
and HK$169.0M from bank interest and other income. Total
expenditure for 2014-15 amounted to HK$3,151.5M. The savings
of HK$253.3M was transferred to the Council’s Reserves for
implementation of new initiatives and other developments.

Activities Financed by Other Specific Government Grants

In addition to the Government’s subventions, the Council
successfully obtained grants under a number of specific Government
Funds. These mainly included the Manpower Development Scheme,
Industrial Attachment Programmes, Project JUMP, Matching Grant
Schemes, Earn and Learn Pilot Schemes and Construction Industry
Council Incentive Programme to enhance the Apprenticeship Scheme
for E&M Industry. Total income for the year amounted to HK$163.0M
and expenditure amounted to HK$169.2M.

Self-financing Activities

In 2014-15, the Group ran its self-financing activities mainly through
the operation of the VTC School of Business and Information
Systems, the VTC School for Higher and Professional Education,
Institute of Professional Education and Knowledge, Technological
and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong (THEi) and Integrated
Vocational Development Centre. Total income generated from the
self-financing activities for the year was HK$994.1M and total
expenditure incurred was HK$910.8M.

Building Programmes and Capital Items

For the year 2014-15, a total of HK$426.2M was incurred on
building programmes and capital items. These projects included the
construction of THEi campus in Chai Wan, student dormitory in Tsing
Yi, and International Culinary Institute in Pokfulam, as well as other
alterations, additions and improvement projects.

Retirement Schemes

Other than the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (MPFS) set up
under the Hong Kong MPFS Ordinance, the Council’s retirement
schemes also included the VTC Provident Fund Scheme (1999) and
the VTC Retirement and Death Gratuity Scheme for Minor Staff.
These schemes were registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance and granted exemption pursuant to the MPFS
Ordinance.

New Technology Training Fund

New Technology Training Fund (the Fund) was established by the
Government to finance the New Technology Training Scheme (the
Scheme). The Council administers the Scheme and holds the Fund
on trust for the Government. The balance of revenue fund as at 31
March 2015 was HK$5.6M.

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman
10 August 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE VOCATIONAL

TRAINING COUNCIL (THE COUNCIL)

RHBEINRBENBILZAEMK S

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the
Vocational Training Council (the Council) and its subsidiaries
(together the Group) set out on pages 6 to 63, which comprise the
consolidated and Council balance sheets as at 31 March 2015, the
consolidated and Council statements of comprehensive income,
the consolidated and Council statements of changes in fund
balances and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Council’'s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Vocational Training
Council Ordinance and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Vocational
Training Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Council as
at 31 March 2015 and of the Group’s and the Council’s financial
performance and the Group’s cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Vocational Training
Council Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10 August 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
5 EXZE2015F 331 ALEEENGEE2ZEHKER

Note 2015 2014
MfaE HK$'000 HK$’000
INCOME A
Government Subventions BB & 3 2,770,407 2,672,760
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BERREEN 4 1,694,634 1,578,661
Interest Income FIE WA 70,905 58,066
Donations B 5 39,052 25,478
Other Income Hil A 6 130,614 120,261
Total Income Nt 4,705,612 4,455,226
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses ETM% 7
Full-time Staff Expenses TREIRX 2,757,419 2,726,552
Parttime Staff Expenses FEBEIRX 112,520 110,107
Temporary Staff Expenses == g 269,673 222,367
Other Staff Expenses HMEITRAX 25,405 23,768
3,165,017 3,082,794
Other Operating Expenses Hi&8Mx
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books SEHEMY M RENRES 283,466 271,158
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses REFEREBERERX 541,066 510,015
Hire of Services and Professional Fees HERKER 59,705 53,025
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities g4 /EaHREE 87,091 60,573
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses IREEE—RZEESHX 33,056 35,312
Staff Development and Visits BTEIRAE 18,347 16,837
Other Expenses Hibpixk 113,473 104,083
1,136,204 1,051,003
Total Expenditure A% 4,301,221 4,133,797
Surplus Before Taxation B AT 2k 8 404,391 321,429
Taxation g 9 - 1
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TEEERRER
FOR THE YEAR 2HKREE 404,391 321,428
TRANSFER TO: BWRE
Reserves wEe 10 253,276 214,428
Specific and Other Funds BERARREMES 11 151,115 107,000
404,391 321,428

The Group had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,

the Group’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRT [ RFERS] N ZRBRE2[RFANLREEEZEWE  BRAREN [ AFERR | HER [ 2EKSEBHE] -

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIHNEIBEEFE I EZMERAMBIRER 2 —HD -
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
B EZ2015 5331 HEEFENZ2E KW= X

Note 2015 2014
Bt HK$'000 HK$'000
INCOME A
Government Subventions B 3 2,768,152 2,661,556
Tuition Fees and Training Charges BENEEER 4 910,075 811,759
Interest Income FIEWA 62,655 51,142
Donations B3 5 38,093 24,136
Other Income HAKA 6 332,059 321,161
Total Income WAEEE 4,111,034 3,869,754
EXPENDITURE X
Staff Expenses ETHX 7
Full-time Staff Expenses 2BETIHX 2,363,996 2,298,983
Part-time Staff Expenses REETHY 34,271 36,927
Temporary Staff Expenses ERFETHY 258,381 213,345
Other Staff Expenses HEMETHX 24,119 22,765
2,680,767 2,572,020
Other Operating Expenses Hi&Emx
Consumables, Equipment and Library Books HEMYSR  REREE 260,252 248,237
Accommodation and Related Maintenance Expenses ReREREBRERX 532,436 500,000
Hire of Services and Professional Fees EXRKER 50,333 47,724
Student/Trainee Grants and Activities B4 BEEREE 78,626 47,958
Training Boards/General Committees’ Expenses JREEE,—-REEEMAX 32,982 35,240
Staff Development and Visits ETEIR AR 15,935 14,597
Other Expenses Hiipix 117,837 119,427
1,088,401 1,013,183
Total Expenditure S 3,769,168 3,585,203
SURPLUS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TEERHBR
INCOME FOR THE YEAR THWZEE 341,866 284,551
TRANSFER TO: ERE
Reserves #iEe 10 253,276 214,428
Specific and Other Funds BERRRHMES 11 88,590 70,123
341,866 284,551

The Council had no components of comprehensive income other than “surplus for the year” in either of the years presented. Therefore,
the Council’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “surplus for the year” in both years.

BRY [AFERSK N BARERFAALRBHMZENE  RLBAINAFERR | HERN [ 2EWSREE] -

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIHREISEEFIEZMERAYBHRER 22— °
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

20153 A 31 HMNE-SE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Assets

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets
Deposits

Bank Deposits with Maturity over One Year

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and
Other Receivables

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable, Accruals and
Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits

Loans Payable within One Year

Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 10 August 2015

R2015F 8 10 H
HEXIREESEMRRBEREE

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BB EE

BREE{—fE L, SBS, JP

EEBEREE

ERBEE

EEEE

EIER
EERIKENEE

Be

BB —FRIETER

REEE

ETER

BERKENEE

FEWARIE - EAFRER
E R KERE

M BB =R NRITER

RERREEEY

REBEE

AIRIE - R XK
EfRAIRE

BERAERE

—FRREENER

JESE W as

FREFE
ARG ERRDAR
FRBEMR
BEEAER

— R
e

HEFE
ERREAE :
e
BEBRRAbES
ey

Note
BiEE

12
16
15

16
15

17

18

19(a)
19(d)
20
21

19(d)
20
21

10
11

The notes on page 13 to page @3 form an integral part of these financial statements.
DIENE 1I3EEFE I EZMEARMBRER 2 —ED ©

8  Vocational Training Council B ZFI%k B

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,425,259 2,264,050
1,738 1,313

- 9,093

5,137 5,424

= 200,000
2,432,134 2,479,880
926 1,217
9,132 -
132,019 77,044
4,711,307 3,850,496
706,417 791,200
5,559,801 4,719,957
1,149,205 1,040,689
386,652 469,810
2,745 2,631
306,306 283,925
1,844,908 1,797,055
3,714,893 2,922,902
6,147,027 5,402,782
10,449 7,050
427,148 179,673
1,437,953 1,348,973
1,875,550 1,535,696
4,271,477 3,867,086
264,499 266,006
4,006,978 3,601,080
4,271,477 3,867,086




BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

2015 F3A31HMWEEEREFER

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed Assets

Investments in Subsidiaries

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets
Deposits

Bank Deposits with Maturity over One Year

CURRENT ASSETS

Loans to Staff

Employee Retirement Benefits Assets

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and
Other Receivables

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable, Accruals and
Other Payables

Provision for Employee Benefits

Loans Payable within One Year

Deferred Income

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for Employee Benefits
Loans Payable after One Year
Deferred Income

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Reserves
Specific and Other Funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Vocational Training Council

on 10 August 2015

20158 H10H 3
HBEIRFEESSHAREBERER

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BRI ETE

PREE{_1E L, SBS, JP

Note
M EE

FRBEE

EEEE 12
HHBARMNKRE 13
ETER 16
EEERKBAEE 15
Be

FE BB —FMRITER

RBEE

BTER 16
EERNKEANEE 15
FEURERTE ~ FESFIER

H b BRIE 17
B EBB=EANEBITER
BENBEEEEY 18
bk JB=Ri
EFERIE « BEtHR

HiE(TERIE 19(a)
EERRNERE 19(d)
—ERNEEENER 20
AW 21
REEEFE

BEABERABEE

FREEE
EERFIEE 19(d)
—FREEBENER 20
prnalygy 21
BETE

FRREBELE -

e 10
BEREREMES 11
=]

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FHRE I3 ERE 63 H2MFARTHEHRK 2 —2BD °

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,416,002 2,252,002
1,738 1,313

- 9,093

5,137 5,424

- 200,000
2,422,877 2,467,832
926 1,217
9,132 -
120,039 68,348
4,711,307 3,850,496
700,630 784,506
5,542,034 4,704,567
1,595,402 1,418,318
379,112 466,321
2,745 2,631
305,416 283,637
2,282,675 2,170,907
3,259,359 2,533,660
5,682,236 5,001,492
5,312 2,889
427,148 179,673
1,437,953 1,348,973
1,870,413 1,531,535
3,811,823 3,469,957
264,499 266,006
3,547,324 3,203,951
3,811,823 3,469,957
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
B#EZ2015F3A31HLELFEFENRKREEETEH R X

Specific and
Other Funds
Reserves (Note 11)
(Note 10) RERR
Ee kEMES Total
(MiEE 10) (MiEE11) Fob]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2013 2013F 4 B 1 HEER 251,526 3,294,132 3,545,658
Inter—fund Transfers RIE SR (199,948) 199,948 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income KEEBEHBR
for the Year 2HKREE 214,428 107,000 321,428
Balance as at 31 March 2014 2014 F3 A 31 A& 266,006 3,601,080 3,867,086
Balance as at 1 April 2014 2014 F 4 B 1 A& 266,006 3,601,080 3,867,086
Inter-fund Transfers ABESHER (254,783) 254,783 -
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income EEEBEBR
for the Year 2HKRERE 253,276 151,115 404,391
Balance as at 31 March 2015 2015 %3 A 31 Bk 264,499 4,006,978 4,271,477

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.
JIHNEI3HEE 63 HZMERATMBHRKR 2 —HMD °
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
B E2015F3A31HLEFENEESTEFH KR

Balance as at 1 April 2013
Inter-fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive
Income for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2014
Balance as at 1 April 2014
Inter-fund Transfers

Surplus and Total Comprehensive
Income for the Year

Balance as at 31 March 2015

20135 4 B 1 B4R
REE S

AEERBK
FHKERHE

2014 3 B 31 B&s
2014 F4 A1 BE8
REESER

AEERBRK
2HKERE

2015 3 A 31 B#ER

Specific and

Other Funds

Reserves (Note 11)

(Note 10) BERR
wE: kEMES Total
(KfzE10) (MfaE11) EEG]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
251,526 2,933,880 3,185,406
(199,948) 199,948 -
214,428 70,123 284,551
266,006 3,203,951 3,469,957
266,006 3,203,951 3,469,957
(254,783) 254,783 -
253,276 88,590 341,866
264,499 3,547,324 3,811,823

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIHNEISEEF3EZMEARMBREKR 2 —D °
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
BHE2015F5F3A31HILEFEFENGESEREERE R

Note 2015 2014
Mt HK$'000 HK$'000
Operating Activities REEH
Surplus before Taxation R AT R eh 404,391 321,429
Adjustments for: Zﬂﬁ*‘lﬁﬁ :
Subventions and Donations for Capital Projects RIBMEERRER (226,966) (154,677)
Depreciation of Fixed Assets IE BEWE 278,657 275,485
Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets HEBEERE 2 s (58) (148)
Interest Income MEWA (70,905) (58,066)
Operating Surplus before Changes in Working Capital BESLRBR v KL R 385,119 384,023
Increase in Deposits and Accounts Receivable, RITEHER - ERE
Prepayments and Other Receivables BARER M ERERE ZEm (54,688) (10,641)
Increase in Accounts Payable, Accruals and FE{TERIE « Rt R
Other Payables HAth T BRIE 2 120 108,516 36,488
(Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits RERANESZ GAY) /12 (79,798) 80,075
Increase in Deferred Income EEWES 2B 245,802 128,579
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Bank Loan EETETINRITENFE
for On-lending to Staff 2180,/ () 114 (198)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans to Staff SI&Fz(Em /#d (134) 188
Cash Generated from Operations REMEECZRS 604,931 618,514
Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid BHEBAEH = 1)
Cash Generated from Operating Activities RETHMEL RS 604931 618,513
Cash Flows from Investing Activities RETHZHER
Payment of Capital Expenditure ERTHAR (439,948) (232,282)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets HEBTEREMEIE 140 300
Interest Received 2RI 70,905 58,066
Increase in Placement of Fixed Deposits with ROICHEREHEER
Banks with Maturity over Three Months =EA zEm (660,811) (669,435)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities REFBAEANREEE 0 (1,029714) (843,351) _
Cash Flows from Financing Activities RETBZHER
Loan from Government HFER 340,000 220,000
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities AEEDEENRSTE 340000 220,000
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents RERASEB/BYZRD (84,783) (4,838)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 April R4B1LENEERBESSEY 791,200 796,038
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 March R3A3BNEEREESEEY 18 706,417 791,200

The notes on page 13 to page 63 form an integral part of these financial statements.

JIHNE I3 EEFSAZMERARTBRR 2 — °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

(a)

BACKGROUND

E1=1=}
B

The Vocational Training Council (the Council) was established in Hong Kong under the Vocational Training Council Ordinance
(the Ordinance). Under Section 17(3) of the Ordinance, the Council has to cause to be prepared, after the end of each financial
year, a statement of comprehensive income of the Council during that financial year and a balance sheet of the Council on the
last day thereof.

BT E (AEEIIE) BB ZEIN R B RAG)) (BBZERG) EE BRI o ZIFRGIFEL7Q)RKRTE @ BIIF ARS8 I
FEER%E  GEBZFELAEBALNZAWRSER  URREEBNEEAER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
TEGSTER

Statement of Compliance
BREH

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively the Group) is set out below.

REBHRERDZREBSTHMASAMAEERN(EBUBREEL)  (BEABEERAZ@ANEBIHBERELER) (&
BEFTEARRE)  UREBARSTRADMERDN - BIIBREME LR (RBARE) RANTIEZESHBERBANT -

The HKICPA has issued certain revised HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Council. Of these, the following development is relevant to the Group’s and the Council’s financial
statements:

EERSTEA LS AME TRIETIEBMBRMELLDR —EHZE - WEENEARBRBIIREN ST HBERE
M o B EAKBIMERRABEIEITAOT ¢

- Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

- (BRBEEADSE 2R (KR eREER SRAEZIKH ]

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have impact on these financial
statements as they are consistent with the policies already adopted by the Group and the Council.
(BRETERDEI2FETE MP(E B ST ERDE 2RNIEERTE - AR IRBFTEAKBERBIIBRITRANBE—
B BULBTTEH A B RBEH BN BREREEAZE -

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
Note 25).
B BRBEMERAA ST B E RN ER R 2R (B2 HMEE25) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

(b)

(c)

14

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
ETEGEEER (&

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
MBERRNERERE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 comprise the Council and its subsidiaries.

HZE2015F 3831 HEFENGSUKRREERBIIFIREMBAT -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

AP BHREREABLRAERTERER -

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
ERATE( BBV BEREEN) VB RRK  EEEAFHEFESHBRZEAREE 8F WARIHZIIHS
FEHHE « 5T REBR - ZE AT RERBRIIBREBEI2EBREEEEEERTESENEMERZRMMAEL » HER
RAEEEAEINHEMBRETESNEEREENREEFLEABNWER - ERERTEEINZSMET -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

ZEMTTREABBRRSEFERS - BEATHETER BB RLELIEITHET0WEHRE > AMETERNEHER - B
AIFERNEHRUABREE BTSN ENRUEFERR

Subsidiaries
HEAR

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group control an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and the parties) are considered.
MEARREAKBIEFNER - EXARBEESHEHRENSNEBREEMRAEIZEAZERURERE HZEZEE
H]EF o BIANHBIEHZER c T AKERSHE LN EEE (AEBERHEMBER) BEEF -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

HNBARNKRESHISEEFEMBEIAGESYBRERA  EEEHELALRL -BBARAZBNERERS - U

REBRABcEARSAEENARZRER  ERREGSVBRRSTUZEER - BEBERA QXA ZBERSMELEN
AEREEENRERETRNERT @ UKHERSRKENAR T AT LUK -

In the Council’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses (see Note
2(f)).
ERIIBzEEEERA BB LA RNREURATRRESERES T GESREME2(f) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Fixed Assets
BE&E

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

BlEEEARA KRR ITERBEGSESIR (FSEME2()

Land and/or buildings owned or held under a leasehold interest by the Council which are leased to subsidiaries are classified
as campus used by a subsidiary in the Council’s balance sheet. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(f)).

BIBEESEEZL R REF  AUEETHELAR  SRBIIBZEEEBRTIEAMBARERAZRE - &
LEERURANKREBFTTERRERENTR (BF2HME2(f) °

The Group estimates the useful lives of various categories of fixed assets on the basis of their designed life, planned asset
maintenance programme and actual usage experience. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
AHEBRERERTEEZRITEN  #EHEREREAKLE  RETHAUCAFEH - TERRBEEEEENTEF AIE
BAER > MESEZREHMGFREBE (NER) - AUEHEERA - FHB0T !

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

BRAZHEE T RZGTHNEMAERE -

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

UAEEL EZBTF » REZBRTWEBRHEN IERFR - EFZHEKARR S0 F (MBEE) Rt ENE -

- Improvements works shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives of 5-7 years
BFREIR ERTHEHIS TS AIME AFIR (5-7 ) » UBREERE

- Furniture and equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
HFERRMHE HENBFERERBEAIERER (4-75F)  UBREEARA%E

- Computer equipment shorter of the duration of the project and their estimated useful lives of 4-7 years
BB HENFERBRFETAERAFER (4-7F) » UREER%E

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful lives, each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

WMEEEENEBONAERAFERIE  SHoNITESERTHE - EECTAEREHEFNKEE(WNER) HENEFE
TRET °

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
on the date of retirement or disposal.
ﬁ@ﬁiéﬂé%EiéézuiéﬁmﬂéimﬁﬁﬁtH%Fﬁ%H&Ai%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi%%ﬁﬁ@fﬁz_%%ﬁﬂ&%i  WARRBESHEERNIAZ
[EL T A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

(e)

()

16

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEGEEER (]

Construction in Progress
EREIRE

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which comprises accumulated costs of construction, professional fees and interest
expenses, if any, capitalised prior to the completion of the respective projects, less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. These costs for work carried out are based on interim certificates certified by professional personnel, which may
differ from the actual future settlement. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate category of fixed assets when the construction is completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.
EEIE%H&ﬁW@HE%EWE BARFEMURE - RABERFTREER ZFXEARIBTHAMERLHFE
SH(MER) BEUTIERNARRBEIEAESMHEZENPHESRETCH - ELEHRIUEEERNEERNLREMEA - &
ITRERK anE"H’E%E“% B HERAFEFLEERL MERIERGCSEARECEERNBEWERF -

Impairment of Assets

BEERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired, or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

FEBEEBELERSZABIIRNESE  UREUTEERALERANETS » XIRUIBRINEHEBEETBFEDS
E,,é.'%«( J—X’J\ :

- Fixed assets (including campus used by a subsidiary);

EEEE (BREMBAREAZRE)

- Construction in progress; and

EEIE K

- Investments in subsidiaries.

HINBRRNRE -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of such an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
MREHEBENS  FSEHEENTREHENGT EEENRESESATREIZHER  FEE2HKERERR
BEEE -

(i) Calculation of Recoverable Amount

AW EBENETE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
FMTW@%#EE@ﬁﬁm@mﬁm$ﬁﬁﬁEEW%¢MQE% REHMEEREER AN ARRBESRE
PARERREET ST ESBEREE S BERRSPAMER  FEEHEE BEENEBUNEMEE
EERERER 'EgﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁEZEEEEﬂiEEEEEEEGE%d\——ﬂﬁ%ﬁ?‘( EERTEN) RAEVBEEATKREEHE -

Vocational Training Council 5% 3|4k 5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

()

(8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Impairment of Assets (Cont’d)
EERE (&)

(i) Reversal of Impairment Losses

HEERED

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
EREREATRESENGTHREIAESEHE  EENESESRED - FERMNWRESEUBREUNETFER®E
RAEEEMECEENEERESHEAR - MEENRESEETRABENEFERTTAZHARGR °

Accounts and Other Receivables

FE Wi e 7R I L At B KUK IR

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

FEWERIER H i BN IE R IR A A BERR » AR RERTREZEMENAL NBREERZRAVBMEEGSIIR - HHER
MEREBETHEAYRERSZFEEBEERRNERIINREFLERK - BRFIRASREANBREBRRRNBEESES
R o

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

ERRENERRER  RERNAESEESHER - RERNAESEREMEENREEEMGHRRRERENE
B ONMTRNEEEAR > AEHFR - BENFERBEER - LURNEE  BErE4EBREXELARBEENMFTARRR
TRE  WEBABHBEEH -

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within accounts and other receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that the recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

REWRBR EMERRIEF  FLWERSHE  EXTFAREZRIIRIENBESESRENEBRE S - EXRKIE
RAREWENKE T OB FESEEREWRRETHER  FRRZERETNEETISED - KEE2RHEREERE
PHREERZEREFED - HNEERE cEENUE E MR HEER2EHKERPER
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(h)

(M)

1)

(k)

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEGEEER (]

Cash and Cash Equivalents
ReRREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
ReERRTEBYERRITERRAS - FHRRBTNEMHBEERBRERER  UREHRSRBMENRE - BERE
ALUBRRERCINRSHE  EELHFTENRERTIR  UEBAZ=EARNEIH -

Accounts and Other Payables
B RRIE R H AT FRRIR

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

BAREREMEBENFIRNRZEAABERER - HRUBHERATIR - HEEITRZER K BIBIRAIIGR -

Loans and Borrowings
mREE

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the statements of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

ERREENREAARBEHNGREBEZRZ NAER - HE > ERREENHERATIER - rEIEEHELEEZE
HERTMEZMNNIERER  R2EWERPUBKEFERAE » LIREEFHET -

Employee Benefits

EEEA

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

¥E FERTS AHFFR  BRUKEZRERSEFREERAAL  EAEBESREABRBNFEAALR ©
FENXARENFTEEREAESEBEA  AIZSSREUERETRK -

(ii) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

RFEFRBCGAFE ARSI EMRIDNVREFELABFEARSHR MUK EEZERERAER -

Vocational Training Council 5% 3|4k 5
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Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

(k)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Employee Benefits (Cont’d)
EEER (&)

(iii)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results
in a benefit to the group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form
of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
THBHREEMNRAGTTEAENEBE FERRESENEBLFE  FEFERMTHEESEEHM T EREMR
P BREUR SR EE R RV 238 %U:ﬁﬁa?ﬁiﬁ,ﬂziﬁﬁ CWEHRFEEENAABE -WEREH—SERBEMZER
FEEBNUNREGTE  EfEARAREETRNE  AIRRNEE USRS NEMRRBHRIDBER
SR EMm ZEBEAR -

Service cost and net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan are
changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or the
gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income at the earlier
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expense (income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the group’s obligations

REBANEE EENRBEARFANNERS WABERRKZRA ° $$FW%&$®&$¢FMEEWﬁﬁ
ERAREBINETREZIEGMNE - Mt BNEFNNB R EERBRET  FRESUEIRENEN 228D R
BREEETEIFTRWIER  UREBEARLIIENR EHEERRE ﬁEH%ﬂJﬁ%ﬂh’uﬁ%¢ﬁ$%
B Eéﬁf”%ﬁ% HANFENESZE WARRUERBEHERAERENEENMBEEERANERER
NaE EEmtE ﬁﬁzamfﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂtﬁ%%MMWEZ#m Fr8Z A RlES W F R EIER
RERFIE W?iﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ °

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
RERABRAHEEECEF I EEREMZEABRRABRRLNERARERFAIARMR - EFT2ESHEERR « 5
BEENER(FTEEEEEFRAERANERE EEANFEFESHE) REELRNEMXE (FTEEEEEFRE
BREE EEANNFANELEE) -

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

NRIEHEREEAEBEES - ARBRE (FFERARENEEREMN)  YERRRTEXLEEESHON
lﬁﬁgﬁﬁi*%ﬁ'ﬁn\tﬁ%mn EELHBERER -
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U

(m)

20

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TEGEEER (&

Income Tax
g8t

Income Tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in statement of comprehensive income except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

AEEMEREEREHE EEHEEEREGENEH RELEHMZHBARIANETRERNEERAMNIEER 28
WRIETEDFIRARMEENSSEERAEEREZN  HtAFEFHBEREEHBEEEREENEHANFEEREE
ey

270N

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
AEEHRBEFARERBBRAREEACERSEE LEEVMBRFTE2FEHEMNHRIE  WEBREUEFERSHIE
PR -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the difference
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets
also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of assets
and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
EEMEEENEEIABAAUNBRERHENEZEELY MENEENEERABEMERR LNEEEHEELEER
EENMBERMECZEZRE - EEMNEEETAIRBREANBIEEBRAREANTIERSR - BRE TERNZIIERI -
FIEEERIEEE  URRRAEEERG &R A HIERNWERELHBEEY TR -

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
BRELEHENSHEESRBZEEEREENREB2ERERARNEEFN  RELZEACERSEE LS ERMBIES
B -EBLEBHEEREBEYTHERATNE -

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
EBERIEAEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Council has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

MERAEERBIB AR BRENSHRELERBTRE  METZEZERNSERSERERENERINR - FEAE
&ﬂ%@ﬁiﬁ=K%%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%$i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁoW%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁik’%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
IREGT SR -

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
HESERKBENENERMRVATEERE  IRELZHEEHBELTENMG  FEEZEBEEATEAE  BR
WEEERMROATREMERERR c MRAEBNERERTFERIZRAREAREBRETEREFEHES > FERK
BEAYBAE  BRUNEEERIMNRA AT EMRERIRI o
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Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

(n)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Income Recognition
AR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group or the Council and the income and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

KEDZEURERREZAABETEZ - MRLERRZTESRARKEESRIGE - MBAFIRAR (MNER) XM 5%
WETER > WABRSRETIEELZH RS RAER

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Government Subventions

B

Government subventions consist of recurrent subventions, non-recurrent subventions and other specific grants
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the Government). Recurrent
subventions are recognised as income in the statement of comprehensive income when there is reasonable assurance
that the Group or the Council will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the subventions will be
received. Non-recurrent subventions are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditures incurred during
the year.

B EEREREEEBFINTHRRBUN (BHEEBF) WEERHY - IKE#RDRAMBSERERRR - EAUSE
BEAKBIBIREETERAMFHRERESWILCEFYSBIE  CELEHEESEERERER AW
A EREFHPEUFRBENETRAIHSERREIRBBA -

Subventions and grants earmarked for capital expenditure purpose are initially accounted for as deferred income (see
Note 2(0)) and are subsequently recognised as income over the useful life of the related assets when the assets are
put into use, to the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.
EEARERIENEDERBRVESWIIAREL R (F2HMTE20)  HEEZEERFEARK  #BER
BYEREBEEECTRFHERUZPENEBITEXLSBARBRIRBEA -

Other specific grants without a condition for refund of any unspent balances are recognised as income in the statement
of comprehensive income when received, while for those specific grants that contain a condition for refund of any
unspent balances are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditures incurred during the year.
REMTEHERBNFERRERN  BERUEREZZAKRER ELEIR/BA - BEERERENSEAREBR
BUFABRENEERZISHERRRFRERRBWA

Tuition Fees and Training Charges

BENREER

Tuitions fees and training charges are recognised as income on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses and
unearned fees and charges are treated as receipts in advance.

BERREEASRRREERBUETFIAR  BHEERBERBIAFERKIE -

Interest Income

FMEWA

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

RITEFAERNERUERNREFTEILHER
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(n)

(0)

(p)

22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
EEGEEER (]

Income Recognition (Cont’d)
WA TR (&)

(iv) Donations
B

Donations are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the Group or the Council becomes entitled
to the donations and it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of cash.

SNFIBBIRARBRR IR B ER TRWHZIERE BERKERESHEEERER LBEIR/BA -

(v) Hire of Accommodation/Facilities from Operating Leases

REBENTES R ZEEKA

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.

ReHEnRRESWATHERMAENSHHER - UERE2EWRRER

(vi) Services Income

ARFEUIA

Services income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the related services are rendered.

BRBVAEEERBREEEREZEAREZREI/BA -

Deferred Income
EIE W a

Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred.

BEABRNBFHEDESNRERIARELERS - HRUABERXIEREENTEIHSBRRBRARKA -

Operating Lease Expenses
ReEHEX

Where the Group or the Council has the use of assets held under operating leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group or the Council, payments made under the leases are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to statement of comprehensive income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

THBEIBIBEEZBLERNE (KEHEEREEHENET  REBEAT P REE AR 2 BN RMEZETAKE
SWIE)EAEE  AREEREEEEZEER m*ﬁ_tgﬂ1t$1‘$2ﬂ EE E,EJJ%*E?FE 1’FtH AR - TEFEER
FIRENETHER  UEEEZERERNR - ENHEEEE  NIFEAREFHESREN— AR ERERTE
RoFEHEREEE2ESTHE  E2HKERTER -
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Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

(a)

(n

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
EEGEEER (8

Borrowing Costs
BERA

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Wig - EESEEEE (N E—BRENBREEZHETARA TUHENEE) FEENEEZERBG ZEERATIFTFAZE
BEZHEAE HtEERTAREE2HBEERAZE

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

MEEERBAX BENARETREABRI TUHENEEMZNTEH  EELNEERLTSHRASEREENT
DA BHEEERRLIEERAAEEETARIHEER  EFLEZEERLTEEL -

Related Parties
BRES

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:

HEBAT AL BIZALTRERENTRKESRLEBEEE

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

B AL E R SRR

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

HEAKBEEAZE X

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group.

AEARBNIEEEAS -
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(n

24

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
g@;-fﬁﬁ (n\ﬁ)

Related Parties (Cont'd)
BER (&

(ii)

)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

i fF & T IUEM —IRRG - BIZEREAKERTHE

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

ZEREAKBER —#BRE (NEFLQTE - WEQXRARNERME QT RILEEE)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

E-EEAR-EBNBHEARNAELE (NS -EBAMRBAACKERTHAZHEAARAES
%) o

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

MEERIAE -—F=F2EERHE -

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
BAE=ZPERZEELX MEEBRAF=FERBZHERT -

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

ZERATHEREAI KB ERERSN EESENMROBERRENTE -

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i).

2B ()BT A T B EES

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

RO)@)EMARATAHEBEEATENRBZER (FZEBF AR TEEEAE -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity

BRATHREORKAEREEERETREN R TRSEZENALTRZZERIATHENIEKS °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS
BATfEsE
Consolidated
= A
Fa =]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurrent Subventions KEME 2,419,972 2,338,515
Non-recurrent Subventions FRERMBE
— Capital Works Reserve Fund -ERIE#EES
Major Capital Projects AAIZEZ TR 64,738 3,361
Minor Building Projects NI TR 112,000 112,000
Non-recurrent Subventions IRERMBE
— Capital Accounts —BZRERB
Major Capital Items REVERIER 6,239 6,359
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment MR - ERRE 32,538 27,731
Capital Items for Skills Centres ReeRERPOERIER 6,046 5,226
Grants from Government Agencies BB R 139,584 119,387
Matching Grants (Note 3(a)) Be¥ B2 (FfisE 3(a)) 7,708 31,721
Other Capital Projects Fund * HMERTRES * (27,402) 28,460
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BRER 2R 2EE, 8,984 -
2,770,407 2,672,760
The Council
)]
2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Recurrent Subventions KEWHBE 2,417,921 2,331,911
Non-recurrent Subventions FREFBE
— Capital Works Reserve Fund - BRIEREES
Major Capital Projects REEZTRE 64,738 3,361
Minor Building Projects NIRRT RE 112,000 112,000
Non-recurrent Subventions FREBYE
— Capital Accounts —ZRRE
Major Capital Items REVELIAH 6,239 6,359
Plant, Vehicles and Equipment WE - BRI 32,538 27,731
Capital Items for Skills Centres FeEE R/ OERIER 6,046 5,226
Grants from Government Agencies BT HEARB 1 R 139,380 114,787
Matching Grants (Note 3(a)) Bi¥ B € (FisE 3(a)) 7,708 31,721
Other Capital Projects Fund * HMEZIRES * (27,402) 28,460
Interest Subsidy on Loan from Government BRE Rz F 2£8, 8,984 -
2,768,152 2,661,556
* Included in the balance are HK$212 million (2014: HK$198 million) being depreciation of capital expenditure during the year which

is released from deferred income and HK$239 million (2014: HK$170 million) being capital expenditure recognised as deferred
income (see Note 21).

EHhEEAFENERXEE 21,2008t (2014 F © B 1E9,8008 T) RIELENERIAAWA - MBE2{23,9008 T
(2014 % : B 1E7,0008 ) WERBZBWBABELE R GESRMEE21) ©
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(a)

26

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

HEEE (18)
Matching Grants
[TEagc kS
The matching grants comprise:
BHmpEasE
Consolidated and the Council
FERBIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for H B R ERRELETE
Post-secondary Students (Note 3(a)(i)) (FFEE 3(a)(i)) 4,186 2,988
Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Note 3(a)(ii)) FERWmE s El
(MIEE 3(a)(ii) 3,522 28,733
7,708 31,721
(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

E 2L RBERTETE

A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (the Scheme) was launched from the 2011/12
academic year to subsidise post-secondary students participating in short-term internship or learning programmes in
Mainland on a matching basis. The Government matching grants and the related donations are separately disclosed
below in compliance with the requirement of the Scheme.

H2011/1228 F#8 » BUFHTNE LEA N TE S (FRE)  UERBEXEPE LEL NS NEH
ERSERTEY - IR HPERAMBENERERRRESSNERERSBAIIRNIBRERA

The portion of the grants received during the year which has not been utilised was recorded as government subventions
under deferred income. The grants are recognised as income upon utilisation to the extent of the amount of related
expenditures actually incurred. During the financial year 2014-15, HK$4,186,000 (2013-14: HK$2,988,000) was
recognised as the grants income and HK$13,519,000 (2013-14: HK$9,727,000) was included in deferred income.
FREDSW2BRMEREANSIARBELENE - ZERNEASUERBENERAIHESEARBIABEA -
2014-15 T ERR T WIRA BB1 418.6 BT (201314 F : B¥208.8E ) » MEM 1,351.98 T (201314
FBEIT2.7E ) AIBARIELE WS ©
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(a)

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB % (48)

Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

(i)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)

LS4 RS ()

Balance as at 1 April 2013

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Training Activities
Enrichment Programmes
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities
Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2014

2013F 4 B 1 Hz &6k
&
Bl b€ BEEBR
FIEWA

BRSBTS
HEER

BEREE
BAINBEZE

AR RIZ

RBGRRE

Ht B B RITE
HitbE

2014F 3 31 Hz 48

Consolidated

mae
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
NS [iGEEEEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
10,645 2,159
2,070 2,070
148 26
2,218 2,096
3,103 -
15 -
18 -
- 1,645
- 299
- 75
3,136 2,019
9,727 2,236
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
BT ()

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)
(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)

E 2L AmEREETE (F)

Consolidated

me
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NESg:Enke [NE-CEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2014 2014 4 B 1 Bz &8k 9,727 2,236
Income e

Grants Received/Matched Donations Bz mBie BEERR 7,841 7,841
Interest Income FE YA 137 33
7,978 7,874

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KRFEEIE, BT AT

TEEAE A

Students Exchange Activities B4R RED 4,159 S
Students Training Activities BAIRES il -
Students Study Programmes BLEBERTE 26 -
Scholarships and Prizes RBERES - 6,261
Other Student Development Activities HibEB 4 BRI - 236
Other Expenses HibEA - 405
4,186 6,902
Balance as at 31 March 2015 2015 3 A 31 Hz 48k 13,519 3,208
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB % (48)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

)] Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)
S84 REREEE (&)

The Council
el
Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[NEagenka [INECREEEN
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 2013 2013%F 4 B 1 H 248 10,645 1,948
Income Y &=

Grants Received/Matched Donations BB BEEIER 2,070 1,839
Interest Income FEWA 148 26
2,218 1,865

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations KHREEE BRI

HERER

Students Exchange Activities BAEMNES 3,103 -
Students Training Activities BAIJIHES 15 -
Enrichment Programmes WRERE 18 -
Scholarships and Prizes BREBERES - 1,628
Other Student Development Activities Hih B4 2 RIEE - 110
Other Expenses HtEBH - 75
3,136 1,813
Balance as at 31 March 2014 2014 3 A 31 Az &8k 9,727 2,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

(a)

30

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

KB (%)

Matching Grants (Cont’d)

BB E (&)

(i) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (Cont’d)
EFS8ERMERESHE (&)

Balance as at 1 April 2014

Income

Grants Received/Matched Donations

Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Students Exchange Activities
Students Training Activities

Students Study Programmes
Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Development Activities

Other Expenses

Balance as at 31 March 2015

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme
AW H B E

A 6th Matching Grant Scheme was launched from the 2012/13 academic year and covers both operations funded by
the Education Bureau (EDB) and self-financing operations of the Council on a matching basis. The private donations
and government matching grants are segregated in respect of EDB funded and self-financing operations in compliance
with the requirement of the Scheme.

FH2012/13E2F 8 » BUFH#

2014 4 B 1 Bz &6k
Yz
Bz mBie BEERR
FIE WA

EEBHEBRAEA
A

B RED

2| HE
BERBHE
BESRES
e

H {8

2015 % 3 A 31 H 2 &8k

The Council
B E

Matching Matched
Grants Donations
[N [INEEE BN
HK$’000 HK$’000
9,727 2,000
7,841 7,452
137 33
7,978 7,485
4,159 -
1 -
26 -
- 6,193
- 16
- 375
4,186 6,584
13,519 2,901

WEHHBEHE  URHEXRELARHBEREYRAELENTHE - BA

BREBFESHEBESRETENEBEER  MHBREVEEF AR BELEL A D FAIERTBHREA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB (38)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
FR w8 (&)

Consolidated

&a
EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
BEREMEER BEEEAA At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
k3L [ EpEE [T RERS 3T RERH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2013 N13F4R 1B &R 18,513 12,400 9,076 8,530 27,589 20,930
Transfer between Operations upon REERZEBERER
Actual Usage of Donations [ (162) (162) 162 162 - -
18,351 12,238 9,238 8,692 27,589 20,930
Income Wa
Grants Received/Matched Donations BlheEhe/ BEER 18,065 18,085 10,668 10,668 28,733 28,733
Interest Income FEMA 382 265 218 217 600 482
18,447 18,330 10,886 10,885 29,333 29,215
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations S ri#BI% /BRAFTEAN
HBER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YEHERNR - - - - - -
Internationalisation and Student AR REERAED
Exchange Activities - - - - - -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES - 8,696 - 1,773 - 10,469
Bursaries e N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BLRRE - 750 - 611 - 1,361
Capital Projects R N/A - - - N/A -
Others 2 - 681 - 2,225 - 2,906
- 10,127 - 4,609 - 14,736
Balance as at 31 March 2014 014 3A3 Auttth 36,798 20,441 20,124 14,968 56,922 35,409
Expenditure by Level of Study T (AEEREDE)
Sub-degree Operations AELEE - 10,127 - 4,085 - 14,212
Degree and Above Bl LEE - - - 524 - 524
- 10,127 - 4,609 - 14,736
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

KB (%)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)

BRWMEHHB S8 (F)

Balance as at 1 April 2014
Transfer between Operations upon
Actual Usage of Donations

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Intemationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Capital Projects

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2015

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

32  Vocational Training Council % 3|4k 5

NV14FLR 125
BERNCERERER
L

b
EdzHEE/REER
RISHA

Bhme / BRALAN
HHER
YEHERME
AR REARAED

2SR
hes
BLER
BREE
Hft

01553431 Azt

xit (EBEEDE)
Hg1RE
Byl LRE

Consolidated

EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total

YERENEERT REEES ait
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
RfEe REER  EyREpe REEY  EHfpe REEH
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
36,798 20441 20,124 14968 56,922 35,409
739 739 (739) (739) - -
37,537 21,180 19,385 14229 56,922 35,409
2,104 2316 1418 1502 3522 3818
536 2717 261 186 797 463
2,640 2593 1679 1,688 4319 4281
747 - 831 - 1578 -
4 3,532 199 1,609 203 5141
N/A - N/A - N/A -
520 942 435 546 955 1488
N/A 250 - - - 250
117 2592 224 2184 KL 4776
1,388 7,316 1,689 4339 3,077 11,655
38,789 16,457 19,375 11578 58,164 28,035
1,388 7,316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084
- - 1077 571 1,077 571
1,388 7,316 1,689 4339 3077 11,655




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont'd)
KB (38)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BB & ()

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)
FR w8 (&)

The Council
BB
EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total
BEREMEER BEEEAA At
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
k3L [ EpEE [T RERS 3T RERH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance as at 1 April 2013 N13F4R 1B &R 18,513 12,400 9,076 8,027 27,589 20,427
Transfer between Operations upon REERZEBERER
Actual Usage of Donations [ (162) (162) 162 162 - -
18,351 12,238 9,238 8,189 27,589 20,427
Income Wa
Grants Received/Matched Donations BlheEhe/ BEER 18,065 18,085 10,668 10,331 28,733 28,396
Interest Income FEMA 382 265 218 213 600 478
18,447 18,330 10,886 10,544 29,333 28,874
Expenditure met from Grants/Donations S ri#BI% /BRAFTEAN
HBER
Teaching and Research Enhancement YEHERNR - - - - - -
Internationalisation and Student AR REERAED
Exchange Activities - - - - - -
Scholarships and Prizes RESRES - 8,696 - 1,515 - 10211
Bursaries e N/A - N/A - N/A -
Student Development BLRRE - 750 - 611 - 1,361
Capital Projects R N/A - - - N/A -
Others 2 - 681 - 1,725 - 2,406
- 10,127 - 3,851 - 13,978
Balance as at 31 March 2014 014 3A3 Auttth 36,798 20,441 20,124 14,882 56,922 35,323
Expenditure by Level of Study T (AEEREDE)
Sub-degree Operations AELEE - 10,127 - 3,851 - 13,978
Degree and Above Bl LEE - - - - - -
- 10,127 - 3,851 - 13,978
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

3. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS (Cont’d)

KB (%)

(a) Matching Grants (Cont’d)
BHHEBE (&)

(i) Sixth Matching Grant Scheme (Cont’d)

BRWMEHHB S8 (F)

Balance as at 1 April 2014
Transfer between Operations upon

Actual Usage of Donations
Transfer to Subsidiary

Income
Grants Received/Matched Donations
Interest Income

Expenditure met from Grants/Donations

Teaching and Research Enhancement

Intemationalisation and Student
Exchange Activities

Scholarships and Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Capital Projects

Others

Balance as at 31 March 2015

Expenditure by Level of Study
Sub-degree Operations
Degree and Above

34  Vocational Training Council B 3|4k 5

NU4E4R1AZER

RERSZEBERER
T

BRENELT

Wi
EdzHEE/REER
RISHA

Sebee/BRAAN
HEER
BEHERMA

Gl EL ST
RESLES

pes

BEBR

BRER

Kt

01553431 Azt

xit (EBEEDE)
Hg1RE
Byl LRE

The Council
BilR

EDB-funded Operation Selffinancing Operation Total

YERENEERT REEES ait
Matching Matched Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations Grants Donations
RfEe REER  EyREpe REEY  EHfpe REEH
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
36,798 20441 20,124 14,882 56,922 35,323
739 739 (739) (739) - -
- - (3273) - (3.273) -
37,537 21,180 16,112 14,143 53,649 35,323
2,104 2316 1418 1,010 3522 3,326
536 2717 261 182 797 459
2,640 2593 1679 1192 4319 3,785
747 - 106 - 853 -
4 3532 199 1338 203 4870
VA - VA - VA -
520 942 307 546 827 1488
N/A 250 - - - 250
117 2592 - 1884 117 4476
1,388 7,316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084
38,789 16,457 17179 11,567 55,968 28,024
1,388 7,316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084
1,388 7,316 612 3,768 2,000 11,084




TUITION FEES AND TRAINING CHARGES
BERRIZER

Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Non Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

Non Government-funded Programmes
Tuition Fees
Training Charges

DONATIONS
=B

Designated to Student Development Foundation
Capital Projects

Scholarships and Prizes

Other Student Activities

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

BT EBRE
22
RREA

BT AR
21
REES

BT EBIRE
28
wzEH

FETEBRE
28
wzEH

BLruRES
EsRIEH
RBEGRBE

HtBE RS

Consolidated

—PAN
=]

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
786,049 693,106

32,651 26,194
822,510 804,980
53,424 54,381
1,694,634 1,578,661
The Council
BAE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
785,944 692,477

32,682 26,237
38,008 38,656
53,441 54,389
910,075 811,759
Consolidated
= A
2 Ny =]

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000

8,329 4,759

5,405 -

19,377 15,887

5,941 4,832

39,052 25,478
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

5.  DONATIONS (Cont'd)
1B (%)

The Council
BB

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Desighated to Student Development Foundation BERRES 8,329 4,759
Capital Projects #ERIER 5,405 -
Scholarships and Prizes BRBERES 19,304 15,859
Other Student Activities HibE4EH) 5,055 3,518
38,093 24,136

6. OTHER INCOME

H A
Consolidated
2 A
Fa=1
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
Application and Sundry Fees REERARMERE 25,741 23,827
Examination and Trade Test Fees ZR RN E 36,562 29,318
Sales of Goods HEERIA 17,662 17,147
Hire of Accommodation/Facilities B2 FHHEEASWA 14,685 15,390
Services Income BRAEUA 22,443 19,480
Miscellaneous Income Hg A 13,521 15,099
130,614 120,261
The Council
] )]

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
Application and Sundry Fees REEARMERE 22,377 20,200
Examination and Trade Test Fees EZH R E 36,406 29,206
Sales of Goods HEERWA 17,658 17,154
Hire of Accommodation/Facilities BERiEESWA 74,603 73,900
Services Income BRAUA 167,066 165,155
Miscellaneous Income Hlk A 13,949 15,546
332,059 321,161
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STAFF EXPENSES
BIR%

Salaries and Other Benefits

Contributions to Retirement Schemes

Salaries and Other Benefits

Contributions to Retirement Schemes

SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION
PRI R ER

Surplus before taxation is arrived at after charging:

BRELAT B ERT MIBRA TR E -

Interest Expense (Note 20)
Depreciation

Rental Expenses

Auditor’s Remuneration

Net Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss
Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Interest Expense (Note 20)
Depreciation

Rental Expenses

Auditor’s Remuneration

Net Foreign Exchange Loss

Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

e R HAMER
RIRETEIERR

e R HAMER
RARFT IR

A E S H (MEE20)
e

Gizhabgu
RBETEN &
SNEF (Weak ), BiE
HERBEEE 2 W

B H (M 20)
e

HE X
ZEET N

SN FIES 1B
HERBTEEE 2 W

Consolidated

= A
wh R
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,951,061 2,874,310
213,956 208,484
3,165,017 3,082,794
The Council
BIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,472,919 2,368,595
207,848 203,425
2,680,767 2,572,020
Consolidated
= A
oy =]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,984 -
278,657 275,485
51,975 52,808
732 677
(93) 63
(58) (148)
The Council
BIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
8,984 -
272,897 268,547
51,107 52,389
516 472
279 109
(58) (148)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

10.

38

TAXATION
A

The Council and its subsidiaries except for VTC Training Company Limited are exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue
of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

RIBBEBHBRGIE 881 » BIRRAEWNEB LR (RBEEINERLFIN) THRRMRTBREH

Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income represented Hong Kong Profits Tax payable by VTC Training
Company Limited, which is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the subsidiary’s estimated assessable profits for the year.
FEXEHBERPHIREZILABERIEGRATDVAFTEIMNNEENER - BHIBDRFAWE QBN ERBRF N
16.5% (2014 5 : 16.5%) 51 & °

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial statements as the effect of all temporary differences is
immaterial.

HARBEANERMHEER  APBRRILBRIELETIAFELERE -

RESERVES
ffEE
Consolidated and the Council
FERBIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Balance at the Beginning of the Financial Year BB B R A5 eR 266,006 251,526
Amount Transferred to Specific and Other Funds AEEEBESERAZRNHA
During the Year (Note 11) &% (MaE11) (254,783) (199,948)
Surplus Transferred from Statement of EHE2HIWAEKRNELR
Comprehensive Income 253,276 214,428
Balance at the End of the Financial Year BT EFRER 264,499 266,006

Reserves are any savings from the recurrent government subventions for activities (other than those in respect of the Shine
Skills Centres) arising from any reasons other than a curtailment or cessation of activity in the Annual Plan, a surplus in tuition
fee income where the fee levels are approved by the Government and which is required to be returned to the Government, or
reduction in remuneration for its staff as a direct consequence of changes in the civil service. The level of reserves shall not, at
any one point in time, exceed 15% of its annual recurrent subvention in the financial year. Amount in excess of the limit should
be returned to the Government in the following financial year.

FREESREIFEHEHBFAKSELAEDE (REFEERFPOKRIN) NEMRERE (HR2F T EIMEIFEBEIUER
ERMEENZERTE  CBARECZERANBHRMXFERERFNBANETERZRS LK EEARGEE
FEROR D BRI o TREEFSE  FETHNEBI TN ESEBRIEFECEHP A 15% - BIERIERET — @5
HEERETHF

Vocational Training Council 5% 3|4k 5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

11. SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS
KHERARREMES
(a) Fund Balances

BELHERR

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Accounts

Other Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selfinancing Activities

Donations

QOther Specific Funds

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Works Reserve Fund

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i))
- Capital Accounts

QOther Capital Projects Fund

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

Projects Funded by Reserves

Selffinancing Activities

Donations

QOther Specific Funds

Consolidated

& A
iy =
Inter-Fund
Transfer from/(to) Transfers
Statement of (Note 10)
Balance as at 1.4.2013 Comprehensive Income WEELER  Balance as at 31.3.2014
N13F4A1048  BR/(R)2EKER (fF10)  2014E3 731 AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEEBS (HEE2n)(i)

-BRIEREES - - - -
FEEEBS (HEE2n)(i)

-EREE - - - -
HfiEREEES - (22,175) 764,509 742,334
BR#EEER 31,305 33,252 (398) 64,159
a2 EEER 963,350 (33,988) (111,035) 818,327
BEREER 2,226,202 106,661 (439,066) 1,893,797
BR 61,425 7,250 1,922 70,597
AtBERRES 11,850 16,000 (15,984) 11,866

3,294,132 107,000 199,948 3,601,080
Consolidated
e

Inter-Fund

Transfer from/(to) Transfers

Statement of (Note 10)
Balance as at 1.4.2014 Comprehensive Income R ELER  Balance as at 31.3.2015
N4F4F1RER 8B /(2)2ERER (F10)  2005E3A31 ALY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FE S (3L 2n)(0)

-BRIRRERS - - - -
FEEREE (HE2A0)0)

-BRER - - - -
HthERBEES 742,334 36,085 = 778,419
HRHEESER 64,159 (6,119) 3,45 61,185
R G 818,327 (84,496) 274,021 1,007,852
BEREER 1,893,797 175,384 (3,145) 2,066,036
=E 70,597 11171 - 81,768
EftBERBES 11,866 19,090 (19,238) 11718

3,601,080 151,115 254,783 4,006,978
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 ¥ & MY 5E

11.  SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERGRAMES (B)

(a) Fund Balances (Cont’d)

40

Beitek (])
The Council
BB
Inter-Fund
Transfer from/(to) Transfers
Statement of (Note 10)
Balance as at 1.4.2013  Comprehensive Income NEELER  Balance as at 31.3.2014
13F4A1AER  BE/(R)2EUER (W310) 2014538310 %H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i) ~ F&=#BIS (M 2n)())

- Capital Works Reserve Fund -ERTERERS - - - -
Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i))  JE&EHEIS (M 20n)(1)

- Capital Accounts -ERkE - - - -
Other Capital Projects Fund AtEREEES - (22,175) 764,509 742,334
Projects Funded by Government Agencies BT iE & BhIE B 31,305 33,252 (398) 64,159
Projects Funded by Reserves fftEeEEER 963,350 (33,988) (111,035) 818,327
Selffinancing Activities BEREER 1,705,967 69,784 (279,083) 1,496,668
Donations B 221,408 7,250 (158,061) 70,597
Other Specific Funds HithEREES 11,850 16,000 (15,984) 11,866

2,933,880 70,123 199,948 3,203,951
The Council
BilR

Inter-Fund

Transfer from/(to) Transfers
Statement of (Note 10) Balance as at
Balance as at 1.4.2014  Comprehensive Income NEEEER 31.3.2015
NU4F4ALRER  BE/(2)2EHER (3100  2015%3F31ALE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i))  FEE&EHEBI% (HE2(n)(0)

- Capital Works Reserve Fund -BRIRGEREES - - - i
Non-recurrent Subventions (Note 2(n)(i))  FEE&EHEBIE (HE2(n)(0))

- Capital Accounts -E%ER - - - -
Other Capital Projects Fund Htt2RERES 742,334 36,085 - 778,419
Projects Funded by Government Agencies B8 &8 & R 64,159 (6,119) 3,145 61,185
Projects Funded by Reserves GBS EER 818,327 (84,496) 274,021 1,007,852
Selffinancing Activities BEREER 1,496,668 112,859 (3,145) 1,606,382
Donations B 70,597 1171 - 81,768
Other Specific Funds HthERZES 11,866 19,090 (19,238) 11,718

3,203,951 88,590 254,783 3,547,324

Vocational Training Council 5% 3|4k 5




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

11.

(b)

SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BEARRHEMES (&)

Nature and Purpose of Specific and Other Funds
BEARRHMES2MEREN

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

Non-recurrent Subventions

FEERPE

The non-recurrent subventions are one-off funds approved by the Government earmarked for capital expenditure
purposes relating to building projects, capital projects and capital items.
FEEMPERBNT—IXMNER 2 AFEEFIE  BERIEBKREREBNELRIZE -

Other Capital Projects Fund
HitZRmEEE

Other capital projects fund represents the balance of net book value of fixed assets that are financed by various
fundings.
HitnZREBESABREEEREDFENGE:  ZETEEHTRESRAER -

Projects Funded by Government Agencies

BFHBENER

In addition to the Government subventions, specific Government grants have been obtained to support the
development of specific education projects.

BRTBEMEEN  BERZRNBRBRRTIHEREXREEHRBRE ZEE -

Projects Funded by Reserves

RiEEEEIAE

Projects funded by reserves are projects financed by the Council’s reserves, which are savings from the recurrent
subventions (see Note 10).

RETENRERHARNRETCEDN ZRESELEELHYEHRERE (FSHME10)

Self-financing Activities
REREEE

Self-financing activities fund represents accumulated surpluses generated from the self-financed programmes and
activities.

BEREIRE NWESREEZTEEDPARENRER -

Donations
B

Donations fund is used for the purposes specified by the donors.

BRENESERBREEMETHRARRERDN

Other Specific Funds
HittERARES

Other specific funds are subsidies obtained from organisations other than Government bodies designated for specific
purposes.

HtSERBRESRBFBUTAFINABAEDN  ZEESKAREEERMN -
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11.

(c)
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SPECIFIC AND OTHER FUNDS (Cont'd)
BERGBRAMES (&)

Capital Management
BEXREHE

The Group is a not-for-profit organisation aiming to provide vocational education and training in the region. The Group defines
capital as including reserves and specific and other funds. These funds, including inter-fund transfers, are managed in
accordance with the Group’s financial management policies and procedures and the relevant funding conditions, where
applicable. The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong financial base to support the development of the Group.

THBRILTKE  SERUHEANEEHEEI - AHBNELAERRBEEREEAZRREMES - ELESEER
HESEER  RRECHENTREEBR BF REBESHHFRG (WER) REEN - XEBEEEERE
FTEEEABRRIAMEBHEEFENKER )  RESRENMRERUSIEREENEE -

There has been no change in the Group’s capital management practices as compared to prior year. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirement.

HEEFELE  ARBLRIAERBENEENME - ARBEFEFEMIMENESRRE -
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12. FIXED ASSETS

BEIE&EE
Consolidated
=LA
Ny =]
Construction in Improvement  Furniture and Computer
Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BF HRIR HEIR  HFERRE By B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost KA
At 1 April 2013 2013%481H 1,745,679 73,827 1,165,741 265,747 284,864 3,535,858
Additions BE ‘ 536 71,668 107,403 25,175 32,464 237,246
Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 12(a) EZAMt:8% (MfzE12(a)) (4,964) - - - - (4,964)
Transfer to Improvement Works BETHNER &2
upon Completion of Projects HEIR - (41,585) 41,585 - - -
Disposals e - - (29) (1,315) (10,956) (12,300
At 31 March 2014 2014%3731H 1,741,251 103,910 1,314,700 289,607 306,372 3,755,840
Accumulated Depreciation ZE
At 1 April 2013 2013F 4A1H 146,114 - 698,742 154,296 229,301 1,228,453
Charge for the Year REEHE 44,980 - 167,045 38,574 24,886 275,485
Written Back on Disposals L ERER - - - (1,192) (10,956) (12,148)
At 31 March 2014 2014F3A31H 191,094 - 865,787 191,678 243,231 1,491,790
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 March 2014 2014F3431H 1,550,157 103,910 448,913 97,929 63,141 2,264,050
Consolidated
it
Constructionin ~ Improvement  Furniture and Computer
Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
BF ERIRE HEIR PEVET: El%E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost KA
At 1 April 2014 2014F4F1H 1,741,251 103,910 1,314,700 289,607 306,372 3,755,840
Additions ®E - 268,265 122,006 27,210 22,618 440,099
Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 12(a)) B4t (M 12(a)) (151) - - - - (151)
Transfer to Buildings/Improvement 2 TR AEEEEZE
Works upon Completion of Projects ~ 18F/METR 1,853 (27,671) 25,818 - - -
Disposals & - - (11,761) (11,450) (16,835) (40,046)
At 31 March 2015 20153311 1,742,953 344,504 1,450,763 305,367 312,155 4,155,742
Accumulated Depreciation 2iiE
At 1 April 2014 2014%481H 191,094 - 865,787 191,678 243231 1,491,790
Charge for the Year KEENE 46,125 - 170,147 35,404 26,981 278,657
Written Back on Disposals LERER - - (11,761) (11,386) (16,817) (39,964)
At 31 March 2015 2015538318 237,219 - 1,024,173 215,696 253,395 1,730,483
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 March 2015 2015538318 1,505,734 344,504 426,590 89,671 58,760 2,425,259
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12.
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FIXED ASSETS (Cont’d)

EEHEE (1)

Cost
At 1 April 2013
Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 12(a)) B2 k382 (Hf3t 12(a)

Transfer to Improvement Works
upon Completion of Projects
Disposals

At 31 March 2014

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2013

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2014

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2014

A
2013F4 718
g

FERRIVEEERE
YEIR
HE

2014F 38318
Z2itiE
2013E471H
REERE
HEREE
2014%3A318

REFE
2014%3A318

Vocational Training Council 5% 3|4k 5

The Council
BilE
Campus used
by a Subsidiary
(Note 12(b))
WELT Constructionin ~ Improvement  Furniture and Computer
BRzH2 Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
(W& 12(0)) e kRIR HEIR  GARZK etk Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
207,242 1,538 437 73,821 1,164,416 252,351 272,309 3,508,582
- 536 71,668 107,403 24,245 26,327 230,179
- (4,964) - - - - (4,964)
- - (41,585 41,585 - - -
- - - - 872) (9,359) (10,231)
207,242 1,534,009 103,910 1,313,404 275,124 289,217 3,723,566
39,226 106,388 - 698,214 147,678 221,119 1,213,125
4,906 40,074 - 166,798 34,350 22,419 268,547
- - - - (749) (9,359) (10,108)
44,132 146,962 - 865,012 181,279 234,179 1,471,564
163,110 1,387,047 103,910 448392 94,445 55,098 2,252,002




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

12. FIXED ASSETS (Cont’d)

EEEE (48)

Cost
At 1 April 2014
Additions

Capitalisation Adjustment (Note 12(a)) &7{k38% (Hfzk 12(a)

Transfer to Buildings/Improvement
Works upon Completion of Projects
Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2014

Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2015

A
2014F4R1H
HE

BERRiERERE
BT/ MEIE
HE

2015%3A31H
ZiHE
0145481
AEERE
HERER
2015530318

REFE
2015530318

The Council
Bil5

Campus used

hy a Subsidiary

(Note 12(b))

il P Constructionin ~ Improvement  Furniture and Computer

ERZRE Buildings Progress Works Equipment Equipment Total
(HzE12(0)) BT ERIR YEIR  GARREE H By h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
207,242 1,534,009 103,910 1,313,404 275,724 289,277 3,723,566
- - 268,265 120,725 27,548 20,543 437,081
- (151) - - - - (151)
- 1853 (27,671) 25818 - - -
- - - (14,761) (674) (12,337) (24772)
207,242 1535711 344,504 1448186 302,598 297,483 4135724
44132 146,962 - 865,012 181,279 234179 1,471,564
4,906 41219 - 169,726 33,145 23,901 272,897
- - - (14,761) (641) (12:337) (24,739)
49,038 188,181 - 1022977 213783 245,743 1,719,722
158,204 1,347,530 344,504 425,209 88,815 51,740 2,416,002
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12.

(a)

(b)

(c)

46

FIXED ASSETS (Cont'd)
BIEEE (%)

Capitalisation Adjustments
BEXR{LAE

Capitalisation adjustments relate to the building projects capitalised based on contractors’ claimed values which have been
adjusted following finalisation of contract values.

EXMARRENLEENRBEARBERNIREERENMNEFTIRE  RFARRRASVEEZHE -

Campus Used by a Subsidiary
MEBARFEAZRS

Use of the campus located at Tsing Yi is shared among the Council and the Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong. The land on which the building erected is granted under Private Treaty by the Government for a term of 50 years
from 16 April 1991 to 30 June 2047 for the provision of education and training services. Because of the special restricted
purpose including special uses and absolute prohibition against alienations, comparable market transaction and alternative
reliable estimate of fair value are not available and hence no reliable fair value of the property could be obtained.
NABTKNREHBIIFEEESEXARNEERAREA - 2L MUBABIAFXBEBUFHE - BH505F  H1991F4
A16 BZ£204756 300 » AFREHAREREIRY - HRERENRF (EFERERARRELER)  BEEEZ
TSRS RHEMAISZE AT ARBEHERER > BREAHSENARE -

Interests in Leasehold Land
HELHh oS

The Council holds interests in leasehold land and buildings associated with the following properties, the cost of which were
financed by government subventions or other sources of fundings, and were fully written off in prior years.

BIREEUATYREAELHREFNES - HRAHABFENEIEMESRKFMEDY  YERUEFETREH -

(i) Campuses completed prior to the setting up of the Council and taken over from the Government by the Council at nil
value which include the four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill, Kwai Chung,
Kwun Tong and Haking Wong), Haking Wong Seafront Complex and Shine Skills Centre (Kwun Tong and Tuen Mun).
BRREATHIIBRRBIIBR LA ERNNRESEE IEEBEXEREER (BHEEHR) 2RE-EEE
28 BENERR  ERHEEREERERESREERERDO (BEREM) -

(ii) The VTC Tower, four campuses of the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Tsing Yi, Chai Wan, Tuen Mun and
Sha Tin), the VTC Kowloon Bay Complex, VTC Kwai Chung Complex, VTC Pokfulam Complex, Maritime Services Training
Institute and Shine Skills Centre (Pokfulam) which were constructed after the setting up of the Council and financed by
government subventions.

BEINRBAE DEREBER2RE-FR - 5% - HPNDHE - BEIRBNEEKRE  BEIRFZBRE -
BEIREEEMAE - BBINREBRERE SRR O CERM) HRBAIB AL E%ERIBBUFHEBI€ER -

(iii) The staff quarters at Chai Wan and the premises at Billion Plaza | which were financed by loan facilities, donations, and
other funds.

URAKREBNBEBERERES —HHNYE  THER  BRREMESELY -

Most of the interests in leasehold land are restricted to own use by the Council.

Ao HELHNESIRBIRER -
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HBEABRIRE
The Council
Hal =
2015 2014
HK$ HK$
Unlisted shares, at cost LR - A 100 100
The particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
MBARMFRET ¢
Proportion of Ownership Interest
eial s
Place of Incorporation ~ Particulars of Issued and
Name of Company and Operation Paid Up Capital Held by the Council Held by Subsidiary - Principal Activity
ARER AfRUREEE  CRORARRARE BiRRE WEAREE TERD
VIC School of Business and Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of vocational education
Information Systems Eh ERERAR and training
BEIRRIHENER RUBREERINRRH
**Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of education at senior
School Management Committee Limted &8 ERERAR secondary level
BEXEPERRESRRAT RUBHEEARRY
Technological and Higher Education Institute  Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of career-oriented degree
of Hon Koni {3 BRARAA proiranjmes N
BRRSHENEER RUNEXARNELEURR
VTC Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - Investment holding
BRIRELEERLT &% B 1008 ° SELR
VTC School for Higher and Professional Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100% Provision of continuing education
i 9498 &% BRARAT " e aining
A REFEEERIRRS
The Institute of Professional Educational Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee - 100% Provision of continuing education
And Knowledge (PEAK) £ ERBRAF and training
REEEER RUBBEL IR
* VTC Training Company Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100% Provision of vocational education,
ﬁ%ﬁﬂgﬁﬂﬂ E R{3 100 professional training and
development services
RUBRES  BRIRRERERHR
* VTC Training Company Limited became dormant as from 1 April 2014.
H2014F 4188 BEZIERLRDNBEBNEH LA ©
Hx Yeo Chei Man Senior Secondary School School Management Committee Limited ceased operation with effect from 1 September

2014.
BFXEHERRESHERATHA2014F 98 1 ARFILEEE -
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14.

15.

(a)

48

LOAN TO A SUBSIDIARY
H B AT E™R

The Council has granted a revolving credit facility amounting to HK$6 million to VTC Enterprises Limited. Pursuant to the terms
of the facility, such facility is unsecured, bears interest and is repayable no later than 15 July 2013. The loan facility was not
renewed upon its maturity in July 2013.

BABSETFHEIRBEELERRATNNBAELFEAERBEERBEC00ET - RBHER » ZERLEIER  WERE » XK
AR 2013F 7B 15 RIBE - BN 2013 F 7 ARIHIBSBER -

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS
EBEERAKEMNEE

The Council makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan. The plan is administered by trustees with their assets
held separately from those of the Council. At 31 March 2015, there is only 1 member in the Scheme (2014: 1), who will retire
on 1 September 2015 and the Scheme will be terminated in the near future.

BilEAEN —EREFNRBRATEMEHER - T B T2EERHZTAETE  YHESITAZEEDIHERE - N2015F 38
318 ZETEIRBE1EME (2014 F 1 1 EBHKE) » ZHERN2015F 9 A1 HRIK » Mt BT SREHRAEL -

The plan is funded by contributions from the Council in accordance with an independent actuary’s recommendation based on
actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuations of the plan as at 1 January 2013 was undertaken by qualified
staff of HSBC Life (International) Limited, who are members of the Actuarial Society of Hong Kong.
BAEMEBLEEMNER  UEEMAEFAEROFEFHMER - 2013F 1 A 1 ABRFNBEYRELERHEBREE
Zeesz—WEEASRKE (BER) BRARETIGEN -

The Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

HEESEXRPEINEEOT

Consolidated and the Council

mEaRBIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Present Value of Funded Obligations EANESEKHRE (462) (418)
Fair Value of Scheme Assets FEIEEMNAAER 9,594 9,511
Employee Retirement Benefit Assets EBERKEBREE 9,132 9,093
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15.

(b)

(c)

(d)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS (Cont’d)

RERKEMNEE (&)

Scheme Assets Consist Primarily of Bank Deposits.

AREETERERITEREN

Movements in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations:

RENBZEBE2RESHUT :

Balance as at 1 April
Benefits Paid by the Scheme
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost

Actuarial Losses

Balance as at 31 March

4 A1 BH&eR
B8 THEF
I B AR A% A AR
B R
BEEE

3 A 31 A#ER

Movements of the Fair Value of the Scheme Assets:

AEEEZAABEZBWT

Balance as at 1 April

Benefits Paid by the Scheme Assets
Actuarial Expected Return on Scheme Assets
Actuarial Losses

Balance as at 31 March

4 A1 B4R

BB EEZHER
FFEIEENBEE TR R
BEEE

3 A 31 A#ER

Consolidated and the Council

e kB

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
418 1,026

- (696)

21 20

8 21

15 47
462 418

Consolidated and the Council

e kB

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
9,511 10,106
- (696)

190 202
(107) (101)
9,594 9,511
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15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS ASSETS (Cont’d)

EERKENEE (B)
(e) Income Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is as follows:
E2EKRBERFPEROBADT :
Consolidated and the Council
makBIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current Service Cost ANE E ARFE AR 21 20
Interest Cost FI=§5%: N 8 21
Expected Return on Scheme Assets sFEIEENTEHIREI R (190) (202)
Gain on Settlements FEERE 122 (862)
Total Income N L (39) (1,023)
Actual Gain on Scheme Assets FSFEIEENER NG 83 102

The income is recognised under other income in the statement of comprehensive income.

WARZEKZEROEMBA TR

(f) The Principal Actuarial Assumptions used as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 (Expressed as Weighted Average) are as
follows:

MR2015F3 31 AK2014F3 AL AFEANETERERR (UMEFTEERR)WOT

2015 2014
Discount Rate IR 2 % p.a. 2% p.a.
Long Term Average Expected Return on STEIEENREFEY
Scheme Assets FEHA[E = 2 % p.a. 2 % p.a.
Long Term Salary Increase Rates RRFE TR
Within 1 year —FR 2 % p.a. 2 % p.a.
Thereafter HE 2 % p.a. 2% p.a.
Average Future Working Lifetime of FTEIRK B VTEHA 15
Scheme Members TEFH] 1 year 1 year
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16.

17.

LOANS TO STAFF
BTEM

In conjunction with Hang Seng Bank Limited (Bank), the Council launched in April 1996 a Staff Loan Scheme to provide
financial assistance to members of the Council’s Provident Fund Scheme, part of which has subsequently been restructured
by setting up a new scheme called Vocational Training Council Provident Fund Scheme (1999) (collectively known as
the Schemes). An unsecured loan facility of HK$30 million has been arranged with the Bank for on-lending to qualified
staff members. The loans to staff are repayable in accordance with repayment schedules of which HK$926,400 (2014:
HK$1,216,800) is repayable within 1 year.

BABEBEERITHERAR (BBIIRIT) &1 N1996F 4 AARBIBABETE(E/IEL - BITHL THEINRE A
BEFE(—Ahh)  SBARETE)NHERMETIERGE  RUMBIEE - RITSRMEZSAEBE 33,0008 TH
%?%ﬁﬂﬁ%‘ﬂ AR BERATRERET - ZETERARYPFE » MARBH02.648T(2014F © BH#121.6887T)
BR—FRFE -

The loan granted to each staff member is limited to 60% of the individual’s provident fund benefit entitlement at the time of
application. In case of default on repayment, the Council can exercise its right to request the Trustees of the Schemes to retain
an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any benefits payable to the individual under the Schemes.
BEETAENENRE  THBEBRHFFFAIZELARSHENGCOR - BEET REMBMER  BISERERAESE
ZNZREA REBEIELAEESTEIEENENS  HIKREERERNEEE -

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FEWARTE ~ TRfARIE R H B ARTR

Consolidated

2 A
wh 3

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’'000

Accounts Receivable (Note 17(b)) FEUS BRIE (FIEE 17(b)) 9,831 7,046

Other Receivables Hib e RIS 48,154 37,429

Prepayments FERIE 39,896 31,428

Deposits for Purchase of Office Premises BEBRAZEI® 33,442 -

Utilities and Other Deposits KEREMES 696 1,141

132,019 77,044

The Council
B &

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Accounts Receivable (Note 17(b)) FEURBRIE (BdEE 17(b)) 4,719 3,052
Other Receivables H b fE YR BRIE 46,777 33,781
Prepayments FERRIE 34,695 30,399
Deposits for Purchase of Office Premises BERAZEITE 33,442 -
Utilities and Other Deposits KERHEMIZE 406 1,116
120,039 68,348

Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments, utilities and other deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

FEWARIE « HMEWARIE - BANFUR - KEREMERSE - BHER -FAKRDREIHMAX -
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17.

(a)

(b)

52

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
FEURERIE ~ TRMTRIR R A M AEURERIA (48)

Impairment of Accounts Receivable
FEWERE Z R {E

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group and the
Council are satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against
accounts receivable directly (see Note 2(f)).

FEWERTBRRERASTHEAEIRIRS  BRIEAKBREIIBZARDEVRFNEE +9ME  AREEBRASEERE
U BRTE R i EE (FE 2 BAMIEE 2(f)) ©

At 31 March 2015, none of the Group’s and the Council’s accounts receivable (2014: Nil) were individually determined to be
impaired.

R2015F3A31 8 AEBREBIIBHNEVRRERNEERRERE(2014F 1 &) -
Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired

TMERE 2 FEW AR IR

Accounts receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s and the Council’s
credit policy are set out in Note 22(a).

FEWARTE — BB E A S 30 RAEIH - ARBRBIIBEEBERFITC HIIRKMEE 22(a) °

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

W ERAERERRLENMERE - AIREDTOT :

Consolidated

2 A

wh 3
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired REBHANREE 6,308 4,822
Less than 1 Month Past Due BEADHR—{E B 1,941 1,266
More than 1 Month Past Due BHZA—@EA 1,582 958
9,831 7,046

The Council
EElE]

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
Neither Past Due nor Impaired RAEREBARE 2,257 1,366
Less than 1 Month Past Due BELR—EA 1,217 1,223
More than 1 Month Past Due BHZR—EA 1,245 463
4,719 3,052
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17.

(b)

18.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
FEURERIR ~ TR TR R E M EURERIR (48)

Accounts Receivable that are Not Impaired (Cont’d)
TMERE 2 W ERE (&)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of individuals for whom there was no recent history
of default.

BEFRENERRIERE - B AHEXBEENWENALHRR -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent individuals and organisations that have
a good track record with the Group and the Council. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Council does not hold any collateral over these balances.
2iBRHERBRENERRIESE— ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬂ%:ﬁl)ﬁﬁEﬂﬁaﬁé’-ﬂﬁﬁj@ﬁmﬂ:%ﬂ% BEBN - REBEILE  BE
BRARBEREEENEZEE HAACEERRIFEANRE TEERANREAUZHWE - AEERBIIFREERIEL
BYEA{a/K$0 mm o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERIREEEY
Consolidated
= A
fa =)
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Deposits with Banks with Maturity AL R=@EAH
less than Three Months RITERER 640,000 738,360
Cash at Bank and in Hand IRITEARES 66,417 52,840
Cash and Cash Equivalents in FEBEERERT
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement NIEERIESZEY 706,417 791,200
The Council
iEEllE]
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
Deposits with Banks with Maturity FHELOR=EAKN
less than Three Months fﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬁf‘%ﬁt 635,000 733,000
Cash at Bank and in Hand TEIFERES® 65,630 51,506
Cash and Cash Equivalents BHERBEESEEY 700,630 784,506
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19.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FEATERIE ~ [BSt U ~ HMENEREREEEH 2R

(a) Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables

BARE - Bir R EMEMN R

Consolidated

Fe)

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

Accounts Payable (Note 19(b)) FE A+ BRIE (F4EE 19(b)) 190,444 153,194

Accruals FEST X 289,385 248,293

Deposits and Retentions Withheld BERRES 36,975 26,557

Receipts in Advance FEWRIE 628,996 612,337
Subventions Repayable to Government ERZEBNNHERE

(Note 19(c)) (FF3E 19(c)) 3,405 308

1,149,205 1,040,689

The Council
B3I &

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

Accounts Payable (Note 19(b)) FEAFBRTE (FEE 19(b)) 159,832 117,253

Accruals e 278,556 236,790

Deposits and Retentions Withheld REkREE 36,975 26,557

Receipts in Advance FEWRRIE 330,895 324,081

Amounts Due to Subsidiaries FETH B A B FRIE 785,739 713,329
Subventions Repayable to Government FESRZE BTV R &

(Note 19(c)) (FFEE19(c)) 3,405 308

1,595,402 1,418,318

Accounts payable, accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one year. The contractual undiscounted value
of accounts payable, accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 was the same as their respective carrying
values.

FEASBRIE » Bt X REMEMRBEREEN —FAXZN - R2015F3 318K 2014F3 831 H » BERIE - Bt H
REAMENIRIES B 2 REAEEZA[ERTREMER -
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19.

(b)

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)

FEAIRRIA ~ FESt U ~ B AIRIERESRFZEE (B)

Government Subventions for Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students
BNOE2tRENATEERUNBEER)

Accounts payable included balance of government subventions for Fee Assistance to Below sub-degree Students.

BNRAEREFAORIZTUTRESLRUNEEELD -

The Fee Assistance to Below Sub-degree Students is to provide tuition fee reimbursement and flat-rate academic expenses
grant for needy students pursuing programmes below sub-degree level. Full or half level of tuition fee reimbursement will be
granted to students assessed to be eligible to receive full or half grant under the students means-test mechanism of the
Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency respectively. If students pursue programmes of duration at one year
or above, they may also receive full or half level of the flat-rate academic expenses grant.

BEEYANERBLUTREENFERLRHEBEE R BERI TR - BLUEBERIERZLEEMSEHEN

ABREERE  UNSEHNFHREDER  BURELARFFARERE - FENRESFE - FHUL - TAHRE

BEM TR -

Balance sheet as at 31 March is disclosed below:

3A3LANEEEERNVIENT -

Balance as at 1 April 4 51 B8
Government Subventions Received Bz BT ERD
Less: Fees Disbursed to Beneficiaries B B[RS EHRNER
Tuition Fees Reimbursement BEEL
— Full-rate for 1,499 Beneficiaries — 1,499V R REZ HH &R
— Half-rate for 989 Beneficiaries — 089U BT HHR
Flat-rate Academic Expenses Grant BEML EERER
— Full-rate for 1,502 Beneficiaries — 1,502V R EEZ HE R
— Half-rate for 994 Beneficiaries — Q04U HEEZ HER
Balance as at 31 March 3B 31 B&8

Consolidated and the Council
FHeEkBIBE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000

52,000 -

(30,655) -
(10,080) -

(40,735) -

(3,217) -
(1,065) -

(4,282) -

6,983 -
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19.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES, AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
FEATERIE ~ [BStIH ~ EEMERERESEH M (&)

(c) Subventions Repayable to Government

ESREBNNHEES
Consolidated and the Council
FERBIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B&E& 308 11,325
Less: Amount Refunded to Government B AFEEEREBRN
during the Year e (308) (11,325)
Subventions Refundable to Labour EEEZEIRERNE
and Welfare Bureau HiEBh &
— Recurrent Subventions —RE@HBE 2,701 -
— Capital Accounts —E%ERE 704 308
3,405 308
Balance as at 31 March 3 B 31 H&EER 3,405 308
(d) Provision for Employee Benefits
EEREFIE®E
Provision for employee benefits relate to various allowances and benefits, mainly unutilised annual leave, payable to
employees.

EEEMNEGETAEENZERESN T EEEAAZEBRRENEE ZFIE -
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Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

20. LOANS

oS
I=F,JN

Balance as at 1 April

Add: Loans Drawn
Down During the Year

Unamortised Deferred
Interest Expenses

Amortisation of Deferred

Interest Expenses
for the Year

Less: Loans Repaid
During the Year

Balance as at 31 March

Represented by:

Loans Payable Within One Year
Normal Value

Loans Payable After One Year

Normal Value
Deferred Interest Expense

Total Balance

4B1R%S
m: EREANER

RS BIERIS

AEEEHE BT
MEXH

HFRERHER

3A3LALE
LRFELE -

—FREEENEN
HE

—FRERBENEN

HE
EENSH

e

Consolidated and the Council

e RBAR
2015 2014
Bank Loan for
On-lending to Staff Loan from
(Note 20(a)) Government
BETEIH (Note 20(b))
BITER BRER Total Total
(i 20(a)) (Bt 20(b)) ot BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,631 179,673 182,304 2,829
1,810 340,000 341,810 221,310
- (101,509) (101,509) (40,327)
- 8,984 8,984 -
4441 427,148 431,589 183,812
(1,696) - (1,696) (1,508)
2,745 427,148 429,893 182,304
2,745 - 2,745 2,631
- 560,000 560,000 220,000
- (132,852) (132,852) (40,327
- 427,148 427,148 179,673
2,745 427,148 429,893 182,304
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20. LOANS (Cont’d)
& (48)

(@) The loan relates to a revolving credit facility for on-lending to staff and is unsecured and bears interest at 3% per annum (2014: 3% per
annum). The interest expenses incurred are fully borne by the staff. The loan is repayable on 29 February 2016 and renewable annually
subject to Hang Seng Bank’s consent. The amount of the facility is HK$30 million (2014: HK$30 million). The contractual undiscounted value
of the loan as at 31 March 2015 was HK$2.7 million (2014: HK$2.6 million).

BETEINEAEMHERBREFEN - FENFRERE3%2014F : 3%) ° BN S HIHAERE THAE - EREAN2016F 24 29
RBE » WAEEERTRE N EFEN - BAEKBEAB 300087 (2014 F  B%3,00085T) » 720154 3 § 31 AWRLR
EZARITRERBE 2708 T (2014 F : B 260&T) °

(b) Loan from the Government (the Loan) was an interest-free loan under the Start-up Loan Scheme. The Loan is for the construction of campus
in Chai Wan to operate self-financing full-time post-secondary programmes by the Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong.
The Loan is secured by income generated from the operation and management of the courses and programmes in respect of which the Loan
is granted.

BREH (BRLEN) REBAMRAEEX SRR ERNREER - RERAEREZUREENRE  UHEESEHENRRR
KREHERBNEZAHELRE - HERUKLEREEZE LREZ W AR

Drawdown of the Loan will be disbursed in three instalments. First and second instalments of HK$220 million and HK$340 million were
received in March 2014 and February 2015 respectively. The Loan is repayable in equal annual instalments over a period of 10 years and
the first repayment shall become due on the firstianniversary of the dateﬁof final drawdown.

WEFED =R » BRREZXEFR B 22,000 BT REH3E4,0008TEA BN 2014 F 3 AR 201552 AUE - WERS
TH BFEPHEE  F-XAENEERERFABRHE—ERAFHZIE -

Total contractual undiscounted value of the Loan as at 31 March 2015 was HK$560 million (2014: HK$220 million) and was repayable after
one year. The unamortised deferred interest expenses represented the difference between the carrying value and the redemption value of
the interest-free loan using effective interest method at a discount rate of 5%. B

R 20154 3 A 31 HNRKRE 2 KT REH B 56,0008 7T (2014 F 1 B# 22,0008 7T) » WAR —FRMEE - RMHEZIEE
MEXHAREERNIRAENER Y ITREFABRAZ LT EBREZEH -

21. DEFERRED INCOME

WS
Consolidated
S A
2N =1
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Balance as at 1 April 4 B 1 B8 1,632,898 1,618,669
Subventions Received/Receivable B W E B 2,881,768 2,686,989
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 3) RERERWA (FizE3) (2,770,407) (2,672,760)
Balance as at 31 March 3B 31 A%ER 1,744,259 1,632,898
To Be Recognised as Income R AW =S
Within One Year —F R 306,306 283,925
After One Year —F% 1,437,953 1,348,973
1,744,259 1,632,898
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21.

DEFERRED INCOME (Cont'd)
IR (%)

Balance as at 1 April
Subventions Received/Receivable
Recognised as Income in the Year (Note 3)

Balance as at 31 March
To Be Recognised as Income

Within One Year
After One Year

4 A 1 BiEeR
B FEURE B
REREZHWA (FEE3)

3 B 31 H&EER

R B
—
—

The Council
BAE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,632,610 1,617,584
2,878,911 2,676,582
(2,768,152) (2,661,556)
1,743,369 1,632,610
305,416 283,637
1,437,953 1,348,973
1,743,369 1,632,610

Note: Government subventions earmarked for specific purposes are initially recorded as deferred income which is subsequently
recognised as revenue to the extent of the related expenditure or depreciation expenses charged to related assets incurred (see

Note 2(n)(i)).

BEABNBABDSNRSWIARELRE  REUAERXNEREENTE L SBERMREIBRA BSHEMEE2n)

() °
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22,

(a)

(b)

(c)

60

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
TRIEREERERANEE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, foreign currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s operations. The
Group manages and minimises these financial risks through its financial risk management policies and practices described
below:

AEBREELEBRTPIREE RBES INERFERR - AEBEB T U BRAREBRIRREB I £
ZRBBUEBRED

Credit Risk
EERR

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to tuition fees and training charges receivable from individual students or sponsoring organisations.
Management manages this risk as follows:

EERBRIESHFKERELRZEBEINTIE - AMEZGERARTIERABEMARIEYRBIBTNEERRESE
A-EEEEEEERARNT

In respect of tuition fees and training charges receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into account the customer’s past payment history, financial position and
other factors. Tuition fees and training charges receivable are generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

MEBBNREERIH SYHEA T2EMNEESZFETEAAGENM ZETASZTEZTFBENSREHE  BHER
MEHMEAZ ZEBRFEEA RSN BREAHET30BREH - AEBE— RIS ERTFIRMHIERSR -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
set out in Note 17.

AEBHRYIRER LR RBENE(CIREBEC I HRMEE LT
Liquidity Risk
REBE TR

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that funds are not available to meet liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group invests surplus cash in bank deposits not exceeding an average horizon
of three years.

RBETCREMBRELIEEHESREMNIBNEE - AHBHNBRATHEERRRFAH2RBESE R » UBRERSRE
HREREE AUBCSEHERARBESER - AHBREFBKNESFRNBITIEESTZR=ZFENEHFR °

The remaining contractual maturities of the financial liabilities at the balance sheet date of the Group and the Council are
disclosed in Notes 19 and 20. The contractual maturities are calculated based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group and the Council are required to pay.
THERBIENEEEBERTNUBEEEZRNKRENRTEIER » SHMTE19M20FEE - ZYNRENHRTEHAR
BEBEZAREARTRZRER (BREUZAREZNZREEEEREANMNZNZIHEEMAEZFEZL) » URAK
BABIIRBNERERBRKIEDN -

Foreign Currency Risk

S B

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

FHBRZHPLUBETE  BARIINEREEREMR
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22,

(d)

(e)

23.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Cont'd)
EHEAREERANEE (8)

Interest Rate Risk
== & B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its borrowing activities. The Group considers that it is not exposed to any
significant interest rate risk arising from its borrowings as at 31 March 2015. The bank loan obtained is for on-lending to staff
who will reimburse the same amount of interest to the Council.

AHEBNARERTERBEEETY - ABERAUEZTEAN2015F3A3LHNEEREEANMERR - RITERZ
URBFRAENENZBETET -

Fair Values
AREE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

BT EMN2015F3A31HK2014F3A31 HNREEHEEARBEIEETEAERE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
FRIERR 7

Due to the nature of the Group’s operations and the composition of the Council members of the Vocational Training Council
(being drawn from private and public operations), it is inevitable that transactions may take place with organisations in
which a Council member may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a Council member or senior
management of the Group may have an interest are conducted at an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations and normal procurement procedure. Donations received from Council members, senior management or
companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved and reported in accordance with the Group’s
financial regulations.

HRAAREBNEEERES  REBIIBNESSHNEMNER (ERERAEKBIRE)  ARBETRLEESENEFT MG
BHRBETRS - IESRESENEREESENXZYRBAFRARBISUBRAUREEFNRBERET
BEaE  EESERZHEFSIEEZELEMN A AWM B RIS RBEIIE MR AR RE -

&
it

Remuneration for key management personnel is as follows:

TEEEERENMEFENT

Consolidated

= A

Fa =]
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
Short-term Employee Benefits EHEERET 41,850 39,322

The Council
RIS

2015 2014
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Short-term Employee Benefits EHEERF 38,183 33,992

The above remuneration is included in “staff expenses” (see Note 7). The Group’s contributions to retirement schemes are
also set out in Note 7.

LA EETAESTRAXA (BF2HMET) o AEE RKETEIHR TSI AL
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24. COMMITMENTS
S

(a) Capital Commitments in Respect of Property, Plant and Equipment Outstanding at 31 March 2015 and 2014 Not
Provided for in the Financial Statements were as follows:

MR2015F3 831 HK2014F3 831 AZY%¥ - BERRBEBARARUKRRBEZERREFNT !

Consolidated and the Council

HERBIE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
Contracted for [EEED 1,403,070 123,202
Authorised but not Contracted for EEEETRETY 1,008,894 2,295,851
Total @t 2,411,964 2,419,053

(b) As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Total Future Minimum Lease Payments under Operating Leases in respect of
Properties are Payable as follows:

A2015F3H31HK2014F3A31H ' YEUKEHEHEACENRERENREENT

Consolidated and the Council

RE kB

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000

Within 1 Year — &R 4,113 5,290
After 1 Year but Within 5 Years —FEZEBETSZNEE 821 4,772
4,934 10,062

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three
years, with an option to renew the leases when all terms are negotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
TEBULEHEEA—LYE - —RESHNHBRA—Z=F  EfMERIEEER  TREHEEHEAZVE - FIE
HETBEESEHE -

62  Vocational Training Council B 3|4k 5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt %5 ¥R & M 5E

25.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
B E 2015 F 3 A 31 HILFEBAMERAREMBEERT « friB R R2EAEEMNTEE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
BEAUMBBRETER  EESTHAASC AMEELEITRINEER » BEREBE2015F3A31HEZFERREY » &
WARRARFEREZPERA ©

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

AHBR ERELEITHIAERAPRENEEELTTM - ESBHNERRRAB LSBT RELKBNEEXERUK
MRELEERTE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL
TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

RBEIGBELARZHE (A AN)(BREFFE) RXIANBIZHAME S

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme, which
comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as at 31
March 2015, and the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustees of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the provisions
of the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purposes. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Scheme’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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REEEN (LT ERERM) SFT RTINS BRER - &
EN2015F3A31 H A HBRIRFEERK - AR
BEZALFERNAHENNRNFEESLBRRME
ERBRURTESTERBER AWM EREER -

REAMPBRRAKENTE

% 3 5 2 B ) 2 B 3€ R O 5t 81 R ) B AR E AR BB R 3R
xo USHBHRRFLHEEMAIFHRMEZEHRR
WAV IBRRFr LB ARPES - UEMFRERAFE
R R FF S 85 R T B 2 89 B R SR SRR ©

ZHEMNEE
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HMERETBSHM LS EMI(EBENER) I
S IR(EBHP)E 860.15% [ RN EINES | ETHE
it o ZEEERRMBTERSAE  WRBRANITHE
i LEEREVBEHRRES T FEERBREL -

FE S RITREFUENSBAMERRFAHSEARIKE
BRBFETRE o FrRE AR BUR MR 86D &Y ) & -
BREEARRFFRERM BRI BIRRFEE RHER
BRILEY AR - A ZS A RE - RBEE R ET AR
HYBHERUELEEM QI RREEN AR
UREHEENERRF - B8 W 3ERH TSR AR
FNERMRRER - B BEHESSIRASE
HRNSEM RS ETTHNSEY - URFFERMHE
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HPHEE  RAMESHENRREAENEZ AR
MEFEREHER -



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 31
March 2015, and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 July 2015

BR

BARE  ZEVHRRCEB(EBYHREERE
EMAFHRMEEN2015F3831ANEEERER
MARBEZHLFEFENTERZRRERE °

EEHE TS
HESTTED
BEBYIR

HEITE 1058
KFRESHE

2015 7H21H
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COMPLIANCE REPORT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE TRUSTEES OF
VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME (1999) (THE SCHEME)

RBERIGBE2EZFE (—AAA) (BB

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2015 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA), and have issued an unqualified
auditor’s report thereon dated 21 July 2015.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Trustees’ Responsibilities
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) contributions are made in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme;
(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,

charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities

It is our responsibility to report solely to you, as a body, on the
Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements based on the
results of the procedures performed by us and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

66  Vocational Training Council B %34 B

HE)RRAANBILIZBENE G KRS

AAZEE (AT EERM) CREEESTEIASEMHN
(BARBTTER)  URSB(EKHIE)ES60.155 BIX
SHEIMNERT]  BEETEIBE2015F 3831 HEFER
B Rk - WM 2015F 7 A21 B HEREZERNZX
SRS

12 R R R R BURA) (BRBIRA]) B 20/RMRE - K
MEZHR BB EERKAFE TREFELRS -

REANEE
RBIZRZ AR

(F) SERNABEEE BERMBEXZHEEX
EMERE RACH

(2) FHEICREET SR IRFEAER
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Basis of Conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial
information” and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit
of retirement schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We have performed
such procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of
reporting on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.

Conclusion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

1)

proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2015 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

contributions have been made in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2015;
and at 31 March 2015, there was no shortfall between
the Scheme’s assets and the Scheme’s aggregate vested
liability;

at 31 March 2015, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)
(iii) of the ORSO; and

at 30 June 2014, 30 September 2014 and 31 March 2015,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

A om B
BRMERBEBEAMASNMIEBERERRE
#ERI30005%) [BRETHEFHELMBERINERT
151 IR 2 R(E MK #E)5E860. 155 RINFH B FET
ETRFANIE - RASETEMARBATNESF - U
ERtEERET LA ERRRE

Ao

RIELLEF - RS -

(1) BZ2015F3A31HLEFER » sTENFAEE
E BERMEXZHEFEZENIRE ML ;

(2) BZ2015F 3 A31 HIEFERRBFTEIFTTH
GFBMMHER  MBE2015F 3831 H1E » 5
EMEEBEY NMEREMEBHEE |

(3) R2015F 3 A 31 H » BRA& B 5 20(3)(b)(ii) &
FriRES  STENEEL R EEEMEZE - K
e ERNZHEMEREEMER &

(4) R2014F 6 A30H 2014%F 9 A30HK 2015

F3H31H  stEBIBEEFROIE272)FNSR
E °
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Use of this Report

This report is intended solely for submission by the trustees to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone for any other purpose.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 July 2015
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

12015 F3 31 HAMBENTRBNFEERRK

CURRENT ASSETS
Investments Managed by Investment Managers
Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Benefits Payable

NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

Represented by:
CAPITAL ACCOUNT

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Trustees

on 21 July 2015

R2015%F7 A 21H
HETZESHRRERRK

Mr Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP
Chairman

Board of Trustees
BRAZI% 4%, BBS, JP
EEEESEE

REBEE
REKEEENIREER
RERREEEY

RERE
FEAS BRX
FES @R
AHERNNRNFEE

ERBREDE -
RIS

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
4,130,608 4,217,713
19,810 23,121
4,150,418 4,240,834
202 209

4,405 13,283
4,607 13,492
4,145,811 4,227,342
4,145,811 4,227,342
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

BHE2015F3 A1 LEERNHBENNRNFTEEZE S R X

INVESTMENT RETURN

Interest Income

Net Realised Gain on Investments

Dividend and Other Income

Net Movement in Unrealised Gain on Investments

INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment Management Fees

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Administrator’s Fees
Accountancy Fees

Audit Fees

Investment Consultancy Fees
Miscellaneous Expenses

NET GAIN FOR THE YEAR
CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from the Council
Contributions from Members
BENEFIT PAYMENTS

Benefits on Termination of Service
Retirement Benefits

Death Benefits

FORFEITURES

FORFEITURES RE-INVESTED

(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE
FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR
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2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
2,865 2,486
190,098 116,008
1 319
46,038 179,254
239,002 298,067
514 555
514 555
880 916
113 113

47 45

124 120

23 26
1,187 1,220
237,301 296,292
151,825 155,291
49,715 50,746
201,540 206,037
13,646 9,237
503,140 195,702
3,586 9,370
520,372 214,309
- 173

- (173)
(81,531) 288,020




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
RETIREMENT AND DEATH GRATUITY SCHEME FOR MINOR STAFF (THE SCHEME)

RBEXIGBVREERKEZRIENESF8 (BB XRAANBIZEMARS

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme, which
comprise the statement of net assets available for benefits as at 31
March 2015, and the statement of changes in net assets available
for benefits and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Trustees’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustees of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the provisions
of the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purposes. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Scheme’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Scheme’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the trustees, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme as at 31
March 2015, and of its financial transactions and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(B) to
the financial statements which describes that the Scheme will be
terminated in the near future. Accordingly, the Scheme is no longer a
going concern and the financial statements have been prepared on a
break up basis. The carrying amounts of all the assets and liabilities
of the Scheme approximate their net realisable values as at
31 March 2015.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 July 2015
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COMPLIANCE REPORT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE TRUSTEES OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING
COUNCIL RETIREMENT AND DEATH GRATUITY SCHEME FOR MINOR STAFF (THE SCHEME)

REZIGRYVBEERAKERENSFE (FRHE) TAIANBURBAELN KRS

We have audited the financial statements of the Scheme for the year
ended 31 March 2015 in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit of
retirement schemes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA), and have issued an unqualified
auditors’ report thereon dated 27 July 2015.

Pursuant to section 20 of the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (ORSO), we are required to report whether the Scheme
complied with certain requirements of the ORSO.

Trustees Responsibilities
The ORSO requires the trustees to ensure that:

(a) proper accounts and records are kept as regards all assets,
liabilities and financial transactions of the Scheme;

(b) the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO, is complied with;

(c) the assets of the Scheme are not subject to any assignment,
charge, pledge or other encumbrance except for those
specified in section 20(3)(b)(iii) of the ORSO; and

(d) the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO are complied
with.

Auditor's Responsibilities

It is our responsibility to report solely to you, as a body, on the
Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements based on the
results of the procedures performed by us and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of Conclusion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial
information” and with reference to Practice Note 860.1 “The audit
of retirement schemes” issued by the HKICPA. We have performed
such procedures as we considered necessary for the purpose of
reporting on the Scheme’s compliance with the above requirements.
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Conclusion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion:

(1)

proper accounts and records have been kept during the year
ended 31 March 2015 as regards all assets, liabilities and
financial transactions of the Scheme;

the relevant undertaking, as defined under section 20(4) of
the ORSO, has been complied with during the year ended 31
March 2015;

at 31 March 2015, the assets of the Scheme were
not subject to any assignment, charge, pledge or other
encumbrance except for those specified in section 20(3)(b)
(iii) of the ORSO; and

at 31 May 2014, 30 November 2014 and 31 March 2015,
the requirements of section 27(2) of the ORSO have been
complied with.

Use of this Report

This report is intended solely for submission by the trustees to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone for any other purpose.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 July 2015
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

12015 F3 31 HAMBENTRBNFEERRK

CURRENT ASSETS

Accounts Receivable

Bank Deposits with Original Maturity
over Three Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS

Represented by:
CAPITAL ACCOUNT

Approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Trustees

on 27 July 2015

R2015%7 B 27H

HETZE SRR IRERE

Mr Cliff SUN Kai-lit, BBS, JP
Chairman

Board of Trustees

B ZI%4E, BBS, JP
EREI- e

REEE

FEUR R R

N EEFREAESEB=EA
HYER1T 175K

RERREEEY
REBEE
FEAS BRFX

AHENNRNFEE

LGRS
BXRF

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
24 1
9,560 9,517
24 7
9,608 9,525
14 14
9,594 9,511
9,594 9,511

Financial Report 81 ¥ £:2014/2015 75




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
INVESTMENT RETURN REE ;|
Interest Income FE YA 110 130
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES THEH
Administration and Accountancy Fees THEETER 11 11
Audit Fees EREA 13 13
Miscellaneous Expenses MIERX 3 4
27 28
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PAYMENTS EARERNZH - (696)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS AEAHBRSRE
AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS FOR THE YEAR BEERMRD) 83 (594)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE VOCATIONAL TRAINING COUNCIL
AS THE SOLE TRUSTEE OF NEW TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FUND (THE FUND)

RBEIGRBFAFMEKBEINIEEZ (BEHMET) B RXANBLILZAME S

We have audited the financial statements of the Fund, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2015, the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in trust funds and
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Trustee’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The trustee of the Fund is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the terms of
the Trust Deed dated 22 May 1992 (the Trust Deed) and for such
internal control as the trustee determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Fund’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
trustee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of its deficit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed.

Use of this Report

This report is intended solely for the information of and use by the
trustee of the Fund and is not intended for any other purpose. This
report should not be disclosed, referred to or quoted in whole or in
part without out prior written consent.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

10 August 2015
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
B#EX2015F5EZF3H31HEEFENZ2E K= X

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000

INCOME A
Interest Income FE WA 1,737 1,227

EXPENDITURE T
Training Grants 1ESEE, (1,812) (1,603)
Auditor's Remuneration Z AN & (19) (18)
(1,831) (1,621)

DEFICITS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE KEERFEREME

INCOME FOR THE YEAR PNt (94) (394)

The fund had no components of comprehensive income other than “deficits for the year” in either of the periods presented. Therefore,
the Fund’s “total comprehensive income” was the same as the “deficits for the year” in both periods.

BRY IRFEFRFIN  BEERERFALRBEMEEARA - ARESHN [FAFEFRF | HER [ 2EBWALZE] -
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015
2015 X3 31 HHMWEEERGAR

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Bank Deposits with Maturity over Three Months ~ Z|Hi BB =18 B HR1TER
Accounts Receivable FEURBRIE

Cash and Cash Equivalents HeRBSEEY
CURRENT LIABILITY REBAE
Accounts Payable FE{SRRIE

NET ASSETS BEEFE
Represented by: LFRFRIBDE -
TRUST FUNDS EEEE

Capital Fund BEXRES
Revenue Fund WAES

Approved and authorised for issue

by the Vocational Training Council

as Trustee of the Fund

on 10 August 2015

R2015F8 A10H
HBEINIRBUZEABTRMZREEER

Dr Clement CHEN Cheng-jen, SBS, JP
Chairman

Vocational Training Council
BEFNRE EE

PREE{_fE L, SBS, JP
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2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
110,200 60,200

24 603

912 50,156
111,136 110,959
(527) (256)
110,609 110,703
105,000 105,000
5,609 5,703
110,609 110,703




For enquiries &3 External Relations Office
Vocational Training Council
B2 BR B NS R

Address it VTC Tower, 27 Wood Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
ERBLEE 27T REREIRE KIE

Tel B3 (852) 2836 1000
Fax {#E (852) 2838 0667
Website #8ik http://www.vtc.edu.hk
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